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CHARACTERISTICS OF GEM (“GEM”) OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF
HONG KONG LIMITED (THE “STOCK EXCHANGE”)

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate
small and mid-sized companies to which a higher investment risk
may be attached than other companies listed on the Stock Exchange.
Prospective investors should be aware of the potential risks of
investing in such companies and should make the decision to invest
only after due and careful consideration.

Given that the companies listed on GEM are generally small and mid-
sized companies, there is a risk that securities traded on GEM may
be more susceptible to high market volatility than securities traded
on the main board of the Stock Exchange and no assurance is given
that there will be a liquid market in the securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock Exchange take no
responsibility for the contents of this report, make no representation as to its
accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever for
any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the
contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors (the "Directors”) of Viva China Holdings Limited
(the “Company” or "Viva China”, which together with its subsidiaries, the "Group”)
collectively and individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars given

in compliance with the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on GEM (“GEM
Listing Rules’) for the purpose of giving information with regard to the Company.
The Directors, having made all reasonable enquiries, confirm that to the best of
their knowledge and belief the information contained in this report is accurate and
complete in all material respects and not misleading or deceptive and there are
no other matters the omission of which would make any statement herein or this
report misleading.
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PRINCIPAL BANKERS

The Bank of East Asia, Limited
Hang Seng Bank Limited

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited

China Citic Bank International Limited

China Merchants Bank Co., Lid

China Construction Bank Corporation

Xiamen International Bank Co., Ltd

Bank Julius Baer & Co., Ltd

UBS AG, Hong Kong

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Co., Ltd
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Reed Smith Richards Butler
20th Floor Alexandra House
18 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong
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Jianguomenwai Avenue

Chaoyang District

Beijing, 100022, PRC

REGISTERED OFFICE
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P.0. Box 2681
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Cayman Islands

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS

Room 3602-06, 36th Floor
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Hong Kong

VIVA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED J£ AL+ Bl ¥ IR G FR A 7]

FEFERRT

RERITERAF
BAERITARAR

B TRERTT (EM) BRAF
RERT (BER)ARAR

BRERTEROBRAR

REZRRTEROBRAR
EFBEERRITID AR A A

It ERBITERAQA
ILiR1T FB

EELBESRITERAA

EEER
BER SR
EEPIR
T 3B 1855

FE LK E20%E

38 7 R D S5 7% P
I R T

CEl g

B FISN KR

FR 1 255 37 (R i K 6/
L 47100022

AfREE

Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive

P.0. Box 2681

Grand Cayman KY1-1111
Cayman Islands

FTEE XY
BB

F #2005
fE1=AH D
RERXE
361£3602-06 %



?
\

>
O

=

ofe.

Corporate Information 22 S & ¥
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CHAIRMAN'S
STATEMENT %<&

Dear Shareholders,

Since the State Council released the Guiding Opinion on Accelerating the
Development of Sports Industry and Promoting Sports Consumption, a

key forward-looking document on facilitating the growth of the national
sports industry in October 2014, the industry has seen relevant policies

and supportive measures rolled out successively in recent years, setting

out a series of objectives and plans for the leisure fitness industry, leisure
fitness complex construction and sports consumption. National fitness was
also underlined, with great efforts in pipeline for developing leisure fitness
consumption. Meanwhile, the Chinese government has been strenuously
promoting winter sports and public sports culture in recent years, through its
preparation for the 2022 Beijing Winter Olympic Games as well as Hangzhou
Asian Games. This has created a more favourable atmosphere for the sports
industry to grow in China and presented a brighter prospect for the Group’s
principal businesses.

06  VIVA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED 3£ A, = Bl 5 B A PR A T



Chairman’s Statement @S5
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Chairman’s Statement EE RS
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‘

Focusing on Developing Sports Destinations

The national sports policy underscores extensive construction of sports complexes
and facilities in various regions across the country. Under such national policies
and the strong support from national and local governments, the Group has been
focused on developing sports destinations by leveraging its years of experience in
sports venue operation and abundant sports resources. In 2018, we managed to
accelerate the expansion of our sports destination network across the country, and
carried out strategic cooperation with many local governments, well-established
property developers and financial institutions. Various models such as PPP were
adopted for us to invest, develop and replicate our sports destinations, including
Li Ning Sports Park, Li Ning Sports Centre and sports community, in more

cities. Given that Linyi Li Ning Sports Centre and Ningbo Hangzhou Bay Li Ning
Sports Park commenced operation in 2018, the Group expects that more sports
destination projects will be successively materialised around the nation in 2019.

VIVA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED J£ AL+ Bl ¥ IR G FR A 7]
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Chairman’s Statement EfE RS

Our expectation is that in the near future, all the sports destinations and facilities BPHERTANER AEEEENEE

operated by the Group can take root in different areas in China. Infused with EMHMEEEEMEPEFRENTRER
elements of various industries, such infrastructure can fully cover different sports Bo-BRMGUREER N ELHRAMEE
scenarios and facilities as well as ancillary offerings at our sports destinations, TEEAHEEEMNN 2ERETRAE
which will be operated in a light-asset model, where the public will enjoy enriched EEESSERGBMNEERS NEEFRZR
user experience, greater consumption and better communication. Through such BEEMNMMER HENXR EREE
operation, we seek to cultivate a more diversified and developed sports-for-all FEMNEERENEREF VLMES B
culture and sportsmanship in cities and communities across the PRC in a more BB 2B T AL E A B RIS
effective fashion, whilst generating new commercial value. EEINER
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‘

Coordinating and Investing in

Both Traditional and Emerging Sports Events

In 2018, we continued to grow our existing sports business, including the
commercial operation of certain authorisation for CBA (Chinese

Basketball Association), the highest-ranking
professional basketball league in China, and the
operation and marketing of streetball league ‘
“3+1 Basketball League” and running event

“Fun Run Festival”, respectively. Our engagement in
these traditional sports competitions and events aimed
to spread the influence of Viva China’s sports among the
masses more quickly.

v
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Chairman’s Statement E B S

In the meantime, the Group was engaged in continuous negotiation with various
business partners to invest and participate in different sports-related projects.

In December 2018, we entered into an agreement to invest in “Snake Esports”
by way of convertible loan. By entering e-sports, an emerging industry with

vast development potential, and investing in an e-sports team under League of
Legends Pro League (LPL), the Group is intended to capitalise on the resources of
emerging sports, extend its reach to dynamic young sports consumers, and create
synergy with its traditional sports resources. In addition, we are assessing and
negotiating on potential merger and acquisition projects for leisure sports venues,
as part of the Group'’s initiatives to broaden its sports asset portfolio and deliver
maximum synergy among its business segments.
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‘

Developing the Business of
Sports, Health and Leisure Gonsumables

As China quickened its pace to develop the sports industry and urbanisation in
recent years, the Group estimates a rapid increase in public demand for sports,
heath and leisure consumables, with the market of such products about to
embrace tremendous business opportunities. Hence, we have started to explore
such projects that pertain to sports, health and leisure consumables, with the view
of developing new business for the Group in the long run and providing the public
with a full range of such services and products.

Given the rising per capita income of Chinese residents as well as the Chinese
government’s continuous urbanisation drive and initiatives to promote national
fitness, the Group expects that such conditions will continue to benefit sports-
related consumption in China, including the utilisation of sports venues and
facilities, sports service, and sports, health and leisure consumables. With that
in mind, the Group will uphold its corporate mission of promoting a healthy and
sportive lifestyle among Chinese people, expedite its development of sports
destinations, coordinate major sports competitions and events, invest in the
emerging e-sports project, and spare no effort to expand the new business of
sports, health and leisure consumables.

VIVA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED J£ AL+ Bl ¥ IR G FR A 7]
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Chairman’s Statement E B S

Finally, on behalf of the Board, | would like to thank our Shareholders and
business partners for their constant trust in and staunch support to the Group. In
2019, we undertake to go with full force in building an even stronger operation
team and expanding our principal businesses at a faster pace, so that the Group
can become a leading integrated sports enterprise with broader room for industrial
growth and greater value in store for our Shareholders,

LI Ning
Chairman, Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director
22 March 2019, Hong Kong
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BUSINESS
REVIEW X#5[0)EA

Sports Park & Sports Centre

In 2018, the Group has endeavoured to participate in the development, operation
and management of sports destinations, which mainly comprise Li Ning Sports
Park and Li Ning Sports Centre. By providing a broad spectrum of localised,
professional and accessible indoor and outdoor leisure sports venues and facilities,
training and services for popular sports and leisure activities, as well as value-
added services such as sports training and coaching courses, production and
coordination of conferences and team activities, catering, retail, entertainment and
health management at these sports destinations, we aimed at driving people’s
participation in sports and leisure activities, while creating diversified sources of
revenue for the Group.

VIVA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED J£ AL+ Bl ¥ IR G FR A 7]
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During the Reporting Period, the Group operated and managed three sports
destinations namely Yangzhou Li Ning Sports Park, Linyi Li Ning Sports Centre,
and Ningbo Hangzhou Bay Li Ning Sports Park. Linyi Li Ning Sports Centre and
Ningbo Hangzhou Bay Li Ning Sports Park officially commenced operation in
January 2018 and October 2018, respectively.

Business Review % &I
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‘

Yangzhou Li Ning Sports Park

BNFRESR

VIVA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED J£ AL+ Bl ¥ IR G FR A 7]

Linyi Li Ning Sports Centre
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Business Review % &I

Ningbo Hangzhou Bay Li Ning Sports Park

ERAMNESERER

Other Business Hith 2%

During the Reporting Period, the Group has managed to establish cooperative WEHAN AEEBERRABERPHEBRE
business relationship with our business partners and major customers through TERHEEEEM U R A PI1E @54 2 2%
sales of construction materials and provision of planning and design consultancy RIEERHEA S LR ARG IR
services to potential customers or business partners on their respective BREALRIERFPFMBEBEIERE 1A

community development projects, and has already brought about opportunities for ~ AEERR TS TR Z @R 2 HEEE B
sports destinations and community development projects to the Group in various M Rt EEREE S -
places across the PRC.
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‘

COORDINATION AND
INVESTMENT OF
SPORTS COMPETITIONS
AND EVENTS

HEBESIDEABRKRE

In 2018, the Group has spared no effort to encourage and enhance social
participation in sports activities through participating in commercial development
of various sports competitions and events in the PRC by providing sponsors

and cooperative partners with tailored sponsorship and marketing strategies and
services while integrating with event-specific elements, as well as event production
and related marketing consultancy services. Moreover, we actively explored and
implemented cooperation and investment projects related to sports events and
services with development potential. With the above initiatives, we aimed to realise
sports assets diversification, achieve synergy among the businesses, and hence
elevate the commercial values of the sports assets under our investment and
management.

VIVA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED J£ AL+ Bl ¥ IR G FR A 7]
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Basketball Bk
The Group provided commercial development and marketing services for Chinese REHRN - AEBME-Z—+t /T \&E
University Basketball Association (“CUBA”) and Chinese High School Basketball F7HRBIREAEREE ([CUBAJ) K+
League — Chinese Junior School Basketball League (‘CHBL/CJBL") in their )= & BREE B ([CHBL,CJBL | ) iR it s 3
2017/2078 season during the Reporting Period. HE R TIGHERERS -
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‘

Qver the season, we lined up numerous renowned commercial brands

that covered various industries (eg. retail, food and beverage, gaming and
entertainment, etc.) as sponsors and cooperative partners to the basketball
leagues. We tailor-made and helped carry out extensive marketing campaigns for
the brands to increase their appearances on-site and off-site, and on traditional
and social media platforms, etc, in reaching more targeted customers.

T T

Attracted 10,242 players C B A
(2016/2017 Season: 7,434 U

players) from 835 teams SEASON g i
(2016/2017 Season: 620

teams) in 10 major zones,

among the 33 zones that covered
municipalities, provinces and autonomous
regions in the PRC where the Group owed the
commercial development rights.

Hit rate of the dominating discussion topic of CUBA
official weibo “#CUBA & # 5 #" recorded a viewership
of over 500 million fimes.

VIVA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED J£ AL+ Bl ¥ IR G FR A 7]
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In addition, for the first time we engaged in the coordination and marketing of SN BPNTREANEELE[2018FFE
“2018 Li-Ning 3+1 Basketball League’ in eight zones in the PRC during the year. ~ 3+1EREE | £2 B/ \(BER 2 % AFMEE
We carried out diversified and intensive publicity initiatives for the league, including ~ T{E- BBHITZ TREMNEERE B81F
crossover cooperation with a well-known photographer for video collection, KOL HLAZ B A ETTRIBBENE RS 1E KoL

(key opinion leaders in online channels) video release, and webcast of sports (BB EIREG BEERESE K
events to vigorously promote the streetball culture. NHBEBEER UL -

A
L

Moreover, the Group took part in the commercial operation of certain authorisation AN REBRREFANLSHBA R RS S/
for CBA, the highest-ranking professional basketball league in the PRC, and provided B R IR BCBAR E N MR EZ B E S
it with sponsorship and marketing related services during the Reporting Period. B AERRMEETISHEEMAEBERE -
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‘

Running

The Li Ning 10K Running League in which the Group has participated in its
commercial development and marketing over the years has been turned into

a running carnival with enriched content namely “Li Ning Fun Run Festival” in
2018. The running event comprised a 10K running league, a 3K family run, a
steeplechase experience zone and creative marketplace, with an aim to increase
the coverage of participants of different age groups and interests.

VIVA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED J£ AL+ Bl ¥ IR G FR A 7]
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Q O Business Review (5[0
Under the operation and marketing efforts of the Group, the running event was EAREEMNEENMHET BRIINEF
carried out in six PRC cities including Wuhan, Shanghai, Kunming, Xi'an, Beijing BE2R A EmwS BERZE LE -EH-

and Shenzhen with over 50,000 participants throughout the year. The Group has B bR AR 4B 28 A HUE50,000A ©
enhanced onsite experience in more interactive forms to better atiract the public's ~ BEBIRBMATEZESHERN  EF T/28

participation, and succeeded in elevating the commercial value of the running BRUARIRSIKREZL2HE RS AE
event by introducing more commercial brands of different industries as sponsors SEETRTENRERBEREDARE
and collaborative partners. TEREE IR A EEE -
_—
—
—
_—
—
—
_—
—
—
. |
— |
-
- ]
-
-
]
[
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Further, the Group was engaged in the planning, coordination and marketing N AEBEOEZRER_FT—/\FHAE
promotion of a running event based on the theme of a science fiction movie in I LR UNAJEXRETENE
Shanghai in May 20718. Moreover, the Group was involved in certain marketing WEBNRE HBARMISGHEEIE - A%
and advertising related activities in relation to an established local running event BN T —N\F+— ALEHINH T K
in Hangzhou hosted by the local government and related authorities in November [RFREBE REEhENN—E RS
2018. BrETHSHEERESEBEEE-
E-Sports EFHE

In December 2018, the Group entered into an RZZE—N\FE+A AEEEZBHHENA
agreement to acquire 80% equity interests in ] ERE R T LA K B E A R
“Snake Esports” by way of convertible loan within % [Snake® F Bt BB 2430 | HUB0% AR 7 - 1t 18
a manageable time. Such capital investment is BRGATBHBUAAER 2 NI EREBT -

expected to be funded by internal resources of the Group.
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Founded in September 2013, Snake Esports has its League of Legends (LOL)
team serving as a backbone of League of Legends Pro League (LPL), the most
established professional event under the leading Chinese e-sports series LOL,
winning various competitions including the first place in “2014 LOL Hero of
Cities Spring Championship”. The team also captured the second place in “LOL
Secondary Pro League (LSPL) Summer Split" in the same year, and the third
place during “LPL Summer Split" in 2015,

The Group is convinced that e-sports is an emerging industry equipped with

both the core value of traditional sports and the potential for future output, and
that there exists tremendous development potential in the consumer market for
e-sports competitions as well as their derivative products and services. Not only
does our capital investment in Snake Esports and its team enhance the Group's
sports asset portfolio, it also allows the Group to benefit from the swift growth of
the e-sports industry. With such investment, we can leverage on the club to reach
the younger population who boasts stronger spending power, help us tap into the
sports consumer market of younger generation, and explore the commercial value
of the “fans economy”. We expect such investment to be mutually beneficial and
synergetic with the Group’s existing businesses and resources.

[Snake® T B XBEIBINLRN —F —=4F
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EFHRIER (RHHRE) RSRRBER
R BEBEBE ] (PLA T EBE
ZRRLBTER BER_T—MOF[R
MMBERTAEFEEETAREIRE
BE REFR[REBEFRBRXBEES
BIRETE BFERIPLEFE| KEFE

== o
=T

rEBFEETFHREE —EAHEBEREEZ
DEEMARELBENNFTERESRE MEF
BEHBEEARTEERMREAEEM S E
[B7E N EER o B AP¥T [ Snake s T #5 B (B 245 |
NHEHBKHE R AR T 8558 L A& B R
THRBEEEMSG HiEEEASEZERE
FHREFNSRER WaEHEBELEHE
EELHBENRBNTEER  FHERMA
BRERHRHOEEHEMISRERE [HHL
EIMFEEE RMBEEHILIBERERE L
MEAAREEIR AR EBMERE B E £ W
EE

Annual Report 2018 FE 3R

25



26

Business Review % 7% Ol Ef

Ll

‘

KEY RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES, CUSTOMERS
AND SUPPLIERS

Employees, customers and suppliers are crucial to the success of the Group. As
such, the Company has maintained a smooth communication with all stakeholders
to establish mutual trust, in pursuing outstanding environmental, social and
governance performance.

The Group adopts a people-oriented approach to formulate its human resource
policy, to provide employees with reasonable remuneration and welfare and make
adjustments when appropriate. Moreover, in addition to requiring employees to
comply with occupational safety rules and procedures, the Group also cares

for the well-being of employees by launching various staff caring programs for
employees to relax. The Group also offers employees with extensive training
programs to enhance their lateral skills, enabling them to have better development
opportunities in the long run.

The Group strives to provide goods and services of the best quality to our
customers. By listening to customers’ feedback, the Group has established
effective communication channels, and maintains a cordial relationship with our
customers. The Group believes that the success of the Group lies in quality of
service. Hence, the Group is committed to building an integrated sports platform
featured with spectating and participatory projects, aiming to meet the needs

of our customers with quality sports resources and involve the public in sports
events.

The Group dedicates itself to establishing a long-term partnership with its
suppliers. To maintain a cordial relationship, it is crucial that we ensure the
products and services provided by suppliers meet the specified requirements. The
Group has established strict procurement standards, performed regular quality
inspection to maintain the quality of products and services.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

As a responsible corporate citizen, the Group attaches high importance to
environmental issues. Though the Group is not a high-pollution generated
enterprise, it actively integrates the concepts of environmental protection and
green building into different business segments as practicable as possible.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The Group's operations are mainly carried out by the Company’s subsidiaries in
the PRC while the Company itself is listed on the Stock Exchange. In order to
minimise the environmental, social and governance risks, the Group operates its
business in a manner that satisfies the relevant laws and regulations in respect
of employee benefits, safety and environment. During the Reporting Period, we
have complied with the relevant laws and regulations in the jurisdictions where it
operates, i.e. the PRC and Hong Kong, in all material respects.

For more information about the measures adopted by the Group for environmental

protection and regulatory compliance during this financial year, please refer to the
environmental, social and governance report of this annual report.
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PROSPECTS

In its updated report of World Economic Outlook released in late January 2019,
the International Monetary Fund lowered its forecast of global economic growth to
3.5% for 2019, which was lower than that of 2018, and expected global growth
to slow down. Moreover, China has set its GDP growth target at 6%-6.5% for
2019 at its Government Work Report delivered in March 2019, which is slightly
lower than the GDP growth of 6.6% in 2018. Hence, we can perceive that 2019
is expected to witness a slowdown in both international and domestic economy,
with downward risks in the pipeline. In particular, it is anticipated that the China-
US trade situation and the uncertainty of global politics will generate further
fluctuations in the macroeconomic environment and pose a threat to business
investments across the globe. This may bring challenges to the Group in its
business development trajectory during 2019.

Nevertheless, the Group remains optimistic about its business prospects in 2019,
on the back of favourable national policies and local governments’ supports to
the implementation of sports industry projects in various cities. In January 2019,
the General Administration of Sport and the National Development and Reform
Commission co-published the notice on the Action Plan for Further Boosting
Sports Consumption (2019-2020), which set out the goal that total national
sports consumption will reach RMB1.5 trillion by 2020, with a significantly higher
percentage of per capita sports consumption expenditure to total consumption
expenses. In particular, the priority tasks comprise vigorously promoting leisure
fitness consumption; proactively executing the “Sports +" projects to push
forward integrated development between sports and various other industries and
create a new mode of operation for sports consumption; greatly developing the
sports training market; building a variety of sports complexes and strengthening
the construction of accessible sports facilities. The above policies are a natural
match with the Group's corporate mission and business strategies. Hence, by
staying in line with the orientation of national development, the Group will continue
to develop sports destinations, and coordinate sports competitions, events and
services in 2019, Meanwhile, in response to the rapid emergence of “experiential
consumer group” in the PRC, with people indulging interests on sports, health,
leisure and entertainment, the Group will actively identify merger and acquisition
projects of various sports, health and leisure consumables in 2019 to satisfy the
increasingly diversified needs of the experiential consumer group. While creating
experiences for the people, the Group will also bring in enormous consumption
opportunities by leveraging such sports, health and leisure consumables.

Although its application to the Stock Exchange for the proposed transfer of listing
from the GEM to the Main Board in January 2018 lapsed in January 2019, the
Group believes that the lapse of the application has no material adverse effect on
its existing business operations and financial position. Instead, this serves as a
stronger catalyst for us to focus on our principal business strategies and actively
procure more sports destinations as well as other sports, health and leisure
related investment projects to materialise in 2019, which will create value for our
Shareholders in the long run.
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RESULTS

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group’s consolidated revenue

was HK$1,134.6 million (2017: HK$612.5 million), representing an increase

of 85.2%. The increase in revenue was mainly driven by improvements in the
contribution from both the sports segment and the community development
segment especially due to new commercial contracts signed with customers in
year 2018. Gross profit of the Group for the year was HK$166.7 million (2017:
HK$94.5 million), representing an increase of HK$72.2 million or 76.4% as
compared to the previous year. The significant increase in gross profit was in line
with the revenue improvement in both the sports and community development
segments.

The Group’s other income and other gains-net for the year amounted to HK$24.5
million (2017: HK$42.1 million). Other income and other gains-net during the
year was mainly attributable to government grants of HK$21.2 million (2017:
HK$35.9 million) and interest income of HK$6.5 million (2017: HK$5.1 million).

Selling and distribution expenses for the year amounted to HK$41.2 million
(2017: HK$21.6 million), representing an increase of HK$19.6 million or 90.7%
as compared to the year of 2017. The increase was mainly due to additional
marketing and promotional expenditures and staff cost incurred as a result of
new sponsorship and marketing related services provided in relation to a top-
tier professional basketball league in the PRC, and the operation commencement
of two new sports parks during the year, which was in line with our business
expansion.

Administrative expenses and other operating expenses (“Administrative Expenses”)
incurred in the year amounted to HK$154.0 million (2017: HK$184.8 million),
which represents a decrease of HK$30.8 million or 16.7% as compared to the
year of 2017. The decrease in Administrative Expenses was primarily due to

the decrease in share option expenses of HK$39.5 million and decrease in fair
value loss of investment properties of HK$27.8 million. Administrative Expenses
included non-cash items which amounted to HK$38.2 million (2017: HK$92.1
million), mainly representing impairment loss of trade receivables and other
receivables of HK$17.7 million, share options expenses of HK$13.1 million,
foreign exchange loss and depreciation of property, plant and equipment, etc.
Excluding these major non-cash items, Administrative Expenses for the year would
be HK$115.8 million (2017: HK$92.7 million), which represents an increase of
24.9% due to organic growth,
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Finance costs for the year amounted to HK$83.7 million (2017: HK$87.2
million), which represents a slightly decrease of 4.0%. The decrease in finance
costs was primarily attributable to the decrease in average bank and other loans
balance during the year as compared to the previous year.

Li Ning Co is accounted for as an associate of the Group. The Group has adopted
the provision contained in HKAS 28 whereby it is permitted to include the
attributable share of associate’s results based on the financial statements drawn
up to a non-coterminous period end where the difference must be no greater than
three months. During the year, the Group shared the results of Li Ning Co based
on its adjusted financial results for the twelve months ended 30 September 2018
adjusted by any significant events or transactions for the period from 1 October
2018 to 31 December 2018. There is no non-coterminous period end for other
associates and joint ventures.

During the vear, the Group shared the profits less losses of associates and joint
ventures amounting to HK$182.3 million (2017: HK$48.2 million). The significant
increase was the combined result of improvement in the associates” operations
and no deemed partial disposal loss in the year.

During the vear, the Group has recorded a net profit attributable to equity holders
of HK$77.0 million comparing to a net loss attributable to equity holders of
HK$109.7 million for the year 2017. The turnaround was mainly due to the
improvement in our revenue and gross profit, improvement in the share of
profits less losses of associates and joint ventures, and reduction in non-cash
Administrative Expenses.

SEGMENT

Community Development

Community development segment comprises operation of sports parks and sports
centres; development of communities; provision of community development
consultancy and subcontracting services; property development for sales and
investment; and research and development, manufacturing, marketing and sales of
construction materials.
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The Group has been dedicating its effort to promote a sportive and healthy
lifestyle in the community. Echoing the PRC government's strategy to promote
nationwide physical fitness, the Group actively seeks cooperation with different
prospective contracting parties, including local governments, property development
companies, construction and landscaping companies, and established financial
institutions. The Group has been selecting suitable cooperation opportunities to
invest in and operate potential community development projects, including sports
community and sports parks, and sports-related commercial opportunities that
promote healthier living and sports awareness in the PRC. The Group will continue
to invest in development and related opportunities in sports communities with
enormous growth prospects in the PRC. It is the Group’s long-term strategy to
build a comprehensive community development network, including both hardware
and software elements, in order to develop high quality, environmentally friendly
and profitable communities. We trust that the expected vertical and horizontal
expansions and integration of this business segment will generate values for our
shareholders in the long run.

In July 2015, the Group had successfully acquired the land use right with a

site area of approximately 23,334 square meters for a total consideration of
approximately RMB168.4 million (equivalent to approximately HK$210.2 million).
The land is located in Guangling Xincheng, Yangzhou, Jiangsu Province of the PRC
and adjacent to the Yangzhou Li Ning Sports Park. Yangzhou Li Ning Sports Park
is the first sports park managed and operated by the Group.

In November 2017, the Group had secured the operating and management rights
for the Linyi Li Ning Sports Centre which is located at the centre of Linyi city

of Shandong Province and invested by the People’s Government of Linyi. Linyi

Li Ning Sports Centre aims to provide the neighbourhood with various sports-
related facilities and services. Officially managed and operated by the Group since
January 2018, Linyi Li Ning Sports Centre has started to generate additional
revenue to the Group.

In May 2018, the Group had entered into the operating and management
agreement for the Ningbo Hangzhou Bay Li Ning Sports Park. Located in
Hangzhou Bay New Zone, Ningbo city of Zhejiang province of the PRC, and
managed and operated by the Group, Ningbo Hangzhou Bay Li Ning Sports
Park has started to generate additional revenue to the Group and broadened the
Group's community development network.
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The community development segment generated revenue totalling HK$771.3
million (2017: HK$434.6 million) for the year ended 31 December 2018,

which represents an increase of HK$336.7 million or 77.5% as compared to
the year of 2017. In particular, the operating revenue of sports parks recorded
an encouraging growth of 106.3% during the year, as driven by the increase

in sports parks facilities hiring income, sports parks rental income and sales of
merchandise through two new sports parks. The segment revenue was mainly
derived from the sales of construction materials, sports parks operations and
community development consultancy services as the Group expanded its business
network in tandem with the development of this segment. The Group’s strategy

is to expand into the upstream and downstream industry networks as an integral
part of further build-out of our community development business. We expanded
the construction materials business network and managed to establish good
working relationships with various construction materials suppliers and customers,
S0 as to lay a solid foundation for our construction of and investment in sports
community projects in different cities. Taking into account the expenses incurred
for potential community development projects, this segment reported an operating
profit of HK$10.2 million (2017: operating profit of HK$36.2 million) during the
year which represented a decrease of HK$26.0 million or 71.8%. The decrease
was mainly attributable to the decrease in community development consultancy
services income and government grants.

Sports

The sports segment continued its business which encompasses event production
and coordination of sports competitions, sports talent management, and sports-
related marketing and consultancy services. For the year ended 31 December
2018, our sports segment generated revenue totalling HK$363.3 million (2017:
HK$177.9 million), representing a significant increase of 104.2%. The increase in
sports segment’s revenue was mainly due to the new sponsorship and marketing
related services provided in relation to a top-tier professional basketball league
in the PRC. The sports segment recorded an operating profit of HK$51.9 million
(2017: operating profit of HK$19.5 million). The increase in operating profit was
mainly attributable to the improvement in segment revenue and gross profit, but
was partially offset by the increase in advertising and promotional expenditures.
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The Group continued to provide talent management services for commercial
engagements for individual athletes and national teams. The Group has succeeded
in realising the commercial values of our managed sports talents by arranging
them to participate in selected and diversified commercial activities and gaining
public exposure. It is the Group’s strategy to drive the establishment of an
integrated sports platform by leveraging the existing resources of its sports
business. The Group will therefore continue its effort to capture and maximise

the commercial values of the sports resources under our management, and
encourage social participation in sports activities through commercial management
of popular sporting events and competitions, sports talent management, as well
as providing sports-related marketing and consultancy services, and engaging in
community development with a sports theme.

Financial Position

As at 31 December 2018, the net assets value of the Group has decreased to
HK$3,934.5 million from HK$4,038.5 million as at 31 December 2017. The
decrease was mainly due to the exchange translation difference, but was partially
offset by the net profit, the proceeds from issue of ordinary shares upon exercise
of share options, equity-settled share option arrangements, acquisition of a
subsidiary and share of associates’ reserve during the year.

The total non-current assets of the Group increased from HK$3,793.4 million as
at 31 December 2017 to HK$3,867.7 million as at 31 December 2018, which
represents an increase of HK$74.3 million. The increase was mainly brought
about by the intangible assets and property, plant and equipment arose from the
step acquisition of a subsidiary during the year, and increase in deposits and other
receivables, but partially offset by the decrease in the interests in associates and
joint ventures.

Current assets of the Group recorded a decrease by HK$158.7 million from
HK$1,352.0 million as at the beginning of the year to HK$1,193.3 million as at
the end of the year. The key components of the current assets at the reporting
date were cash and bank deposits of HK$380.7 million (2017: HK$521.0
million), stock of properties, and trade debtors and bills receivable. The decrease
in the Group's cash and bank deposits balance was mainly due to the net cash
outflow used in operating activities during this year. The increase in trade debtors
and hills receivable was in line with the increase in revenue as a result of organic
growth in business.
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The total current liabilities of the Group as at 31 December 2018 were HK$291.0
million, representing a decrease of HK$5.8 million or 2.0% from that as at 31
December 2017. As at 31 December 2018, the key components of non-current
liabilities were the carrying amounts of the liability component of the convertible
notes issued in December 2016 of HK$819.6 million (2017: HK$750.6 million)
and non-current deferred income of HK$10.0 million (2017: HK$22.0 million).

Liquidity and Financial Resources

The Group recorded a net cash outflows from operations for the current year of
HK$1471.2 million, representing an increase of HK$120.5 million compared to last
year (2017: HK$20.7 million). The increase in operating cash outflows was mainly
due to the increase in trade debtors and bills receivable, and other working capital
compared to last year, which was in line with our business expansion. A net cash
inflows in investing activities of HK$57.4 million for the current year (2017: net
cash outflows of HK$63.5 million), representing a turnaround of HK$120.9 million
compared to last year. The investing cash inflows in 2018 was mainly due to the
proceeds from disposal of investment properties and dividend received from an
associate during the year, while the investing cash outflows in 2017 was mainly
due to the loan advance to third parties and payments for acquisition of associates
and joint ventures. A net cash outflows from financing activities of HK$20.2
million for the current year (2017: HK$220.1 million), representing a decrease of
HK$199.9 million compared to last year. The financing cash outflows in 2018 was
mainly due to the interest payments and partially offset by the proceeds from issue
of ordinary shares upon exercise of share options during the year. As a result, the
cash and cash equivalent of the Group as at 31 December 2018 decreased by
HK$140.3 million from the beginning of the year.

The Group had banking facilities of HK$460.0 million (2017: HK$468.0 million),
of which HK$40.0 million has been utilised (2017: HK$40.0 million have been
utilised) as at 31 December 2018. The Group’s gearing ratio was approximately
0.11(2017: 0.06) as at 31 December 2018. The Group defines gearing ratio as
ratio of net debt over equity plus net debt in which net debt represents total bank
and other borrowings less cash and bank balances (including pledged deposit).
The current ratio (ratio of current assets to current liabilities) of the Group as at 31
December 2018 was approximately 4.1 (2017: 4.6). The Group’s gearing level
and liquidity position has been maintained at a healthy level as at the reporting
date. It is the Group's strategy to maintain a healthy and effective gearing ratio in a
range of O to 1.

RZE—N\E+_A=+—0 KXEELRH
& 4858 5291,000,0008 0 BT —+4F
+ = A=+—H R 45,800,000/ 7T 52.0% °
/\_

o | |

/tﬁ/
\

A
J
—
_FH
_|_
|
i
1]
_|_

|

jui|
w
T
Sit
@
il

BrZIER» AR _E— A NF+- A%
TZABRREENERESR Y HEEES
819,600,000/ 7t ( —Z — -+ 4 : 750,600,000
77T ) K 3B B iR T Yk A10,000,00058 7T ( =
T — 44 : 22,000,000 7T ) °

RBEERUBER

AEERAFEHSHKCE FHELECH
£ E B A141,200,00058 7T B A F AN
120,500,0005% 7T ( — & — 4= 4F : 20,700,000
JC) o £ IR I T E E R R EER K
NEWREBEAREMEEESREFEM -
ZERERMOEBER N AFEHG
WEEEIR &M AFEES7,400,0008 7T (=F
—+F IR &7 HF5863,500,000% T) -
EF AL =58 5120,900,0008 T e —ZF — N\
FREBERADEEARFEALEREY
ECHBRERKER—HEBERAFIKRE
RZE—tF BRERERENEEHRT
FoAMERRWERE AT REEDER
NHB- AFEHEMETHESRHFE
420,200,000 7T ( =& —+ 4 : 220,100,000
BIT) B EF R A199,900,0008 T — &
—\ERmERSREDNIEZHRFENFK
I E o 3 F AR B AR R T T (R R B 1T AR D P
BRIEHAEE A AEER_ZE—N\F
TZA=+—HBZBAERASEBYRFY
A 42140,300,00058 7T °

AEBECEBRITAEL60,000,000%8
7T (ZZF—+%:468,000,0008T) » &
F40,000,0008 TER = —N\F+ =
A=+—B#&HBA(ZZE—+tF :E8HAH
40,000,000 L) - RZE—NF+ = A
=+ —H AEECZEEAGBHRELHAR
ZE—tF:006) AKEBFEEEEL
ERTAREBFHEAREMNEE FEZLL
T HERERFREERTAEMEERER
ReERRITES (BEEHRFR) RN
—N\F+_A=Z+—HB AEBZRHL X
(RBEEHRDEBZLER)NAIIE (=
T—+tF 46fF) HREBH AEBZE
ERBEKEEABE MR ERFTER K
SEEBAREBEEREAEBU I EEAEL
ENFORI1 2/

Annual Report 2018 FE 3R

33



34

Financial Review B4 35 D1 @

A,

‘

Financial Management Policy and Foreign Currency Risk

The Group’s finance division at its headquarters in Hong Kong manages the
financial risks of the Group. One of the key objectives of the Group’s treasury
policies is to manage its exposure to fluctuations in foreign currency exchange
rates. It is the Group's policy not to engage in any speculative activities. As the
Group operates primarily in Hong Kong and the PRC, most of the revenue and
trading transactions are settled in either HK$ or RMB. Accordingly, the majority of
the Group’s net current assets were denominated in either HK$ or RMB. Deposits
placed in various banks are mainly denominated in these two currencies. The
Group maintains its proportion of deposits in RMB and HK$ in line with its future
business and investment plans. The policies in place to manage foreign currency
risk have been followed by the Group for several years and are considered to be
effective with the current foreign currency risk still manageable. The Group has
assessed its foreign exchange rate risk exposure and has not entered into any
foreign exchange hedging arrangement during the year and as at the reporting
date.

Charge on Assets

As at 31 December 2018, interests in an associate with carrying amount of
approximately HK$875.7 million (2017: HK$867.5 million) had been charged as
security for a bank borrowing of a subsidiary and convertible notes issued by the
Company.

Commitments for Property Development/Capital Expenditure

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had commitments totalling HK$616.9
million in relation to capital contribution to the Sports Cultural Industry Fund,
associates and joint ventures and for property development in the PRC which were
contracted but not provided for (2017: HK$645.9 million).

Material Transactions

In June 2018, the Group completed the step acquisition of 20% equity interest
in ENEE (RE)BEMBREBREAMRAF (IENLEE) fora
consideration of approximately HK$14.6 million. The Group's interest in 3F 12
P increased from 50% to 70% and 3E L1 B changed from a joint venture
to a subsidiary of the Group. The acquisition was made as part of the Group’s
strategy to expand the sports and physical rehabilitation business in the PRC.

Employees and Remuneration Policies

Staff remuneration comprised of monthly salaries, mandatory provident fund
contributions, medical benefits, housing benefits, education allowances and
discretionary share options issued based on their contribution to the Group. Staff
costs (including Directors’ remuneration) for the year ended 31 December 2018
amounted to HK$76.2 million (2017: HK$86.0 million). The Group also engages
professional consultants to ensure the competitiveness of the remuneration

policy which, in turn, would support the business growth of the Group. As at 31
December 2018, the Group employed 355 full-time employees (2017 248) and
their remuneration was calculated with reference to the market rates.
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Directors’ and Senior Management’s Biographies

MR. LI NING

CHAIRMAN, CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER AND EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Li Ning, aged 56, has been the chairman (the “Chairman”), an executive
Director and a member of the executive committee of the Company since June
20710. Mr. Li was also appointed as the chairman of the nomination committee
and the chief executive officer (the “Chief Executive Officer”) of the Company with
effect from 15 March 2012 and 22 May 2013 respectively. He is a director of
various subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Li is the founder of the LI-NING brand.
He has been appointed as an executive director of Li Ning Co* since 4 March
2004 and is currently its executive chairman and interim chief executive officer.
Mr. Li is the younger brother of Mr. Li Chun, a retired non-executive Director and
the uncle of Mr. Li Qilin, who is an executive Director.

Mr. Li‘is one of the most outstanding athletes in the 20th century. In the 6th
World Cup Gymnastics Competition in 1982, Mr. Li unprecedentedly won six
gold medals in men'’s artistic gymnastics events and was named the “Prince of
Gymnastics” ("8 & E ") in the PRC. In the 23rd Los Angeles Olympic Games
in 1984, Mr. Li won three gold, two silver and one bronze medals, making him
the athlete winning the most medals of that Olympic Games. In 1987, Mr. Li
became the Asian member of Athlete’'s Commission of the International Olympic
Committee. From 1993 to 2000, Mr. Li served as a member of the Men'’s
Artistic Gymnastics Technical Committee of the Federation Internationale De
Gymnastique. He is currently an honorary member of the Federation Internationale
De Gymnastique. In 1999, Mr. Li was voted one of the “World's Most Excellent
Athletes in the 20th Century” by the World Sports Correspondent Association.

After retiring from his athlete career in 1989, Mr. Li initiated the idea of LI-NING
brand with the goal of creating the first national sports goods brand in the PRC.

He has dedicated the past over 20 years to the development of the business of
LN Group, achieving great contribution to the development of the sporting goods
industry in the PRC.

Mr. Li holds a bachelor's degree in law from School of Law of Peking University
(dE KR E8) | an executive M.B.A. degree from Guanghua School of
Management of Peking University (b R K B2 J =& 32 2B ) | an honorary
doctorate in technology from Loughborough University in the United Kingdom and
an honorary degree of doctor of humanities from The Hong Kong Polytechnic
University. In June 2010, Mr. Li was also conferred honorary fellowship from The
Hong Kong University of Science and Technology.
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Mr. Li has also been actively involved in charities via his “Li Ning Foundation” ( 2=
= E &) and his genuine support to the active and retired Chinese athletes and
coaches in establishing “The Chinese Athletes Educational Foundation” ( /P B &
FEHBEES ), which aims at providing subsidies for further education and
trainings for athletes and to support educational development in impoverished and
remote areas in the PRC. In October 2009, Mr. Li was appointed by the United
Nations World Food Programme (WFP) as “WFP Goodwill Ambassador Against
Hunger”.

MR. CHAN LING

CHIEF OPERATING OFFICER AND EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Chan Ling, aged 47, is an executive Director, an authorised representative and
the compliance officer of the Company and a member of each of the executive
committee and the remuneration committee of the Company. Mr. Chan was also
appointed as the chief operating officer of the Company with effect from 22
May 2013. Mr. Chan had been a member and the chairman of the nomination
committee of the Company since 2 June 2010 and 23 June 2010 respectively,
and ceased to hold any office of this committee on 15 March 2012. Mr. Chan
joined the Group in June 2010 and is a director of Viva China Sports Holding
Limited, Viva China Community Development Holdings Limited and various
subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Chan was the chief executive officer of “The
Chinese Athletes Educational Foundation”. He has over 10 years of working
experience in the media industry and in the sports agency industry.

MR. LI CHUNYANG

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Li Chunyang, aged 50, is an executive Director and a member of the
executive committee of the Company. Mr. Li joined the Group in June 2010 and is
adirector of IENLBHEEF R (b5 ) AR 2 A, Viva China Community
Development Holdings Limited and various subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Li
graduated from Peking University in 2004 with a bachelor’s degree in Economics.
He was one of the founders of “The Chinese Athletes Educational Foundation”. In
1989 and 1991, he won the World Gymnastics Championships.

MR. LI QILIN

EXEGUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Li Qilin, aged 32, was appointed as a non-executive Director in June 2013,
Mr. Li has been re-designated from a non-executive Director to an executive
Director and appointed as a member of the executive committee of the Company
with effect from 13 November 2015, Mr. Li joined the Group in June 2013. Mr. Li
is the general manager of a subsidiary of the Company. Mr. Li has been a director
of Lead Ahead Limited, a substantial shareholder of the Company, since June
2010.
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Mr. Li has been appointed as a non-executive director of Li Ning Co since 13
December 2017 and re-designated as its executive director with effect from 19
June 2018.

Mr. Li has considerable experience in financial services industry and was an
analyst of Persistent Asset Management Limited during the period from January
2010 to July 2013, Mr. Li is the son of Mr. Li Chun, a retired non-executive
Director and the nephew of Mr. Li Ning, the Chairman and the Chief Executive
Officer and an executive Director.

MR. CHAN JAMES

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Chan James, aged 65, is a non-executive Director. Mr. Chan joined the Group
in June 2013. He is an executive director, the project director and a member

of the executive committee of Pacific Century Premium Developments Limited*
("PCPD", Stock Code: 0432). PCPD is mainly engaged in developing and
managing property and infrastructure projects, as well as property investment and
is majority owned by PCCW Limited* (‘PCCW", Stock Code: 0008). Mr. Chan is
responsible for managing various property projects of PCPD and its subsidiaries.
He was responsible for the project execution of the Cyberport project and has
overall responsibility for all aspects of the construction works.

Prior 1o joining PCCW in October 2002, Mr. Chan was a practicing architect
(admitted by the Architects Registration Board in September 19871), with
comprehensive experience in design, planning and land matters, design
development and construction management of major investment properties,
including a wide range of industrial and warehousing, commercial, retail and
residential developments in Hong Kong and overseas. He possesses a wide
spectrum of experience in the property industry.

He has been an independent non-executive director of Beijing Properties
(Holdings) Limited* (Stock Code: 0925) since June 2011, He is also a member
of the board of governors of The Independent Schools Foundation Academy.

Mr. Chan obtained a bachelor of arts in architectural studies (BAAS) degree from
the University of Hong Kong, a bachelor of architecture degree from University of
Dundee in Scotland and an executive master of business administration degree
from Tsinghua University. He is qualified as the Authorised Person (List I) and
Registered Architect in Hong Kong, and is a member of The Hong Kong Institute
of Architects, The Royal Institute of British Architects and The Australian Institute of
Architects.
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MR. MA WING MAN

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Ma Wing Man, aged 53, is a non-executive Director and a member of the
audit committee of the Company. Mr. Ma joined the Group in June 2010. Mr. Ma
was a member of the nomination committee of the Company during the period
from 2 June 2010 to 15 March 2012. Mr. Ma has over 20 years of experience
in finance and administration. Mr. Ma has been employed by “Li Ning Foundation”
as the financial controller since 2005, From 1992 to 2005, Mr. Ma had been
employed first as accountant and later as financial and accounting manager of
Jianlibao Holdings (H.K.) Company Limited, which was a wholesaler and retailer
of Jianlibao drinks. From 1989 to 1991, Mr. Ma was employed as assistant
accountant by Wong's Circuits (PTH) Limited, which was a manufacturer of printed
circuit board and a subsidiary of Wong's International Holdings Limited* (Stock
Code: 0099).

Mr. Ma graduated from Hong Kong Shue Yan College (predecessor of Hong Kong
Shue Yan University) in 1989 with a diploma in business administration. In 1993,
he obtained a diploma in accounting from School of Professional and Continuing
Education, University of Hong Kong. In 1998, he obtained a professional

diploma for financial controllers & finance directors of foreign investment &
foreign enterprise in China, which was jointly awarded by School of Management
Zhongshan University, China and The Hong Kong Management Association. In
2003, he obtained a bachelor of business administration degree with honours in
accounting from the Open University of Hong Kong.

MR. LIEN JOWN JING, VINCENT

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIREGTOR

Mr. Lien Jown Jing, Vincent, aged 58, is an independent non-executive Director
and a member of both the audit committee and the remuneration committee of
the Company. Mr. Lien joined the Group in June 2013. On 16 April 2013, he
has been appointed as a non-executive director of Primeline Energy Holdings Inc.
(TSX Venture Exchange trading symbol: PEH), the shares of which are listed on
the TSX Venture Exchange in Canada. Mr. Lien was an independent non-executive
director of Up Energy Development Group Limited* (Stock Code: 0307) from April
20711 to January 2016, ILFS Wind Power Limited, a Singapore company, from
September 2013 to September 2016, and CT Environmental Group Limited”
(Stock Code: 1363) from April 2014 to October 2017. Mr. Lien was the chairman
and an independent non-executive director of Loyz Energy Limited, a company
listed in Singapore, during the period from November 2013 to November 2014,

VIVA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED J£ AL+ Bl ¥ IR G PR A 7]

Bk X EE

HFHITEE

BRXEE AT BARBIERTE
ERBERZEEKE BR-FT—ZFTFS
AMAXREB - FEXER T —ZTF A=
BE-_Z——F-A+HABAHEEETAK
RARABEZEEENE - BFEERT B RITH
EEAEABEONFLER - FEAEAZT
TFRETEES | EXTAVMKBEE -R
—AWN_FEE-_ZTTRF FRLESER
HEEE (FB)BRAA (—EREHEHE
Rt R TER) BT AS M BEET
ket gEBEZ2 - n—hAN AL FE—hLh—
F EAEETRERPHER AR (—MH
ENRIEEREEN) EERDEGFEE -
FERERPHER AR SR STKEEEE
BRAE) (BHAKSE:0099) KK B QA -

FSEER-NWN\NEEXERBTEHCER
(BEBMCAZME) BESIBEREXE-
R—NAWN=F RESEEASEZEESR
NG BB - R — AN NF BED
RIUABERSREREEREXHEHE
BENTEINBRECRMHAENMBEE
ERENR - R _TT=F REFELQH
RENTIHEEREBEL (@508 -

BRESRHE

BYFHITEE
EREEE B+TN\RE BARABILIE
WTESUREZZESRFNEZEES 2
KE - BREER_E—ZFNAMALRE
B-R—ZT—=FWHA+ "B KEEZTA
Primeling Energy Holdings Inc. ( Z 18 % &5 5FT
BIZEIRSE : PEH ) ZIEHITE S Z R AR
MEMEREZMEBLFRZHMEIFER LT -
EEERBZE——FHNOAEZZT—RF
— AR ETEREREEREEFR AR
(RS :0307) ZBIUIERITEE B =
E—=ZFNAZE_ZT—"FNABEETLH
H03% A J1ILFS Wind Power Limited 2 ¥8 32 3E #0117
EENETOFOAE-_T—+F+A
HEEAPERREEBAER A (RHK
5% 0 1363) Z B IFMITER - EALER T
—ZFt+—AE-_ZT—MNF+— AHBEET
g 7 2 A&l Loyz Energy Limited 2 £ & M
BTEMITES-



Directors’ and Senior Management’s Biographies EE R SR ER A B Z & E

Mr. Lien is currently a director of Wah Hin & Company, a Singapore incorporated
private investment holding company and the Maritime and Port Authority

of Singapore. He has over 25 years of experience in the banking industry,
specialising in corporate finance and capital management in Hong Kong, the
PRC, Singapore and South-east Asia. Mr. Lien held various senior positions at
several major multinational banking institutions including Swiss Bank Corporation
and Bankers Trust & Company. He was the managing director in the financial
institutions & public sector division of ABN AMRO Bank.

Mr. Lien obtained a bachelor degree in business administration from the University
of New Brunswick in 1986, and an honorary doctoral degree in business
administration from Hyupsung University in the Republic of Korea in February
2018,

MR. PAK WAI KEUNG, MARTIN

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIREGTOR

Mr. Pak Wai Keung, Martin, aged 55, is an independent non-executive Director,
the chairman of the audit committee, a member of each of the nomination
committee and the remuneration committee of the Company. Mr. Pak join the
Group in 2019. He has accumulated over 25 years of experience in finance,
accounting and corporate governance affairs. Mr. Pak graduated with a Bachelor
of Commerce from the Murdoch University, Australia in 19971 and a Master of
Corporate Governance from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University in 2009. Mr.
Pak is a fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, an
associate member of The Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators in
the United Kingdom and The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries.

Mr. Pak has been appointed as an independent non-executive director of Nan
Nan Resources Enterprise Limited” (stock code: 1229), Convoy Global Holdings
Limited* (stock code: 1019) and Dragon Mining Limited™ (stock code: 1712)
with effect from 19 September 2017, 8 December 2017 and 5 November 2018
respectively. Mr. Pak was an independent non-executive director of Ta Yang Group
Holdings Limited” (stock code: 1991) during the period from 27 April 2016

to 28 October 2018. The shares of these companies are listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange. From January 2017 to August 2018, Mr. Pak has
been an independent non-executive director of Trony Solar Holdings Company
Limited, trading of its shares on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange has been
suspended since 21 June 2012 and was delisted on 23 August 2018.
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MR. WANG YAN

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Wang Yan, aged 46, is an independent non-executive Director, the chairman of
the remuneration committee, and a member of both the audit committee and the
nomination committee of the Company. Mr. Wang joined the Group in July 2017.
He is currently a director of Sina Corporation (“SINA”, ticker: SINA), the shares of
which are listed on the Nasdag Stock Market in the U.S. In April 1996, Mr. Wang
founded the SRSnet.com division of Beijing Stone Rich Sight Limited (currently
known as Beijing SINA Information Technology Co., Ltd.), one of the subsidiaries
of SINA and served as the head of SRS Internet Group from April 1996 to April
1999. From April 1999 to August 1999, Mr. Wang served as the executive
deputy general manager for production and business development in China of
SINA. From September 1999 to May 2001, Mr. Wang served as the general
manager of China operations of SINA. From June 2001 to May 2003, Mr. Wang
served as the president of SINA. From May 2003 to May 2006, Mr. Wang served
as the chief executive officer of SINA. Since May 2003, Mr. Wang has served as
a director of the board of SINA. From May 2006 to September 2012, Mr. Wang
served as the vice chairman, deputy chairman and chairman of the board of SINA.
Mr. Wang obtained a B.A. in Law from the Université Paris Il in France in July
1997,

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Li Ning, Mr. Chan Ling, Mr. Li Chunyang and Mr. Li Qilin, being the executive
Directors, are also the senior management of the Group.
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Directors’ and Senior Management’s Biographies EE R SR ER A B Z & E

DISCLOSURE ON CHANGES IN INFORMATION OF EREEEREHZHE
DIRECTORS

Pursuant to Rule 17.50A(1) of the GEM Listing Rules, the changes in details mﬁzﬁ-ewt T AR BIIZE17 50A(IE - IRA R R &
of the Directors’ information subsequent to the date of the interim report of the —E—N\FEXNAZFTHIEANEAZH R
Company for the six months ended 30 June 2018 are set out below: i B HHT%: EXEMEHFERIIDOT
Name Details of Changes

#&

BEFER

Mr. Pak Wai Keung, Martin

AEEiLE

appointed as an independent non-executive Director, the chairman of the audit committee and a
member of each of the nomination committee and the remuneration committee of the Company
with effect from 13 February 2019. Details of his appointment were disclosed in the Company’s
announcement dated 13 February 2019

B - NWF_A+=PREZAERARFBIIFNTES EREES F
REZEGNELFHEEENE -FRRESZENFBERARAIBHAZ
—NFE_A+=B2z2RrERE

Mr. Chen Johnny

resigned as an independent non-executive Director, the chairman of the audit committee and a
member of each of the nomination committee and the remuneration committee of the Company with
effect from 13 February 2019
E-Z-NF_AT=ZBEFHTARRBIIIFNTES EXEZESEF E
ZEEKERFMEEGKE

Mr. Li Qilin

FEBLE

The emolument package was revised to an annual director's fee of HK$200,000, a fixed annual
salary of HK$1,560,000 with effect from 13 November 2018 and an annual housing benefit of not
exceeding HK$768,000 with effect from 1 February 2019

FINFBBE AESME B F200,0008 T« B EF 1,560,008 T (B2 —\
F+—A+=RABEH) R THIB768000EF THFEXEEN (B —NLF=
A—HRBAERR)

Mr. Chan Ling

RELAE

The emolument package was revised to an annual director’s fee of HK$200,000 and a fixed annual
salary of HK$1,800,000 together with an annual housing benefit of not exceeding HK$480,000 with
effect from 1 February 2019

%ﬁ@lwﬁ%ﬁ%i%%@éiizoo OOO/%TE @ 7E £ #71,800,0007% 7T 2 1~ #8 1B
480,000 B T FEEFBMN (BT —NAF A —HELER)

Mr. Li Chunyang

The emolument package was revised to an annual director's fee of HK$200,000, a fixed annual
salary of HK$1,300,000 with effect from 1 April 2019 and an annual housing benefit of not
exceeding RMB250,000

FEHEBGEE FHEBREE AE RS T F200,0009 7T« EEFH1,300,0008 7T (E=_F— A1
FOA—BRAR) R TR ARE250000THFEEEERF
*the shares of this company are listed on the Stock Exchange MR R Z IR A EE AT BT
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Report of the Directors
EFERS

W

The Directors present their report and the audited financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2018.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS REVIEW

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The Company and its
subsidiaries are principally engaged in (i) sports competition and event production
and management, sports talent management, and provision of sports-related
marketing and consultancy service; and (i) operation of sports park or sports
centre, provision of community development consultancy and sub-contracting
services, property development for sale and investment and research and
development, manufacturing, marketing and sales of construction materials.

The principal activities and other particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the
Company as at 31 December 2018 are set out in note 37 to the financial
statements.

Further discussion and analysis of the business review required by Schedule 5
to the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance for the year ended 31 December 2018
is set out in the Chairman’s Statement, the Business Review and the Financial
Review of this annual report. This discussion forms part of this Report of the
Directors.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Group’s profit for the year ended 31 December 2018 and the state of
affairs of the Company and the Group as at that date are set out in the financial
statements on pages 104 to 194,

The Directors did not declare an interim dividend and did not recommend the
payment of a final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2018.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company recognizes the importance of maximizing return to Shareholders
and believes that driving growth creates significant value to Shareholders. The
Company has adopted a dividend policy with the objective of achieving right
balance of the amount of dividend and the amount of profits retained in the
business for various purposes. The Board would consider the following factors
before declaring or recommending dividend:.—

financial results of the Company;

Shareholders’ interests;

general business conditions, strategies and future expansion needs;
the Company’s capital requirements;

the payment of cash dividends to the Company from its subsidiaries;

)

CHCHEREA

() possible effects on liquidity and financial position of the Company; and
(@) other factors the Board may deem relevant.

The payment of dividend is also subject to any restrictions under the applicable
laws and the Company’s Articles of Association.
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GROUP FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for the past
five financial years is set out on page 197 of this annual report.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Movements in the property, plant and equipment of the Company and the Group
during the year are set out in note 12 to the financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

During the year, the Company issued 39,192,000 Shares upon exercise of
share options pursuant to the Company’s share option scheme. The consideration
received in aggregate for issue of Shares upon the aforesaid exercise of share
options amounted to HK$21,373,200.

Details of the share capital, the perpetual convertible bonds and the convertible
note during the year are set out in notes 29, 31 and 27 to the financial
statements.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

In December 2016, the Company had issued to Lake Tai Investment Holdings
Limited (“Lake Tai", an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of China Huarong Asset
Management Co., Ltd. (“China Huarong")) the convertible note in the aggregate
principal amount of HK$778,000,000 (the “Convertible Note”) bearing an
interest at the rate of 5% per annum and Lake Tai had paid HK$778,000,000
for subscription of the Convertible Note pursuant to the subscription agreement
dated 5 December 2016 entered into between the Company and Lake Tai (the
“Subscription Agreement”). The Convertible Note is convertible in full at the initial
conversion price of HK$0.840 per Share into a maximum of 926,190,476
Shares at any time during the conversion period, provided that the conversion
rights may not be exercised, if following such exercise, the Company's minimum
public float in Shares cannot be maintained, or if such exercise is prohibited by
the Hong Kong Code on Takeovers and Mergers. The details of the issuance

of the Convertible Note were set out in the Company'’s announcement dated 5
December 2016. No Shares were issued under the Subscription Agreement and
the Convertible Note during the year and up to the date of this report.

For the year ended 31 December 2018, save for the Convertible Note, the Earn-
out Convertible Bonds and the Share Option Scheme (as set out in this section
and the sections of “Directors’ Rights to Acquire Shares and Debentures” and
“Share Option Scheme” in this report), the Company has not entered into any
equity-linked agreement, nor did any equity-linked agreement subsist at the end
of the year.
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A,

RESERVES

As at 31 December 2018, the Company’s reserves available for distribution
to Shareholders comprising share premium account less accumulated losses,
amounted to approximately HK$1,784,280,000 (2017: HK$1,920,710,000).

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the Group during the
year are set out in note 38 to the financial statements and in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity on page 107 respectively.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

In the year under review, sales to the Group’s five largest customers (including LN
Group) accounted for approximately 92% of the total sales for the year and sales
to the largest customer included therein accounted for approximately 29% of the
total sales.

Purchases from the Group’s five largest suppliers accounted for approximately
69% of the total purchases for the year and purchases from the largest supplier
included therein accounted for approximately 27% of the total purchases.

As at 31 December 2018, Mr. Li Ning, the Chairman, the Chief Executive Officer
and an executive Director, was also deemed under Part XV of the SFO to be
interested in 2,561,120 LN Shares held by Alpha Talent Management Limited (a
company wholly-owned by Mr. Li Ning), 7,989,742 LN Shares held as personal
interest and 9,454,734 unvested restricted LN Shares under the restricted share
award scheme of Li Ning Co, which in aggregate amounted to 20,005,596

LN Shares and underlying LN Shares (representing approximately 0.91%
shareholding interest in the share capital of Li Ning Co as at 31 December 2018).
Mr. Li Ning is also the executive chairman, the interim chief executive officer and
an executive director of Li Ning Co. As at 31 December 2018, Mr. Li Qilin, an
executive Director, was also deemed under Part XV of the SFO to have personal
interested in 1,076,000 unvested restricted LN Shares under the restricted share
award scheme of Li Ning Co (representing approximately 0.05% shareholding
interest in the share capital of Li Ning Co as at 31 December 2018). He is also an
executive director of Li Ning Co.

Save as disclosed above for the purpose of the Chapter 18 of the GEM Listing
Rules, none of the Directors, their close associates or any shareholder (which to
the knowledge of the Directors own more than 5% of the Company’s issued share
capital) had an interest in the major customers or suppliers of the Group.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

No pre-emptive rights exist in the jurisdiction of the Cayman Islands in which the
Company is incorporated.
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PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

There was no purchase, sale or redemption by the Company, or any of its
subsidiaries, of any listed securities of the Company during the year.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Li Ning (Chairman & Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Chan Ling (Chief Operating Officer)

Mr. Li Chunyang

Mr. Li Qilin

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Chan James
Mr. Ma Wing Man

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Lien Jown Jing, Vincent
Mr. Pak Wai Keung, Martin
(appointed with effect from 13 February 2019)
Mr. Wang Yan
Mr. Chen Johnny
(resigned with effect from 13 February 2019)

The terms of office of each Director are subject to retirement by rotation in
accordance with the Company’s articles of association.

At the forthcoming annual general meeting, Mr. Li Ning, Mr. Li Chunyang and Mr.
Li Qilin will retire as Directors by rotation and, being eligible, offers themselves
for re-election in accordance with articles 108(A) and 108(B) of the articles of
association of the Company and pursuant to Appendix 15 of the GEM Listing
Rules. Mr. Pak Wai Keung, Martin will retire and, being eligible, offer himself for
re-election in accordance with article 112 of the articles of association of the
Company. Further particulars of the Directors to be re-elected at the forthcoming
annual general meeting are set out in the circular to the shareholders sent

together with this annual report. All other existing Directors shall continue in office.

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the Directors and the senior management of the Group are
set out on pages 35 to 41 of this annual report.
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A,

‘

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting
has a service contract with the Company which is not determinable by the
Company within one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

Particulars of the emoluments of the Directors on a named basis for the year are
set out in note 8 to the financial statements.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the articles of association of the Company, every Director shall be
entitled to be indemnified out of the assets of the Company against all losses or
liabilities which he/she may sustain or incur in or about the execution of the duties
of his/her office or otherwise in relation thereto.

The Company has arranged appropriate directors” and officers’ liability insurance
coverage for the Directors and officers of the Group throughout the year.

DIRECTORS’ MATERIAL INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in this report, there were no other transactions, arrangements
or contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s business to which the
Company's or any of its subsidiaries was a party, and in which a Director or its
connected entities had a material interest (whether directly or indirectly) subsisting
at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

On 29 June 2010, the Company passed an ordinary resolution to adopt a

share option scheme (the “Scheme”) for the purpose of providing incentives to
participants to contribute to the Group and/or to enable the Group to recruit high-
calibre employees and/or attract human resources that are valuable to the Group.
Participants of the Scheme include employee, officer, agent, consultant, business
associate or representative of the Company or any subsidiary or otherwise
contributes to the success of the Group, including any executive, non-executive
or independent non-executive director of the Company or any subsidiary who,

as the Board or a committee comprising Directors and members of the senior
management of the Company (the "Committee”) (as the case may be) may
determine in its absolute discretion, is regarded as valuable human resources of
the Group based on his working experience, knowledge in the industry and other
relevant factors, and subject to such conditions as the Board or the Committee
(as the case may be) may think fit. The Scheme will remain in force for period of
10 years commencing on 29 June 2010.
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The overall limit on the number of Shares which may be issued upon exercise of
all outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under the Scheme and
any other share option schemes of the Company must not, in aggregate, exceed
30% of the number of Shares in issue from time to time. In addition, the total
number of Shares which may be issued upon exercise of all options to be granted
under the Scheme and any other share option schemes of the Company must not,
in aggregate, exceed 10% of the nominal amount of all the Shares in issue as at
the date of adoption of the Scheme (the “Scheme Mandate Limit"). The Company
may, from time to time, refresh the Scheme Mandate Limit by obtaining the
approval of the shareholders in general meeting. Once refreshed, the total number
of Shares which may be issued upon exercise of all options to be granted under
the Scheme and all other share option schemes of the Company under the limit,
as refreshed, must not exceed 10% of the number of Shares in issue as at the
date of approval of the refreshment by the Shareholders. The Scheme Mandate
Limit amounted to 878,060,472 Shares following the approval of refreshment by
the Shareholders on 16 June 2017. As at the date of this report, the total number
of Shares available for issue under the Scheme is 818,060,472, representing
9.24% of the existing number of issued Shares.

The maximum number of shares issuable under share options to each eligible
participant in the Scheme within any 12-month period is limited to 1% of the
shares of the Company in issue as at the proposed date of grant. Any further grant
of share options in excess of this limit is subject to shareholders” approval in a
general meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options under the Scheme may be accepted within
28 days from the date of offer, upon payment of a nominal consideration of
HK$1 in total by the grantee. The exercise period of the share options granted

is determinable by the Board or the Committee, save that such period shall not
be more than 10 years from the date of grant. Unless the Board may otherwise
determine, there is no minimum period required under the Scheme for the holding
of an option before it can be exercised.

The exercise price of share options is determinable by the Board or the
Committee, but shall be at least the highest of () the Stock Exchange closing
price of the Shares on the date of grant of the share options; (ii) the average
Stock Exchange closing price of the Shares for the five trading days immediately
preceding the date of grant; and (iii) the nominal value of the Shares.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends or to vote at
shareholders’ meetings.
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Movement of the share options under the Scheme outstanding as at the end of RBEFEEEH ZEEHE TR RITERE
the reporting year are as follows: BE2ZBHT

Number of Share Options
REHA

CGancelled/
Balance Granted Exercised lapsed Balance
as at during during during as at
Date of Grant 1.1.2018 the year the year the year 31.12.2018
R=g-NE i NEREE, W=B-NE
R AH -B—-B#&# REREH RERTRE %% +ZR=t-B&#H
Directors
s
LI Ning 02.07.2013 3,000,000 - - (1,500,000 1,500,000
&y 20.01.2017 6,000,000 - - - 6,000,000
CHAN Ling 02.07.2010 2,000,000 - - (2,000,000) -
B 02.07.2013 30,000,000 - - (15,000,000) 15,000,000°°)
20.01.2017 40,000,000 - - - 40,000,0001%
LI Chunyang 02.07.2010 2,000,000 - - (2,000,000) -
XY 02.07.2013 26,000,000 - - (13,000,000) 13,000,000%°
20.01.2017 20,000,000 - - - 20,000,000¢
LI Qilin 02.07.2013 4,000,000 - - (2,000,000) 2,000,000
T 20.01.2017 87,000,000 - - - 87,000,0004
CHAN James 02.07.2013 10,000,000 - (5,000,000) - 5,000,000
BB 20.01.2017 6,000,000 - - - 6,000,000
MA Wing Man 02.07.2010 333,334 - - (333,334) -
HikxX 02.07.2013 2,688,000 - (1,188,000) - 1,500,0004
20.01.2017 6,000,000 - - - 6,000,000
LIEN Jown Jing, Vincent 20.01.2017 6,000,000 - - - 6,000,000
ERE
CHEN Johnny 02.07.2010 333,334 - - (333,334) -
BER 02.07.2013 3,000,000 - (1,500,000) - 1,500,000
(resigned with effect from 13 Februaer 2019) 20.01.2017 6,000,000 - - - 6,000,000
(BZE-NE-A+=BEET)
260,354,668 - (7,688,000) " (36,166,668) 216,500,000
Other employees
g
\Ragrgregate 02.07.2010 1,133,334 - - (1,133,334) -
=E]
\gqurgregate 06.09.2010 2,800,000 - - (400,000) 2,400,000
\D\qurgregate 02.07.2013 47,000,000 - (22,996,000) (504,000) 23,500,000
2%
\gqurgregate 20.06.2014 14,708,000 - (3,796,000) (1,304,000 9,608,000
\D\qurgregate 20.01.2017 53,600,000 - (1,936,000) (9,384,000) 42,280,000
=E]
\gqurgregate 05.09.2018 - 60,000,000 - - 60,000,000
119,241,334 60,000,000 (28,728,000) ") (12,725,334) 137,788,000
Other grantees
\gggrgregate 06.09.2010 800,000 - - (800,000) -
=a
In aggregate 02.07.2013 58,880,000 - (2,584,000 (26,916,000 29,380,000
Ch
In aggregate 20.01.2017 131,900,000 - (192,000) - 131,708,000
EH
191,580,000 - (2,776,000) ") (27,716,000) 161,088,000
571,176,002 60,000,000 (39,192,000) (76,608,002) 515,376,000
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Notes:

(1)

Exercisable period: from 2 July 2013 to 1 July 2018.

The share options as at 1 January 2018 comprised the following: (i) 1,500,000 share
options with exercisable period from 2 July 2015 to 1 July 2018 and (i) 1,500,000
share options with exercisable period from 2 July 2016 to 1 July 2019. The number
of share options under (i) and (i) of this note was O and 1,500,000 respectively as at
31 December 2018,

The share options as at 1 January 2018 comprised the following: (i) 15,000,000
share options with exercisable period from 2 July 2015 to 1 July 2018 and (ii)
15,000,000 share options with exercisable period from 2 July 2016 to 1 July 2019,
The number of share options under (i) and (ii) of this note was 0 and 15,000,000
respectively as at 31 December 2018.

The share options as at 1 January 2018 comprised the following: (i) 13,000,000
share options with exercisable period from 2 July 2015 to 1 July 2018 and (ii)
13,000,000 share options with exercisable period from 2 July 2016 to 1 July 2019.
The number of share options under (i) and (i) of this note was O and 13,000,000
respectively as at 31 December 2018.

The share options as at 1 January 2018 comprised the following: (i) 1,188,000 share
options with exercisable period from 2 July 2015 to 1 July 2018 and (ii) 1,500,000
share options with exercisable period from 2 July 2016 to 1 July 2019. The number
of share options under (i) and (i) of this note was O and 1,500,000 respectively as at
31 December 2018.

The share options as at 1 January 2018 comprised the following: (i) 1,500,000 share
options with exercisable period from 2 July 2015 to 1 July 2018 and (i) 1,500,000
share options with exercisable period from 2 July 2016 to 1 July 2019. The number
of share options under (i) and (i) of this note was O and 1,500,000 respectively as at
31 December 2018.

B =
(1 17 ——F®+tA-HE_ZT—)\F+A
_E°
@ (@ F*--f/\ifﬂfa fERRE R, ?é.‘bﬂ'éz
CfTERAZT—AFEAZAZE
—)\EJ:H ElZw SOOOOOT\@SHXTE&(H
TEHAE-_T—A"FLtAZHE=-ZT—A

FLA— EIZW 500,000 B A% 42 o NPT 5L ()
LBz BRESHER=_Z—\F+=A
=+—B8% 51 A0% &1,500,00017 °

(b) RZZE-NF—A—0 BREREUTE
B (TEHA-E-—RAFEtA-_RAE_-ZT
— )\& - A— A Z15,000,00017 i I # X (i)
TERE-T—ANFLtAZHE-_ZT A
-+ A — B 215,000,000 B A% 4 o B 5
WR(iVEZ BRESZER=_E—N\F+=A
=+—H8% 53 A0f &%15,000,00017 °

© RZZE—)\F—A—B8 BRESEUTE
B ({TEMHA-TS—RFLtA-HE-ZT
— N\ + A — B 213,000,000 B8 5% 4 & (i)
TEHRAE-_ZE—RNFLtA-_HE-Z— N
Eﬁﬂ A 213,000,00017 B A& 4 » AP 5
KiEzEBREHBER-_ZE—N\F+=A

£+— A % Bl &0f5 }13,000,00015 °

(d) RZZE—-NFE—A—HBZBERESENUT
BHE: (TEHE-_T—RAFLAZBZE
—=— /\ﬁtﬂ A 21,188,00019 B A% 4

EifTERAE-—T—RFLtA-HE=-Z
—hEFEEA— 521 500,00015 B AR 8 o ZSBfT
HEiOREZERERER =T —/\F+=
A =+—8%5A0 &1,500,0001 °

€ RZT—NF—A—BZERERFEAT
TE: (VIEHA-ZT—AFLA=-AZE
—Z— \F+ A — 821,500,000 & k% &
EiTERAE-ZSE—ARFLtA-HE=_Z
—hE+ A—H 21,500,00017 B8 RS HE o 2B
HORMEZBEREHER T —\F+=
A=+—H8% 5 A0 &%1,500,0001 °
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The share options as at 1 January 2018 comprised the following: (i) 2,000,000 share
options with exercisable period from 2 July 2015 to 1 July 2018 and (i) 2,000,000
share options with exercisable period from 2 July 2016 to 1 July 2019. The number
of share options under (i) and (ii) of this note was 0 and 2,000,000 respectively as at
31 December 2018.

The share options as at 1 January 2018 comprised the following: () 5,000,000 share
options with exercisable period from 2 July 2015 to 1 July 2018 and (i) 5,000,000
share options with exercisable period from 2 July 2016 to 1 July 2019. The number
of share options under (i) and (i) of this note was 0 and 5,000,000 respectively as at
31 December 2018.

The share options comprised the following: (i) 3,000,000 share options with
exercisable period from 20 January 2017 to 19 January 2019; (i) 1,500,000 share
options with exercisable period from 20 January 2018 to 19 January 2020; and

(ili) 1,500,000 share options with exercisable period from 20 January 2019 to 19
January 2021,

The share options comprised the following: (i) 20,000,000 share options with
exercisable period from 20 January 2017 to 19 January 2019; (i) 10,000,000 share
options with exercisable period from 20 January 2018 to 19 January 2020; and

(i) 10,000,000 share options with exercisable period from 20 January 2019 to 19
January 2021.

The share options comprised the following: (i) 10,000,000 share options with
exercisable period from 20 January 2017 to 19 January 2019; (i) 5,000,000 share
options with exercisable period from 20 January 2018 to 19 January 2020; and

(iii) 5,000,000 share options with exercisable period from 20 January 2019 to 19
January 2021.

The share options comprised the following: (i) 43,500,000 share options with
exercisable period from 20 January 2017 to 19 January 2019; (i) 21,750,000 share
options with exercisable period from 20 January 2018 to 19 January 2020; and

(iii) 21,750,000 share options with exercisable period from 20 January 2019 to 19
January 2021,
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The share options as at 1 January 2018 comprised the following: (i) 400,000 share options
with exercisable period from 6 September 2013 to 5 September 2018; (i) 1,200,000 share
options with exercisable period from 6 September 2014 to 5 September 2019; and (iii)
1,200,000 share options with exercisable period from 6 September 2015 to 5 September
2020. The number of share options under (i), (ii) and (iii) of this note was 0, 1,200,000 and
1,200,000 respectively as at 31 December 2018.

The share options as at 1 January 2018 comprised the following: () 23,500,000 share
options with exercisable period from 2 July 2015 to 1 July 2018 and (i) 23,500,000 share
options with exercisable period from 2 July 2016 to 1 July 2019. The number of share options
under (i) and (i) of this note was 0 and 23,500,000 respectively as at 31 December 2018.

The share options as at 1 January 2018 comprised the following: () 4,804,000 share options
with exercisable period from 20 June 2015 to 19 June 2018; (i) 4,804,000 share options
with exercisable period from 20 June 2016 to 19 June 2019; and (iii) 5,100,000 share
options with exercisable period from 20 June 2017 to 19 June 2020. The number of share
options under (i), (ii) and (iii) of this note was 0, 4,804,000 and 4,804,000 respectively as at
31 December 2018.

The share options as at 1 January 2018 comprised the following: () 26,800,000 share
options with exercisable period from 20 January 2017 to 19 January 2019; (i) 13,400,000
share options with exercisable period from 20 January 2018 to 19 January 2020; and (iii)
13,400,000 share options with exercisable period from 20 January 2019 to 19 January
2021, The number of share options under (i), (ii) and (ili) of this note was 20,880,000,
10,700,000 and 10,700,000 respectively as at 31 December 2018.

The share options comprised the following: (i) 20,000,000 share options with exercisable
period from 5 September 2019 to 4 September 2021; (i) 20,000,000 share options with
exercisable period from 5 September 2020 to 4 September 2022; and (i) 20,000,000 share
options with exercisable period from 5 September 20271 to 4 September 2023.

Exercisable period: from 6 September 2013 to 5 September 2018.

The share options as at 1 January 2018 comprised the following: () 29,500,000 share
options with exercisable period from 2 July 2015 to 1 July 2018 and (i) 29,380,000 share
options with exercisable period from 2 July 2016 to T July 2019. The number of share options
under (i) and (i) of this note was 0 and 29,380,000 respectively as at 31 December 2018.

(10)

(11

RZE—N\F—A—B BRESETIE&E:
‘ﬁﬁ%%—%—zihﬂﬁag:%—ﬂih
A F H.2400,00017 B HE : () TEHA-ZT —

FLAXRNBEZ-Z— ninH£Hmemm@
B RiVTERA-ZE—RAFENLANBET
T - FE N[ A E 21,200,00017 B A% HE - A EE
(- ((iBzBREHFER=_Z—NF+ZA
=+—HB%2 840 * 1,200,000/ }1,200,00017 °

RZZE— \F—A—AZBERESETHISE: ()
TEHE-ET-RFLA= Hé_ﬁfﬂitﬁ
— B 2.23,500,00017 & B 4 K (i) 1 TIE A A =
FtAZHEZZ—hFLtA— 5223500000@
MR - AMIE() R (NBEZBREZER TN
F+ZA=+—H% 5 A0 K%23,500,00017 °

R-ZE—N\F—A—BZBERESIETIEE:
WVTEHE-_T—REAA-THE-_ZT—/\F
N AT LB 24,804,000 BE AR (NFTEER A=
E—-RNFNAZ+HHEZZE—NAFAt+LEBEZ
4,804,00010 B R #E : R(iNfITHEHA-ZT—+tF N~
A= +E|i:2:29¢/\ﬂ+jLEIZ5,woo,ooof
BE RS AE o NP () (VR (NVBZEREHER=-Z
—N\F+=ZA= + EI 5B B0 4804000(’75&
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(12)  The share options as at 1 January 2018 comprised the following: (i) 65,950,000 share (12) MZZE—N\F—A—HZERESEBEINTSE:
options with exercisable period from 20 January 2017 to 19 January 2019; (i) 32,975,000 (TERE-_TE—tF—A-_+HEZZ—IF
share options with exercisable period from 20 January 2018 to 19 January 2020: and (iii) — B+ 1B 2659500001 B AE : ()fTEEAZ
32,975,000 share options with exercisable period from 20 January 2019 to 19 January ET-N\F-AZF+HEZZZZF—A+NAZ
2021. The number of share options under (i), (i) and (i) of this note was 65,758,000, 32,975,000 HE A& 4 : R (i)1THE AT —hF—
32,975,000 and 32,975,000 respectively as at 31 December 2018. ARZ+BZ=-T=—%— A+ B 32975000

19 B BR A o NPT R ()~ (i) SR (i) B 2 IR E BB A =
- N\F+ZHB=+—H%5 54657580001
32,975,000 %.32,975,00017 °
(13) (@  The weighted average closing price immediately before the dates on which the share (13) (@ HREEBRERETEB A2 NETHKR
options were exercised was HK$0.87. M{EB087THE T -
() The weighted average closing price immediately before the dates on which the share (b) AR EREETE B A2 T Uk
options were exercised was HK$0.89. T A0.89/8 T
() The weighted average closing price immediately before the dates on which the share () REEEREZETE R 2 nETFHK
options were exercised was HK$0.88. M{& B0.887 T °
(14)  The exercise prices of the share options are as follows: (14) BEREZITEEWT:
Date of Grant Exercise Price per Share (HK$)
& i A8 BRITEE (BT
02.07.2010 3.90
06.09.2010 415
02.07.2013 0.50
20.06.2014 0.80
20.01.2017 0.80
05.09.2018 0.94
(15)  On 5 September 2018, the Company granted share options entiting subscription of a total of 15 RZZE—NFALARRA AREIRIEERETE

60,000,000 Shares pursuant to the Share Option Scheme and the closing price of the Shares
immediately before the date on which the aforesaid share options were granted was HK$0.90.
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INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF DIRECTORS ESRTBARNED IR LAY
AND THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE IN THE SHARES AND EEZROREERGREER 2
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE RERARA

COMPANY AND ITS ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2018, the interests and short positions of the Directors and RZE—NEF+_A=+—H ARFZE
chief executive of the Company in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of %&ﬂﬂlw%@kﬁ/\\ﬁ AIREEEER (T
the Company and its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the RI#EHEBEGH ] EBEXVER) 2 &M - 18E
SFO) which were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange e R E#EED HEAREFESMPEK
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short BIEXVEBET R EeD e AN T KB AT
positions which the Directors and chief executive of the Company were deemed ZHEZMRE ( BIEARAIESR RITHARE
or taken to have under such provisions of the SFO), or which were required to be R I5 78 %&Hﬁf 1RO B B G SR Bk B 1E
and are recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to TéﬁﬁZ*’é FKE) M ARERREERA

Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise required to be notified to the Company NERBEESFRBE KA FEEMFES
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the required standard of dealings by Rfft 2 S MR R HIBIRGEM ET R R &
Directors as referred to in Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules were as SABESGTIEFTIMIEBESTEE Y TR E
follows: BAMERANRI R 2R ORBWT
Interests in the Shares, underlying Shares and debenture of RAEQTRMD - HERDREREE 2R
the Company
Number of Shares/
underlying Shares held )
RS,/ AERHRA Approsimate
percentage of
Nature of interests shareholding
EEHE Number of as at
Personal Corporate share 31 December
Directors Capacity interest interest  options held ® Total interests 2018
R-ZB-N\%§
+ZB=+-H
Fifs Fris iR &
EE 5% BA#R ARER BREZA ERAE BREAL
Mr. LI Ning Beneficial owner 21,508,000 - 7,500,000
FERE EE%E A
ntrest of controled - 82124431510 [ sanasiier 95198
corporafion
SR m R
_ (1) _
Interest of ;ontrolled 544,241,573 544,241 573 3) 6.15%
__corporation
REHEERER
Mr. CHAN Ling Beneficial owner 63,287,669 - 55,000,000 118,287,669 (L) 1.34%
RELE ExBEAA
Mr. LI Chunyang Bensficial owner 13,067,669 - 33,000,000 46,067,609 (L) 0.52%
2EHEE ExEEAA
Mr. LI Qilin Beneﬂmary of trusts 6,080,022,769% - -
FHBEE FREXHEA
Beneﬂqgl owner - - 89,000,000 6,169,022,769 (L) 69.72%
ERBEBEA
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Number of Shares/
underlying Shares held .

FEBG,/ BB AYE Approximate

percentage of

Nature of interests shareholding

BatE Number of as at

Personal Corporate share 31 December

Directors Capacity interest interest  options held® Total interests 2018

RZZ-NF

+ZR=+-H

i Frishk g

EE 5t BARR NEER BREZAC BEAH R

Mr. CHAN James Beneficial owner 5,000,000 - 11,000,000 16,000,000 (L) 0.18%
BB EE EnEAA

Mr. MA Wing Man Beneficial owner 864,000 - 7,500,000 8,364,000 (L) 0.09%
HAEAE EHEEAA

Mr. LIEN Jown Jing, Vincent Beneficial owner - - 6,000,000 6,000,000 (L) 0.07%
ERERE ExBEA

Mr. CHEN Johnny (resigned with  Beneficial owner 600,000 - 7,500,000 8,100,000 (L) 0.09%

effect from 13 February 2019)
BRERAL (R=F-NF
—Rt=B%f)

Vi

BEaBBA

(L) and (S) represent long position and short position respectively
Notes:

1. Mr. Li Ning is deemed to be interested in the long positions of 8,212,443,151 Shares in
aggregate through his interests in Lead Ahead Limited (“Lead Ahead"), Victory Mind Assets
Limited (“Victory Mind Assets”) and Dragon City Management (PTC) Limited (“Dragon Gity"),
respectively and the short position of 544,241,573 Shares through his interests in Lead Ahead,
as follows:

the long position of 2,132,420,382 Shares and the short position of 544,241,573
Shares are held by Lead Ahead, which is owned as to 60% by Mr. Li Ning and 40% by
Mr. Li Chun. Mr. Li Ning is also a director of Lead Ahead;

the long position of 2,728,582,769 Shares in which Victory Mind Assets is
interested in comprises (i) 1,680,022,769 Shares held by Victory Mind Assets and
(i) 1,048,560,000 Shares which may be issued on the basis of a full exercise of
conversion rights at a conversion price of HK$0.325 per Share attaching to the
convertible bonds issued to Victory Mind Assets by the Company in November

2013. Victory Mind Assets is owned as to 57% by Ace Leader Holdings Limited
("Ace Leader”) and 38% by Jumbo Top Group Limited (“Jumbo Top”). All shares of
Ace Leader are held by TMF (Cayman) Ltd. (“TMF") in its capacity as trustee of a
discretionary trust. Mr. Li Ning is the settlor of the trust and is therefore deemed to be
interested in such 2,728,582,769 Shares. Mr. Li Ning is a director of each of Victory
Mind Assets and Ace Leader; and
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1, =58 % A 3B 3B A T M Lead Ahead Limited ([ Lead
Ahead ] ) ~ Victory Mind Assets Limited ( ['Victory Mind
Assets | ) & Dragon City Management (PTC) Limited
([Dragon City D p Rl EREaMESAEEE
$£8,212,443 1510 IR 17 4F & < # %1 2 i i M Lead
Anead 5 A #E 25 #1872 % H 544,241,573 Iz 17 7%
B2

(a)

2,132,420,3820% B& 19 47 & F544,241,573/%
% {54 & F Lead Ahead?¥ 7 - MilLead AheadF
B A RIS B A60% KX 40%%
HE o ZZ B S 4 JF A Lead Ahead 2 B 5

Victory Mind Asseist 2,728,582, 769% A% 15 1iF &
WS = P A FE()Victory Mind AssetsFi 58 2
1,680,022, 769F% B 1 K (il A AR R BIR =T —=
£+ — A mVictory Mind Assets31T 2 A AR (&
FEMT 2 SR iR R E T RAR(D0.325%
TUREFERIT(E 1 AT F 81T 21,048,560,0008%
& 17 © Victory Mind Assets 73 51| F Ace Leader Holdings
Limited ( [Ace Leader | ) X2Jumbo Top Group Limited
(TJumbo Top | ) #E B 57% K2 38% & 25 ° Ace Leader
2B FRTMF (Cayman) Lid. (TTMF |) LAB IS
ERZZTEAFNIEB -FTEEERZET
ZBISZA - E AR AR 2,728 582,7690%
A&7 o #E B #E 2 - 2228 55 A R Victory Mind Assets
KAce Leaders B2 EE K&
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() the long position of 3,357,440,000 Shares in which Dragon City is interested in
comprises (i) 2,000,000,000 Shares held by Dragon City and (i) 1,351,440,000
Shares which may be issued on the basis of a full exercise of conversion rights at a
conversion price of HK$0.325 per Share attaching to the convertible bonds issued
to Dragon City by the Company in November 2013. Dragon City is interested in such
3,351,440,000 Shares in its capacity as trustee of a unit trust, the units of which are
owned as to 60% by TMF and as to 40% by TMF, each as the trustee of separate
discretionary trust. Mr. Li Ning is the 60% shareholder of Dragon City and a founder of
the unit trust and is therefore deemed to be interested in such 3,351,440,000 Shares.
Mr. Li Ning is a director of Dragon City.

2. See note 1(b) and note 1(c) under “Interests and short positions of substantial shareholders and
other persons in the share capital of the Company” below.

3. These represented the share options granted by the Company to the respective Directors, the
details of which are provided in the section headed “Share Option Scheme” in this report.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors nor the chief executive of the
Company had, as at 31 December 2018, any interests or short positions in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were required to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of
Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions which they were deemed
or taken to have under such provisions of the SFO), or which were required to

be and are recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under
Section 352 of the SFO, or which were required to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the required standard of dealings by
Directors as referred to in Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules.

(¢)  Dragon City# &3,351,440,0000% % 1 &F
B & F B 1E()Dragon CityidH 2
2,000,000,0008% B 13 R (A A QR HR = F
— =% +— A\ Dragon City317 Z Al # & &
EFTH 2 iR 8 R E SRR 17 0.32575
TLHER BT E T A F & 1T 21,351,440,000
% A% 15 ° Dragon City A BB 55T 2 RFEA S
19 #5832 %3,351,440,000 X B 1D #E 25 - ™
it fEsE 2 B ATMFRTIMFE & & B L
BB A M D B H60%K&40% o
2= B2 4 A4 55 A Dragon City 60%4 25 2 A% 3R
REBEMNEAZATA ARFERERZS
3,351,440,000f B th P HE B s - TE Ak 4
/A Dragon City 2 & % °

2. ATXIEZBRREEMALTRARBBRAFH
R RAE ] BT ZWE10) &M EC) -

5. WEAAAREESBELZWLE BEREE
WA 4 [ 8] — 5 -

BEXBEEEN R-_FT—N\F+=A
Z+t—B ARAEZERTREHEMERLX
AEIHHEEMAEEZE (TERLEFLHE
IRBIEXVER) Z i1 - MR, R EEEF -
HETAREZESRPE KA EXVIBET R
SO EBAEME AR A RBIAT ZEIETAR
(BREBEES X BEEDE B SR
REXNEIERBZERSIAR) I MAR
BRSBR AR RIRIEE S &S KH 5352
A EE SRz A R kiR & GEM
R BIES 46K E F6TIRFT M E I E S
BB ZRTEIZEBEMG AR R AT 2 #

A

£ B Sk A
HmIKR
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Pursuant to a sale and purchase agreement dated 12 October 2012 (the
“Acquisition Agreement”) entered into between the Company and Victory Mind
Assets and Dragon City as the vendors (the “Vendors”), the acquisition by the
Company of 266,374,000 LN Shares, representing approximately 25.227% of
the then issued share capital of Li Ning Co was completed in December 2012,
for the aggregate consideration of HK$1,358,507,400, which was satisfied by
the issuance to Victory Mind Assets, one of the Vendors, 1,780,022,769 Shares
and to Dragon City, the other Vendor, unlisted initial convertible bonds in the
principal amount of HK$780,000,000 (the “Initial Convertible Bonds”) which
are convertible at an initial conversion price of HK$0.325 per Share, subject

to adjustment provided under the terms and conditions of the Initial Convertible
Bonds. Al Initial Convertible Bonds were converted into 2,400,000,000 Shares
on 6 June 2014.

Pursuant to the Acquisition Agreement and the deed dated 30 August 2013
entered into between the Company and the Vendors (the “Deed”), the Company
issued unlisted earn-out convertible bonds (the “Earn-out Convertible Bonds”) in
the principal amount of HK$340,782,000 to Victory Mind Assets and the Earn-
out Convertible Bonds in the principal amount of HK$439,218,000 to Dragon
City in November 2013 subject to certain undertaking under which a portion of
the Earn-out Convertible Bonds may be returned to the Company in the event that
certain performance targets of LN Group are not met. The Earn-out Convertible
Bonds are convertible into 2,400,000,000 Shares at an initial conversion

price of HK$0.325 per Share. On 10 April 2017, the condition for releasing

the undertaking has been met and the Company has released all the Earn-out
Convertible Bonds held by the Vendors in accordance with the terms of the Deed.

Victory Mind Assets is indirectly held by the corporate trustee of two discretionary
trusts, the beneficiaries of which include the respective family members of Mr.

Li Ning, an executive Director, the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer, his
brother, Mr. Li Chun and Mr. Li Qilin, an executive Director. Dragon City is the
trustee of a unit trust, the units of which are owned by two family trusts, the
beneficiaries of which include the respective family members of Mr. Li Ning, Mr. Li
Chun and Mr. Li Qilin. Mr. Li Qilin is the son of Mr. Li Chun and the nephew of Mr.
Li Ning.

Save as disclosed above and in the paragraph headed “Share Option Scheme” of
this report, at no time during the year were rights to acquire benefits by means

of the acquisition of Shares in or debentures of the Company granted to any
Directors, or were any such rights exercised by them; or was the Company or any
of its subsidiaries, or any holding company, or any of its fellow subsidiaries a party
to any arrangement to enable the Directors to acquire such rights in any other
body corporate.
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i
S

KA &) E2Victory Mind Assets X Dragon City
EBER) ([BEAIR-_ZE——F+A
REIYvEEHE ([WEwRE])
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CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDER’S INTERESTS IN
CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in this report, at no time during the year had the Company or
any of its subsidiaries, and the controlling shareholders or any of its subsidiaries
entered into any contract of significance or any contract of significance for the
provision of services to the Company or any of its subsidiaries by the controlling
shareholder or any of its subsidiaries.

INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF SUBSTANTIAL
SHAREHOLDERS AND OTHER PERSONS IN THE SHARE
CAPITAL OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2018, so far as was known to the Directors, the interests and
short positions of the persons (other than the interests and short positions of the
Directors or chief executive of the Company as disclosed above) in the shares
and/or underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register required to
be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO, or as otherwise
notified to the Company are set out below:

ERBRRRENzER

BRAREFTIEE I NAF S E A E
X B BT IR AR SR E AT B A R R AT
] B - BT LA E R A AR
Rk E M B A R R AR w3 AR AP &
RAEARHERE ZEAEREH -

FERRREMALTREARTRE
ZEBERKR

R-ZE-N\F+_RA=1+—B BEEMR
B EXFAEEZARREETRITHAE
A 2w FORR N AT AER AR AR
7 K&/ SARRERR 1 P A BN AR RIAR B
FEHERIEGOIFEICKRERFE 2 EFLMK
ERTTHMEARRZEREIAR

Interests in the Shares and underlying Shares REROREBRG ZERSE
Approximate
Number of percentage of
Shares/underlying shareholdings as at
Capacity Shares held 31 December 2018
R-ZZ—-NF
+=ZBA=+-—H
e,/ s
54 ARG 8B BOED L
Substantial Shareholders
FERR
Mr. LI Chun™® Interest of controlled corporation 8,212,443,151(L) 93.82%
FHESTED REtEEER 544,241,573(S) 6.15%
Lead Ahead? Beneficial owner 2,132,420,382(L) 24.10%
EnEEA 544,241,573(S) 6.15%
Victory Mind Assets® Beneficial owner 2,728,682,769(L) 30.84%
EmEAA
Ace Leader® Interest of controlled corporation 2,728,682,769(L) 30.84%
XEHEEER
Jumbo Top® Interest of controlled corporation 2,728,682,769(L) 30.84%

RIEHAE S
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Approximate

Number of percentage of
Shares/underlying shareholdings as at
Capacity Shares held 31 December 2018
R-ZB-N\F
+ZB=+-—H
Frs i~ PR #E
514 HERGZHE BHABE T
Dragon City® Trustee 3,351,440,000(L) 37.88%
ZFEA
TMF Trustee 6,080,022,769(L) 68.72%
ZFEA
Other Persons
Hit At
China Construction Interest of controlled corporation Hh44,241 573
Bank Corporation XEHEEER
B2 R ERTT
&5 B R A A Person having a security interest in shares 3,512,443,151
RBRHDFERIER AL
4,056,684,7249() 45.85%
Central Huijin Investment Ltd. Interest of controlled corporation 544,241,573
hRESEE REflEEER
BEREERA]
Person having a security interest 3,5612,443,151
in shares
KRR FEREER AL
4,056,684,7249(L) 45.85%
Ministry of Finance of Interest of controlled corporation 926,190,476"9(L) 10.47%
the People’s Republic of China 222 il & B 4 25
HEE A B AN B B I ED
Mr. MA Chi Seng Beneficial owner 602,000,000M(L) 6.80%

BEDBEA A

(L) and (S) represent long position and short position respectively
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Notes:

1. Mr. Li Chun is deemed to be interested in the long positions of 8,212,443,151 Shares
in aggregate through his interests in Lead Ahead, Victory Mind Assets and Dragon City,
respectively and the short position of 544,241,573 Shares through his interests in Lead Ahead,
as follows:

(@) the long position of 2,132,420,382 Shares and the short position of 544,241,573
Shares are held by Lead Ahead, which is owned as to 60% by Mr. Li Ning and 40% by
Mr. Li Chun;

(b) the long position of 2,728,582,769 Shares in which Victory Mind Assets is
interested in comprises (i) 1,680,022,769 Shares held by Victory Mind Assets and
(i) 1,048,560,000 Shares which may be issued on the basis of a full exercise of
conversion rights at a conversion price of HK$0.325 per Share attaching to the
convertible bonds issued to Victory Mind Assets by the Company in November 2013,
Victory Mind Assets is owned as to 57% by Ace Leader and 38% by Jumbo Top. Al
shares of Jumbo Top are held by TMF in its capacity as trustee of a discretionary trust.
Mr. Li Chun is the settlor of the trust and is therefore deemed to be interested in such
2,728,582,769 Shares. Mr. Li Qilin is a beneficiary of the trust and is also therefore
deemed to be interested in such 2,728,582,769 Shares. Mr. Li Chun is also a director
of each of Victory Mind Assets and Jumbo Top; and

() the long position of 3,351,440,000 Shares in which Dragon City is interested in
comprises (i) 2,000,000,000 Shares held by Dragon City and (i) 1,351,440,000
Shares which may be issued on the basis of a full exercise of conversion rights at a
conversion price of HK$0.325 per Share attaching to the convertible bonds issued
to Dragon City by the Company in November 2013. Dragon City is interested in such
3,351,440,000 Shares in its capacity as trustee of a unit trust, the units of which are
owned as to 60% by TMF and as to 40% by TMF, each as the trustee of a separate
discretionary trust. Mr. Li Qilin is a beneficiary of one of the said separate trusts and is
also therefore deemed to be interested in such 3,351,440,000 Shares. Mr. Li Chun is
taken to be interested in 40% of the shares of Dragon City and is therefore deemed to
be interested in such 3,351,440,000 Shares. Mr. Li Chun is a director of Dragon City.

2. Lead Ahead is owned as to 60% by Mr. Li Ning and 40% by his brother, Mr. Li Chun. Mr. Li
Ning is also a director of Lead Ahead.

=
oy

—

ZEHE S5 A 3B 3B DA T R Lead Ahead - Victory Mind Assets
KDragon CityD RIS BE=MERAHEEE H
8,212,443,151 IR B 10 4 B 2 4 2 & 35 i M Lead
Anead+% 5 1 %5 M 15 48 2 ¥ 544,241,657 38R AR 17 7%
AR

(a) 2,132,420,3820% f&% 7 4F & K 544,241,5730%
B& 7% B F Lead Ahead$§ % + MLead AheadF
FTEEA RTEEED RIHEB0%R40%
1

(b)  Victory Mind Assets# 5 2,728,582,7698% B 17 &
B & BB HE()Victory Mind AssetsET 35 &
21,680,022, 7698% B 17 & (B &R A B 7 =
T — =4+ — B A Victory Mind AssetsZ1T 2.
ARREFNS ERERERES
% B% 15032578 oI AR B AT 7] T AT
2.1,048,560,0008% J& 17 © Victory Mind Assets 7>
Bl Ace Leader X Jumbo Top¥E 57 % K 38%HE
%5 ° Jumbo TopZ 2B 15 A TMFIA BB 2752
ZREABDE B -FTHILERZETZE
A B AR AR £ ii2,728,582,7698% A%
NHEERE - TEBLERZERCR
@A B IR AR L2, 728,582, 7698%
[% 15 /R ¥ 75 #E 25 o 223 55 A4 U8 A Victory Mind
Assets ZJumbo TopE A2 EBE K&

(¢)  Dragon City# &3,351,440,0000% % 1 &F
B E PR BIE()Dragon City# A 2
2,000,000,0008% & 3 R (i) A A AR R ZF
— =4 +— A\ Dragon CityZ 17 Al IR & %5
FTbfT 2 8t i 2 8540 (B B AR AR (50,3257 7T
BEHATEMAI F3817,21,351,440,0008% A%
3 o L 3lt3,351,440,0008% f% 1% 1 Dragon CityfFE
BEMETZIAAMBAER M LE
FEZBUBATMHEAS B I BMBEELZTA
M5 B E60% R40%ER - FTRB L E B
Pl EP—EE L EE2Zam A BTN
AR AR £ it3,351,440,0008% % {7 P B #E
7 o ZHE ST A AR /& % 75 Dragon City, 2 40%#9
A& #E 2 - F AR AR #l3,351,440,000
& B 17 HR 4 5 # % o X3 5T 4 A Dragon City
ZES-

2. Lead Ahead AT Sp E R HM R T H L ED RIS
60% K2 A0%R% 4 ° 2= %8 55 A4 JN A lLead Ahead 2 T = ©

Annual Report 2018 FE 3R

59



60

Report of the Directors EE 2 IR E

A,

‘

3. See note 1(b) under “Interests and short positions of directors and the chief executive in the
shares and underlying shares and debentures of the Company and its associated corporations”
and note 1(b) above. For avoidance of doubt and double counting, it should be noted that Ace
Leader, Jumbo Top and TMF are deemed to be interested in the 2,728,582,769 Shares which
Victory Mind Assets is interested in.

4, See note 1(c) under “Interests and short positions of directors and the chief executive in the
shares and underlying shares and debentures of the Company and its associated corporations”
and note 1(c) above. TMF is deemed to be interested in the 3,351,440,000 Shares which
Dragon City is interested in.

5. Such long position includes unlisted and physically settled derivative interests in 544,241,573
underlying Shares and is held by Cheer Hope Holdings Limited (“Cheer Hope"). Cheer Hope is
wholly-owned by CCBI Investments Limited which is in turn wholly-owned by CCB International
(Holdings) Limited ("CCB International”). CCB International is wholly-owned by CCB Financial
Holdings Limited ("CCB Financial”) and CCB Financial is wholly-owned by CCB International
Group Holdings Limited ("CCB Holdings”). CCB Holdings is wholly-owned by China Construction
Bank Corporation (“CCBC") which is in turn owned as to 57.11% by Central Huijin Investment
Ltd ("Huijin"). Huijin is deemed to be interested in the 4,056,684,724 Shares which CCBC is
interested in.

6. According to the corporate substantial shareholder notice filed to the Stock Exchange by
Ministry of Finance of the People’s Republic of China ("MOF"), MOF is deemed to be interested
in such long position of unlisted and physically settled derivative interests in 926,190,476
underlying Shares held by Lake Tai Investment Holdings Limited which is in turn wholly-owned
by Huarong (HK) International Holdings Limited. China Huarong International Holdings Limited
is owned as to 88.10% and 11.90% by Huarong Real Estate Co., Ltd. (“Huarong Real Estate”)
and Huarong Zhiyuan Investment & Management Co., Ltd. ("Huarong Zhiyuan”) respectively.
Both Huarong Real Estate and Huarong Zhiyuan are wholly-owned by China Huarong Asset
Management Co., Ltd. which is in turn owned as to 77.49% by MOF.

7. Mr. Ma Chi Seng was interested in 500,000,000 Shares and the share options of the Company
entitling to subscribe for a total of 102,000,000 Shares.
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As at 31 December 2018, save as disclosed above, so far as was known to
the Directors, no other person (other than the Directors or chief executive of the
Company) had any interests or short position in the shares and/or underlying
shares of the Company as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO, or as notified to the Company.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract concerning the management and administration of the whole or any
substantial part of the business of the Group were entered into or existed during
the year.

GROUP’S EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is formulated on the
basis of their merit, qualifications and competence and it is the Group’s policy
to compensate each employee fairly and equitably. The Group has a system for
measuring employees’ performance against agreed-upon goals with specific
performance standards. Performance discussion is carried out on an ongoing
basis and a formal evaluation is conducted once a year to review employees’
overall performance, achievements, and areas in need of improvement. Salary
review would be based on individual's performance and subject to Group’s
discretion.

The determination of remuneration packages of the Directors takes into
consideration of the factors such as time commitment and responsibilities of the
Directors and by reference to the level of emoluments normally paid by a listed
company in Hong Kong to directors of comparable calibre and job responsibilities
S0 as to ensure a fair and competitive remuneration package as is fit and
appropriate. The details of remuneration payable to the Directors and senior
management are set out in note 8 to the financial statements.

The existing share option scheme was adopted by the Company in 2010 as an
incentive to directors and eligible participants, details of the scheme are set out
in the section headed “Share Option Scheme” on pages 46 to 52 of this annual
report,

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to achieving and maintaining a high standard of
corporate governance and a detailed corporate governance report is set out on
pages 63 to 74 of this annual report.

The compliance officer of the Company is Mr. Chan Ling whose biographical
details are set out on page 36 of this annual report. Mr. Cheung Chi is the
company secretary and the chief financial officer of the Company. He is a
fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and
the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and has over 25 years

of experience in financial management, corporate finance and administrative
management,
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

In addition to the discussions on the Group's environmental policies and
performance in the Business Review of this annual report, an environmental,
social and governance report which explains how the Company complies with the
environmental, social and governance reporting guide in Appendix 20 to the GEM
Listing Rules is set out on pages 75 to 96 of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN A COMPETING BUSINESS

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Directors are not aware of any
business or interest of the Directors, the controlling shareholders and their
respective close associates (as defined under the GEM Listing Rules) that compete
or may compete with the business of the Group and any other conflict of interest
which any such person has or may have with the Group.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and to the
best of the Directors’ knowledge, as at the date of this annual report, there was a
sufficient prescribed public float of the issued shares of the Company under the
GEM Listing Rules.

AUDITOR

The financial statements of the Company for the year under review have
been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers, who will retire and, being eligible,
offer themselves for re-appointment. A resolution for the re-appointment of
PricewaterhouseCoopers as auditor of the Company will be proposed at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.

By Order of the Board

Li Ning
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 22 March 2019
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Corporate Governance Report

ERESHS

The Company is committed to achieving and maintaining a high standard of
corporate governance. Throughout the financial year ended 31 December 2018,
the Company had complied with the code provisions in the Corporate Governance
Code (“CG Code") as set out in Appendix 15 of the GEM Listing Rules, save for
the disclosure below.

The code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code stipulates that the roles of the chairman
and the chief executive officer should be separate and should not be performed
by the same individual. Mr. Li Ning holds both the positions of the Chairman and
the Chief Executive Officer. Taking into account of Mr. Li's expertise and insight of
the sports field, having these two roles performed by Mr. Li enables more effective
and efficient overall business planning and implementation of business decisions
and strategies of the Group. The Board believes that the balance of power and
authority is ensured by the operations of the Board, which comprises experienced
and high calibre individuals and adequate independent element in the composition
of the Board, with one-third of them being independent non-executive Directors.

In respect of the code provision A.6.7 of the CG Code, independent non-executive
Directors and other non-executive Directors should attend the general meetings of
the Company. Two independent non-executive Directors were unable to attend the
annual general meeting of the Company held on 15 June 2018 due to overseas
engagement.

The application of the relevant principles of the CG Code is stated in the following
sections.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Company is governed by the Board, which has the responsibility for
leadership and control of the Company. The Directors are collectively responsible
for promoting the success of the Group by directing and supervising the Group’s
affairs. The Board sets strategies and directions for the Group's affairs and
activities with a view to develop its business and to enhance shareholders’ value.

There is a clear division of responsibilities between the Board and the

management. Decisions on important matters are specifically reserved to the
Board while decisions on the Group’s general operations are delegated to the
management. Important matters include those affecting the Group’s strategic
policies, risk management and internal control systems, major investment and
funding decisions and major commitments relating to the Group’s operations.
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The Board currently comprises of four executive Directors (the “Executive
Directors”), two non-executive Directors (the “Non-executive Directors”) and three

independent non-executive Directors (the “Independent Non-executive Directors”).

The Board has a balance of skills and experience and a balanced composition of
Executive Directors and Non-executive Directors.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Li Ning has been the Chairman since 2010 and takes the lead to oversee the
Board functions and the direction of the Group. Mr. Li Ning took the role of Chief
Executive Officer with effect from 22 May 2013 to further align the management
expertise of the Board to complement with the Group’s core strategies to pursue
opportunities along the sports value chain.

Non-Executive Directors

All Non-executive Directors and Independent Non-executive Directors are
appointed for a term of three years. In addition, all Directors are subject to
retirement by rotation at least once every three years in accordance with the
Company’s articles of association.

Independent Non-Executive Directors

The current Independent Non-executive Directors are Mr. Lien Jown Jing,
Vincent, Mr. Pak Wai Keung, Martin and Mr. Wang Yan. The Independent Non-
executive Directors help the management to formulate the Group’s development
strategies, ensure the Board prepares its financial and other mandatory reports

in strict compliance with required standards, and ensure the Company maintains
appropriate system to protect the interests of the Company and the Shareholders.
The Company received the annual confirmation from the Independent Non-
executive Directors in respect of their independence pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the
GEM Listing Rules. The Company considered all the Independent Non-executive
Directors to be independent.

Board Composition and Board Processes

Directors make their best efforts to contribute to the formulation of strategy,
policies and decision-making by attending the Board meetings in person or

via telephone conference facilities. During regular meetings of the Board, the
Directors discuss and formulate the overall strategies of the Group, monitor
financial performance and review the financial results of the Group. Additional
Board meetings may be convened for considering and approving other significant
matters. Apart from formal meetings, matters requiring Board approval were
arranged by means of circulation of written resolutions.
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The composition of the Board together with the information in relation to the
number of meetings of the Board and each of its committees, namely, the

audit committee (the “Audit Committee”), the remuneration committee (the
“Remuneration Committee”), the nomination committee (the “Nomination
Committee”) and the executive committee (the “Executive Committee”), and the
general meeting of the Company held during the year 2018 and the attendance of
each Director are set out in the following table:

EEQENERARFAR T NFR
EEehHERLR e (MEZZES
ZEgl) ¥FHZEe(IFHEES
RAZBE([RRZE8E])RNITEE
(THTRBR]) ) 2@ RBARBKRRAR
ZEBERRSEZLREEREN TR

B 2
N

m—
I8y I8 -

\

Meetings held in 2018
RIE-NEE8fT2E8

Annual
Audit  Remuneration Nomination Executive General
Board Committee Committee Committee Committee Meeting
BR
EEg® ENZET® ¥MZEe RELFZEE HTEEE BEAE
Number of meetings EERY 4 4 1 1 2 1
Executive Directors HTES
M. Li Ning (Chairman & FERE
Chief Executive Offcer)? (ERFITHAH) 4/4 17 12 111
I Chan Ling (Chief Operating Officer) REfE (£E45) 414 7 212 111
M. Li Chunyang X it 4/4 212 111
Wi, Li Qilin? FTHBEE 4/4 12 111
Non-executive Directors FHTES
Mr. Chan James BRERSE 3/4 1N
Mr. Ma Wing Man Btk 4/ 4/4 17
Independent Non-executive Directors BYFHTES
Mr. Lien Jown Jing, Vincent ERELE 3/4 4/4 1n 0/1
M. Pak Wal Keung, Martin® (appointed AEBEE (B2 N4
on 13 February 2019) “At=HREZRT)
M. Wang Yan TRLE 3/4 3/4 " N 0/1
Mr. Chen Johnny (resigned BELEE(BE—NF
with effect from 13 February 2019) “RATZHEET) 4/ 4/4 17 17 11
Notes: 5
1. The attendance figure represents actual attendance/the number of meetings a Director is 1. HEABEESEREFE 2 S FREEEZE

entitled to attend.

2. Mr. Li Qilin is the nephew of Mr. Li Ning, the Chairman, the Chief Executive Officer and an
Executive Director.

3. Mr. Pak Wai Keung was appointed as an independent non-executive Director and the chairman
of the audit committee and a member of each of the nomination committee and remuneration
committee of the Company with effect from 13 February 2019.

4, Mr. Chen Johnny resigned as an independent non-executive Director, the chairman of the audit
committee, a member of each of the nomination committee and remuneration committee of the
Company with effect from 13 February 2019.

HZIRE

2. FEBELERIRE THAHRNTESETES
HEZEF-

3. AEBREEE - Z-NF_A+=ZRREZRER
ARRBUFATESE BERZBEEEIR RA
ZEERERTFMEEGKE -

4. RERFEEB-_Z-NF_AT=ZAREEAR

RIBYNTESE BRLXEEIR RBEE
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Directors’ Continuous Professional Development

The Directors are encouraged to enroll in relevant professional development
programme to ensure that they are aware of their responsibilities under the legal
and regulatory requirements applicable to the Company. During the year, the
Company has provided the materials on directors’ duties, corporate governance
and updates on laws and regulations for continuous professional development of
their knowledge and skills in performance of their functions. During the year, the
Company has also arranged a seminar to the Directors and senior management on
Enterprise Risk Management.

The Company has maintained records of training received by the Directors. To
summarise, the Directors received trainings on the following areas to update and
develop their skills and knowledge during the year:

EECHAEERR

ZAN/N Tiﬁiﬁbi$/,jﬁ@§¥§§)ﬁﬁiﬂ

ETZEEUE@EW 1‘ 7F‘J§$k1 E)
MESBE CEERRENEAERERZ
MR B IR R F BT R 2 A S R e
NFEEEEER - FA KARARANTREER

EREEAERHARERREREENE

RABGFEEFEXEBIZE -R25EMm
SEERFARERIATHEMEIINE
R A R A

Training on corporate
governance, regulatory
development and
other relevant topics

TEER LEHREER
Hi A S EE
Executive Directors BITES
Mr. Li Ning (Chairman & Chief Executive Officer) TREY (FEFTHEE) v
Mr. Chan Ling (Chief Operating Officer) BRELAE (SELH) v
Mr. Li Chunyang =EBEE v
Mr. Li Qilin FEBEE 4
Non-executive Directors FHITES
Mr. Chan James PR B & v
Mr. Ma Wing Man Bk LA v
Independent Non-executive Directors BIYFHTES
Mr. Lien Jown Jing, Vincent BRIEAE 4
Mr. Pak Wai Keung (appointed with effect from 13 February 2019) A{E®EE(BEE—hF-_A+=H N/AT 3 A
FREZE)

Mr. Wang Yan TS 4
Mr. Chen Johnny (resigned with effect from 13 February 2019) BRERLE (BZE-NF_AT=HEHT) v
Directors’ Securities Transactions EEETESRS

The Company has adopted the rules set out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM
Listing Rules (the “Required Standard”) as the code for dealing in securities of the
Company by the Directors.

The Company has made specific enquiry with all Directors, and the Directors
have confirmed compliance with the Required Standard during the year ended
31 December 2018.

Specific employees who are likely to be in possession of unpublished inside
information of the Group are also subject to compliance with the same Required
Standard. No incident of non-compliance was noted by the Company for the year
ended 31 December 2018.

VIVA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED J£ AL+ Bl ¥ IR G FR A 7]

RAAEERNGEM E T AR BIZE5. 4818 = 565,67
IRFTERA ([RSMTIZE]) EAEEE

BARRAESFZ -
ARAREME2BEEFHARESH MEF

NEHRARBE-T—/\F+=-A=+—8
EFE-EETRUTRE

EHEAAEEARTIZHABEL ZERNEE
JNE\L?*EWZ*%JZ\:?E“* ENNSI N

—E-N\FT A=t BLEFEHER
iﬁﬁiﬁL#%ﬁ



Corporate Governance Report £ E AR E

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee, the
Nomination Committee and the Executive Committee as integral elements of good
corporate governance and to oversee relevant aspects of the Company's affairs.
The authorities and duties of the committees are set out in their respective terms
of reference. More details of these committees are set out in separate sections in
this report.

The terms of reference adopted by the Board for the Audit Committee, the
Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee in accordance with the
requirements of the CG Code are published on the websites of the Company and
the Stock Exchange.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee was established by the Board with written terms
of reference. The current Nomination Committee is chaired by Mr. Li Ning,
the Chairman and Executive Director. The other members of the Nomination
Committee are Mr. Pak Wai Keung, Martin and Mr. Wang Yan, both are
Independent Non-executive Directors.

Under the articles of association of the Company, all Directors are subject to
retirement by rotation and re-election by Shareholders every three years. A
Director appointed by the Board is subject to election by shareholders at the
first annual general meeting after his appointment in case of the appointment of
additional Director or at the first general meeting after his appointment in case of
filling of casual vacancy.

During the year, the Nomination Committee has reviewed the structure, size and
composition of the Board and assessed the independence of the independent
non-executive Directors. The Nomination Committee also recommended suitable
candidate for executive function.

The Company recognises the importance of board diversity which is beneficial

for the enhancement of the Company’s performance. The Board has adopted a
board diversity policy (the “Board Diversity Policy”) with effect from 12 August
2013, which provides that the nomination and appointment of Board members
should be based on meritocracy, taking into considerations of the diversity of
Board members from different aspects, including but not limited to gender, age,
cultural and educational background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service, and discussed all measurable objectives set for
implementing the policy. The Nomination Committee's role includes monitoring the
implementation of the policy and review the same as appropriate.
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The Company also adopted a nomination policy (The “Nomination Policy”) with
effect from 1 January 2019. The purpose of the Nomination Policy is to set
guidelines for the administration by the Nomination Committee of the nomination,
evaluation and termination of each member of the Board. The Board shall

be composed of members with balance of skills, experience and diversity of
perspectives appropriate to accomplish the Group’s business development,
strategies, operation, challenges and opportunities. Each member of the Board
shall possess, be recognized for and be able to exhibit high and professional
standard. The core criteria include gender, age, capability, experience, skill and
knowledge, integrity and ethics, independency and leadership. In the nomination
process, each new candidates shall be considered upon evaluation against the
criteria. According to the nomination procedure, the Nomination Committee is
responsible for identifying potential new Directors and recommends to the Board
for decision. If appointment is considered by the Board, the appointment shall
be subject to the approval by the Board in accordance with the Company’s
Memorandum and Articles of Association, the GEM Listing Rules and the
Nomination Policy. If the candidate is nominated by the Shareholders, the
nomination and appointment shall follow the procedures (if any) set out in the
Company’s Memorandum and Articles of Association, the GEM Listing Rules and
the Nomination Policy. The Policy shall also be governed by other additional and
relevant rules under the Company’s Memorandum and Article of Association and
the GEM Listing Rules applicable to the nomination, appointment, election, re-
election, retirement, and termination of Directors.

In February 2019, the Company was pleased to welcome Mr. Pak Wai Keung,

Martin to the Board. Mr. Pak’s experience in finance, accounting and corporate
governance affairs would boost diversity to the Board.
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Summary and Measurable Objectives of the Board Diversity
Policy

The Nomination Committee reviews and assesses the Board composition on
behalf of the Board and recommends the appointment of new Directors. In
designing and reviewing the Board's composition, the Nomination Committee
will consider from a number of aspects. All Board appointments will be based on
meritocracy, and candidates will be considered against objective criteria, having
due regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board.

Selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity perspectives,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of service. The ultimate
decision will be based on merits and contributions that the selected candidates will
bring to the Board.

During the year, the Nomination Committee reviewed the diversity of the Board
from perspectives, including gender, age, professional background, business
experience, length of service and directorship with other listed companies. The
Nomination Committee considered that the Board possessed a balance of skill and
expertise and a diverse mix appropriate for the business of the Company and will
review the composition and diversity of the Board if and when necessary.

Remuneration Committee

The Company established the Remuneration Committee on 1 August 2005 with
written terms of reference. The Remuneration Committee is primarily responsible
for making recommendations to the Board regarding the Group’s policy and
structure for remuneration of all Directors and senior management. The Board has
adopted the operation model, where the Remuneration Committee has duties to
determine, with delegated responsibility, the remuneration packages of individual
Executive Directors and senior management.

The Remuneration Committee currently comprises three Independent Non-
executive Directors, Mr. Wang Yan (chairman of the Remuneration Committee),
Mr. Lien Jown Jing, Vincent and Mr. Pak Wai Keung, Martin and one Executive
Director, Mr. Chan Ling.

The determination of remuneration packages of the Directors takes into
consideration of the factors such as time commitment and responsibilities of

the Directors and by reference to the level of emoluments normally paid by

a listed company in Hong Kong to directors of comparable calibre and job
responsibilities so as to ensure a fair and competitive remuneration package as
is fit and appropriate. During the year, the Remuneration Committee approved the
adjustments of the salary of an executive Director by reference to his duties and
responsibilities with the Group.
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Executive Committee

The Executive Committee was established by the Board with specific terms of
reference. The committee currently comprises four Executive Directors, Mr. Li
Ning (chairman of the Executive Committee), Mr. Chan Ling, Mr. Li Chunyang and
Mr. Li Qilin. The primary duties of the Executive Committee are to propose and
implement business strategies and plans for the Group, monitor the operations
of companies of the Group and approve matters relating to their day-to-day
operations.

The Executive Committee is responsible for performing the corporate governance
duties which include the development and review of the Company’s policies

and practices on corporate governance, review and monitor the training and
continuous professional development of Directors and senior management, review
and monitor the Company's policies and practices on compliance with legal and
regulatory requirements, develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual applicable to employees of the Group and the Directors

and review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in the
corporate governance report of the Company. During the year, the members of the
Executive Committee considered and reviewed the compliance of the CG Code
and disclosure in the corporate governance report of the Company as required
under the GEM Listing Rules.

The Executive Committee also has duty to design, implement and monitor the

risk management and internal control systems and to provide confirmation to the
Board on the effectiveness of the risk management and internal control systems of
the Company.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee was formed on 17 March 2000 with written terms of
reference. The primary duties of the Audit Committee are to review the Company’s
financial statements, annual reports, half-year reports, quarterly reports and risk
management and internal control systems and to provide advice and comments
thereon to the Board.

The Audit Committee currently comprises three Independent Non-executive
Directors, Mr. Pak Wai Keung, Martin (chairman of the Audit Committee), Mr. Lien
Jown Jing, Vincent and Mr. Wang Yan and one Non-executive Director, Mr. Ma
Wing Man. This annual report has been reviewed by the Audit Committee.

During the year, the committee members met together to review the quarterly
reports, half-year report and annual report before submission to the Board. The
chief financial officer of the Company was also invited to attend these meetings

in order to give a full account of the financial statements of the Group. The Audit
Committee also reviewed (i) the changes in accounting standards and their impact
on the Company’s financial reporting and (ii) the risk management and internal
audit plan and reports.

COMPANY SECRETARY

During the year, Ms. Kong Kwok Ha had been the company secretary of the
Company for the period from 1 January 2018 to 11 July 2018. Mr. Cheung Chi
was appointed as the company secretary of the Company with effect from 15
November 2018. During the year, Mr. Cheung has duly complied with the relevant
professional training requirement under Rule 5.15 of the GEM Listing Rules.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the accounts of the
Company.

In preparing the accounts for the year ended 31 December 2018, the Directors
have selected suitable accounting policies and applied them consistently,
approved adoption of all Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, made
judgments and estimates that are appropriate, and prepared the accounts on a
going concern basis.

The responsibilities of the external auditor about their financial reporting are set
out in the independent auditor’s report on pages 97 to 103 of this annual report.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the total fee paid and payable

to PricewaterhouseCoopers in relation to the audit and other services for the
financial year ended 31 December 2018, amounted to HK$3,986,000 and
HK$1,517,000 respectively. The sum for other services included HK$570,000
for the agreed upon procedures performed on the Group's interim results for the
six months ended 30 June 2018 and the quarterly results for the three months
ended 31 March 2018, HK$797,000 for the agreed upon procedures performed
on the Group's working capital forecast and HK$150,000 for tax services.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The management has the responsibility to maintain appropriate and effective risk
management and internal control systems, and the Board has the responsibility to
review and monitor the effectiveness of the Group's risk management and internal
control systems at least annually covering financial, operational and compliance
controls, to ensure that the systems in place are adequate and effective.

The Group’s risk management and internal control systems are, however, designed
to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives,
and can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against material
misstatement or loss.

During the Reporting Period, the Group has engaged KPMG Advisory (Hong Kong)
Limited ("KPMG"), as its risk management and internal control review advisor

for the year ended 31 December 2018, to review the Group’s risk management
system.
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The procedures used to identify, evaluate and manage major risks by the Group
are summarised as follows:

Risk Identification

o Identifies risks that may potentially affect the Group’s business and
operations.

Risk Assessment

° Assesses the risks identified by using the assessment criteria developed by
the management; and

° Considers the impact on the business and the likelihood of their
occurrence.

Risk Response
o Prioritises the risks by comparing the results of the risk assessment; and

o Determines the risk management strategies and internal control procedures
to prevent, avoid or mitigate the risks.

Risk Monitoring and Reporting

° Performs ongoing and periodic monitoring of the risks and ensures that
appropriate internal control procedures are in place;

° Revises the risk management strategies and internal control procedures in
case of any significant change of situation; and

° Reports the results of risk monitoring to the management and the Board
regularly.

The Board considered that major risks of the Group were managed within the
acceptable level and the management will continue to monitor the residual risks
and report to the Board on an ongoing basis.

The management and various departments conduct periodic self-assessment

of the effectiveness of the internal control policies and procedures. KPMG was
engaged and assisted the Group to perform a review of the effectiveness of the
Group's internal control systems that covers financial, operational and compliance
controls.

The Board, supported by the Audit Committee, is directly responsible for risk
management and internal control systems of the Group and for reviewing its
effectiveness. Based on the reviews performed by the management, comments
from the Audit Committee and recommendations for areas of improvement
from external auditor and risk management and internal control review advisor,
the Board is of the view that the Group's risk management and internal control
systems are effective and adequate for the year ended 31 December 2018.
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The Company maintains a framework for the handling and dissemination of inside
information and the disclosure policy of the framework sets out the procedures
and internal controls to ensure inside information remains confidential until such
information is appropriately disclosed and the announcement of such information
is made in a timely manner in compliance with the SFO and the GEM Listing
Rules.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS AND INVESTORS’ RELATIONS

The Group is committed to maintaining a high level of transparency and employs
a policy of open and timely disclosure of relevant information to the Shareholders
and the investors. The Board strives to encourage and maintain constant dialogue
with the Shareholders through various means.

Procedures for requisitioning an extraordinary general
meeting and for putting forward proposals at general
meetings

Shareholder(s) holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-
tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at general
meetings of the Company may, by written requisition to the Board or the company
secretary of the Company signed and deposited in accordance with Article 64 of
the Company's articles of association, require an extraordinary general meeting

to be called by the Directors for the transaction of any business specified in the
requisition.

Shareholder(s) may propose a candidate for election as a Director at any general
meetings of the Company by a requisition signed by the Shareholder (other than
the person to be proposed) of his intention to propose such person for election
as a Director together with a notice signed by the person to be proposed of his
willingness to be elected in accordance with Article 113 of the Company’s articles
of association.

The articles of association of the Company set out the procedures for the
Shareholders to convene general meetings, to move a resolution at general
meetings and to propose a person for election as a Director are available for
viewing at the Company’s corporate website www.vivachina.hk.
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Procedures by which enquiries may be put to the Board

General meetings of the Company provide a direct forum of communication
between Shareholders and the Board. Shareholders may at any time send their
enquiries to the Board in writing through the company secretary of the Company
whose contact is as follow:

Address: Room 3602-06, 36/F, China Merchants Tower, Shun Tak Centre, 200
Connaught Road Central, Hong Kong

Telephone: 37961111

Fax: 37961100

The company secretary of the Company shall forward the Shareholders” enquiries
to the Board, where appropriate to answer the Shareholders’ questions.

Communication with Shareholders

An annual general meeting of the Company was held on 15 June 2018 (the
2018 AGM"). A notice convening the 2018 AGM contained in the circular dated
22 March 2018 was despatched to the Shareholders together with the Annual
Report 2017. The Chairman of the Board and members of the committees of the
Company (as appropriate) attended the 2018 AGM to answer the questions from
the Shareholders. PricewaterhouseCoopers, the external auditor of the Company,
attended the 2018 AGM to answer questions about the conduct of the audit, the
preparation and content of the auditor’s report, the accounting policies and auditor
independence. The Chairman explained detailed procedures for conducting a poll.

All the resolutions proposed at the 2018 AGM, including (i) the adoption of the
audited financial statements and the reports of the Directors and the auditor of the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2017; (ii) the re-election of certain
Directors and the authorisation to the Board to fix the Directors’ remunerations; (i)
the re-appointment of auditor of the Company and the authorisation to the Board
to fix its remuneration; and (iv) the granting to Directors the general mandates to
issue and repurchase Shares, were passed by the Shareholders by way of poll.
The poll results of the 2018 AGM were published on the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company.

Changes in the Constitutional Documents

There was no significant change in the constitutional documents of the Company
during the year 2018.

A notice for the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company will

be published on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company and
despatched together with the Annual Report 2018 to the Shareholders as soon as
practicable in accordance with the articles of association of the Company and the
CG Code.

VIVA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED J£ AL+ Bl ¥ IR G FR A 7]

HESREFEAZRRE
AATZBREAENERERETS Y W
BrEETFL REABEEBANFY A
TIREAEERELERSH MATRE
TEE R

Wik BB THEP0055REEZFLHEBBAR
[E361£3602-06 =

T 5% 37961111

{8 H 37961100

RRBZARMEREMNETERIMERZ
EH BREREBRR Z5H -

ERRzZBE
ARAFER_ZE-NFRNATHERTRE
BERg ([ ZE-/\FRRBFKRg])-
HHAZZ-N\F=ZAZ+AZBEHMAH
ZEBR-_ZE- \FREBEFAGZBEEE
AT t+tFFEREFTETRR - EFS
ITFEERARBIEZEGZKRE (WER)D
HE-Z-N\FRREFAGUBRERRZ
R - ARR ZINEZ BN B KRB g AT
A EBAEHE —Z— N\FRRBEFAGIA
BMEBBETER REKBBHRELER
B SABREZBEMBLMEZIRE R
EMBETRERRZFMEF-

R-E-NEFRRBFRGLIREZME
RER BRIFMEBE_FT—LF+-A
T BUEFEZEERM BRI MARAF]
EZeRESMREBEBS: (1BEEETES
LEEREECBETESME : ((EBARQA
BB EERESEETENES MR T
EF - REREABTIBEKD HOER

RUARERATABB — T \FRERE
FREZREFRORGERE TIERBE AT M A
N A Z Ak

HBEEXHEE

RIZ-N\FR ARFAZEBERXMHL

ARRBIEERRBS KRG 28BS TENE
RARA R B BB IRIEA QR Z AR
BRAALERERTAHRIE/ITZER
TEREF-_Z-N\FFERETETER
o



Environmental, Social and Governance Report
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ABOUT THE REPORT
Reporting Standard and Scope

This annual Environmental, Social and Governance (“ESG") Report (the
“Report”) has been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the
ESG Reporting Guide, Appendix 20 (‘ESG Guide”) of the GEM Listing Rules
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“HKEx”") and the Group

has complied with all the “comply or explain” provisions set out in the

ESG Guide. It provides an overview of the ESG policies and management
approach adopted by Viva China Holdings Limited (“the Group”) and
presents the sustainability initiatives and performance of our core business
areas including sports, sports park and sports center, and sports community
during the Reporting Period. To better navigate relevant ESG topics, a
detailed HKEx ESG content index is available at the end of the Report.

Stakeholder Engagement and Materiality Assessment

The Group recognises the importance of engaging stakeholders and
identifying material sustainability issues for our continued business success.
As an ongoing practice, we maintain effective two-way communication with
our stakeholders via various channels. In preparation for the Report, we
partnered with an independent consultant to conduct an internal stakeholder
engagement exercise to further understand stakeholders’ views on our ESG
performance and future sustainability strategies.

The Group maintains good relationships with the users of its sports venues
and facilities, members, local governments and event planning agencies by
offering support.

The Group maintains strong relationships with its shareholders, investors,
customers, sponsors, schools, athletes and coaches by having active
communication with them.

The Group maintains positive relationships with the media, the communities
and local governments; ensures good compliance and coordination in
advance.
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STEP 1

B—%

Identification
The first step was to identify
and review the sustainability
disclosure of the Group’s
industry peers. Internal
stakeholders were also invited
to complete surveys to rank
the importance of ESG topics.

ik 3l

£ — R AL AR A
SERXAFBEERS
BORERR - B
BER A BP Az A TERK
E-REBERR -HER
ERBENEZRER
TR -

Suggestions and Feedback

Taking the reporting principle of materiality into account, this Report
focuses on ESG issues which are sufficiently important to our stakeholders.
The following three-step materiality assessment was conducted to
determine the material sustainability issues for disclosure.

STEP 2

B

Prioritisation
Results from the peer
benchmarking exercise and
the stakeholder survey were
consolidated. A prioritised list
of material ESG issues was
developed for the next step.
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We welcome feedback on this Report, our approach to sustainability and
performance. Please share your views by email (info@vivachina.hk) or by
phone (+852 3796 1111).

VIVA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED J£ AL+ Bl ¥ IR G FR A 7]

ZRINBEMRERRA 2 — AE
HIdmA s ARHEZNIRE
ghErEE RMCETU T =EE
ZUFEPR UBEATREMNEK

ARNEEREE-

Validation

Based on the outcomes of
steps 1 and 2, the Group’s
senior management considered
the relevance of each of the
HKEx ESG Guide's Aspects and
KPIs in relation to the Group's
business operations. A set of
material Aspects and KPIs were
then confirmed for disclosure.
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2. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY 2. hEMEEMR

Mission Focus Goal
{5 B& FE

To promote sportive and
healthy lifestyles in China

To fully realise the potential and value of
the sports industry in order to facilitate the
progress of social civilisation

To become the leading
and most dynamic sports
conglomerate in China

K BREES ANEREBEEXNENIREE RRTEEE—HE&R
BENERTA AR HE AT & B SCRRE BENNGEBELE

Striving to become the leading and most dynamic sports conglomerate

in China, the Group actively builds people-oriented sports destinations

and leverages our extensive sports resources to promote nationwide
physical fitness and raise the quality of life for urbanites. We provide

the neighbourhood in which we develop and operate with convenient,
high-quality and integrated sports venues, facilities and services, and
encourage their active participation in sports and leisure activities. To further
enhance the liveability of the local community, we work closely with local
governments and corporates to support the development of a wide range
of sports-related and ancillary commercial offerings. Through creating an
inclusive social platform, we are in a better position to promote sportive and
healthy lifestyles across China.

Moreover, the Group recognises the potential and value of the sports
industry, and thereby continuously seeks opportunities to create synergy in
accelerating the development of the industry. We utilise our strong portfolio
of sports resources to coordinate, sponsor and support different sports
activities, and thereby promote a nationwide sports culture and community
prosperity.
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GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE FOR SUSTAINABILITY

An effective corporate governance structure is essential to address
sustainability issues and manage ESG-related risks. The Board of Directors
should oversee the Group’s risk management and internal control systems
on an ongoing basis. The management facilitates the maintenance of
effective and appropriate risk management and internal control systems,
and reports the results to the Board regularly. The ESG working group
comprising representatives from various departments was also established
to properly monitor ESG performance and cope with relevant sustainability
risks.

OUR ENVIRONMENT

With an aim to become a leading sports conglomerate, the Group sees

our corporate mission as going beyond capturing economic values and
recognises the importance of sustainable development. Maintaining a
balance between efficient operations and environmental protection, we have
made continual efforts to enhance our sustainability performance, covering
air and greenhouse gas (“GHG") emissions, energy efficiency, water
conservation, waste management and mitigation of environmental impacts.

During the Reporting Period, the Group met all applicable legal and
regulatory requirements regarding environmental protection in all material
respects and there was no non-compliance case relating to air and GHG
emissions, discharges into water and land, and the generation of hazardous
and non-hazardous waste.

Resource Optimisation

The Group seeks to manage our impacts on the environment and ensure
resources are used in an efficient and prudent manner. Given the close
link between energy consumption and GHG emissions, we actively initiate
programmes to reduce our electricity consumption. For example, LED
lights and heat-insulated curtains are installed at the offices, and the
indoor temperature is maintained at 24°C to 26°C. We also implemented a
delamping project at our Hong Kong headquarters where 30 unnecessary
light fixtures were removed to optimise energy use.
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We also devote our efforts in energy conservation. Harnessing the potential
of renewable energy, solar panels are installed on the rooftop of the
Yangzhou Li Ning Sports Park and Linyi Li Ning Sports Center. At the sports
park, the installed panels generated 870 kWh clean energy in 2018.
Moving forward, we will continue to explore energy-saving opportunities to
further augment our performance on energy conservation.

As the operations of sports park and sports center constitute a significant
part of our water consumption, we have taken proactive measures in water
management at these operations. At the Yangzhou Li Ning Sports Park, we
implemented a rainwater harvesting system where rainwater is collected,
treated and reused for green area irrigation. We also plan to install water-
saving taps at the offices to further conserve water resources.

Waste Management

The Group has followed the principles on reuse, reduce and recycle when
it comes to managing our waste. To minimise our generation of solid
waste, the practice of reusing one-sided paper and other office items

such as envelopes is adopted. Festive decorations are reduced and, if
necessary, reused to avoid unnecessary wastage. Recycling bins for paper,
plastic bottles and packaging bags are also placed around the offices to
encourage waste separation. Throughout the year, we continued to work
closely with external partners to recycle both hazardous and non-hazardous
waste. At our Hong Kong headquarters, we partnered with Friends of the
Earth to recycle toner cartridges on a regular basis. We have also extended
such efforts by collaborating with Christian Action to organise a “Green
Collection” campaign on a quarterly basis where discarded clothing,
stationery and electronic devices were collected from our staff and donated
to persons in need.

Cultivating Environmental Awareness

As a responsible company, we are committed to building internal awareness
of environmental stewardship. Making use of posters and signs shown in
eye-catching places around the office, we encourage our staff members

to switch off lights and computers when they get off work and reduce
unnecessary printing. To further drive behavioural change, we educate

our staff on how to reduce negative environmental impacts arising from
operational processes through an information wall, which serves as a
platform to share practical green tips, at our Hong Kong headquarters.
Going forward, we aspire to cultivate a sense of responsibility in our staff to
integrate environmental considerations into daily decision-making at work.
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Environmental Protection Awards and Recognition

The Group actively responds to different environmental protection
campaigns. During the year, our efforts have been well recognised by the
industry and the wider community.

—  Awarded with the “Carbon Offset Certificate 2018" by Carbon Care
Asia Limited

—  Awarded with the “Wastewi$e Certificate — Excellence Level” under
the "Hong Kong Green Organisation Certification” by the Environment
Campaign Committee

—  Certified as "Hong Kong Green Organisation” in 2018

- Participated in “"Hong Kong No Air Con Night 2018” organised by

Green Sense

- Participated in “No Plastic Bottles Day 2018" organised by Chinese
YMCA of Hong Kong

- Participated in the “Toner & Ink Cartridges Recycling & Reuse
Programme” organised by Friends of the Earth

- Participated in “Earth Hour 2018” organised by World Wildlife Fund
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Environmental Performance Data RIEXREHE

Emissions B i

Carbon emissions and carbon emission intensity 2018 2017
BREE R R B B “E-N\FE =ZE-tHFE
Scope 1 emissions' Tonne 522.4 B3
HETHEWE U7

Scope 2 emissions? Tonne 2,683.6 1,494.40
& E 2B 22 U7

Total emissions Tonne 3,206.1 2,068.70
mEENE Mg

Scope 1 emission intensity Tonne/FTE? 2.0 2.6
HETBENEE Mg,/ FTE®

Scope 2 emission intensity Tonne/FTE 10.2 6.8
HECBENEE Mg, FTE

Total emissions intensity Tonne/FTE 12.1 9.4
BEEmE Mg, FTE

Other emissions

H 1t BE Bk

Wastewater generated Tonne 67,614* 56,900 (restated)
VIIKESE A (B&E75)
NOx emissions kg 6.0 N/A
REAWHENR T i A
SO« emissions kg 0.2 N/A
mE L WHE R T i A
PM emissions kg 0.4 N/A
R8 R BE B T TER

! Scope 1: Direct emissions from sources that are owned or controlled by the Group,
such as the consumption of natural gas, vehicles and air conditioning units.

2 Scope 2: Indirect emissions from the consumption of purchased electricity and steam

by the Group as a result of its operations. The sources of emissions are owned or

controlled by other companies.

e "FTE" means full-time employees.

The 2017 data was confined to the emissions from Yangzhou Li Ning Sports Park.
Due to the improved availability of data, the scope of wastewater disclosure has been
expanded for 2018 to include two subsidiaries in Beijing, Yangzhou Li Ning Sports Park
and Linyi Li Ning Sports Center.

SE— HAEEMEARENNOYRAELZ
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Resource usage &R i

Resource usage and resource usage intensity 2018 2017
EREARERERARE —E-N\FE Z—ZE—tHE
Electricity consumption kWh 3,794,221° 2,113,409
AE= T F B

Natural gas consumption® m? 242,467 249,798
RINEHRES MK

Gasoline consumption’ Litre 10,969 15,168
T o

Water consumption® Tonne 67,609 57,696
FAXE8 U

Electricity consumption intensity KWh/FTE 14,372 9,606
HERE TEAFTE

Natural gas consumption intensity m*/FTE 918 1,135 (restated)
AARHERETE LR FTE (®=7)
Gasoline consumption intensity Litre/FTE 42 68.9 (restated)
FURHRE R E Ft,/FTE (&E7)
Water consumption intensity Tonne/FTE 256 262.3 (restated)
AKEE e, FTE (&E5)
5 The increase in electricity consumption is partly due to the expansion of reporting scope to 5 HRREBERERAZRERATEESGP LA

cover Linyi Li Ning Sports Center this year. FERE=HFAEM-

6 The natural gas was only consumed by the two subsidiaries in Beijing, Linyi Li Ning Sports 8 AAREBRERELEHMENE QA BTE

Center and Yangzhou Li Ning Sports Park.

! The gasoline was mainly consumed by the headquarters in Hong Kong, and the subsidiaries in

Beijing and Yangzhou.

¢ Water was mainly consumed by Yangzhou Li Ning Sports Park and Linyi Li Ning Sports Center.
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Hazardous and non-hazardous waste EEREEZEEEY)

Waste category

Usage quantity

Recycled quantity

BEEYER Ag EIE-s
2018 2017 2018 2017
—E-N ZFE—t ZFE-N\ ZE=—t
FE FE FE FE
Hazardous waste
BEEBEY
Waste carbon battery and alkaline battery kg 0 0 4.6 20,8
(restated) (restated)
JB% B8 ik I B B g 1 EE = (&%) (&%)
Non-hazardous waste and waste intensity
BERRYIREETBEYEE
Paper Tonne 1.4 1.4 1.9 1.8
FA#& e
Plastic Tonne 3.9 1.7 0.6 1.7
¥ [ WE
General waste Tonne 3.1 4.9 2.6 3.6
—REEY Mg
Waste produced Recycled quantity
by intensity by intensity
EXEBREYNEE B &% E
2018 2017 2018 2017
—E-N ZE—+t ZZE-N\ ZE=—t
FE FE FE FE
Non-hazardous waste Tonne/FTE 0.03 0.04 0.02 0.03
NEREEENEETE e, FTE
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OUR HUMAN CAPITAL

In alignment with our long-standing people-oriented principles, the Group
is committed to providing a fair, harmonious and safe environment where
staff can develop to their full potential. In line with our staff handbook, we
have formulated a comprehensive set of policies covering employment and
labour practices, training and development, occupational health and safety
(“OHS") and ethical conduct.

Employment and Working Conditions

As staff is the cornerstone of our business, we strive to create an inclusive
and positive work environment for them. Following our employment policies,
we ensure that our recruitment, dismissal, performance assessment, and
promotion are free from any direct or indirect discrimination regardless of
gender, age, religion, nationality or family status.

We recognise the Group's continued success relies on our ability to retain
and motivate our staff. As such, we award our staff with competitive
remuneration packages and welfare benefits, including discretionary
bonuses and commercial insurances such as group medical insurance and
business fravel insurance. As a sports-related company, we also care about
staff's physical and mental well-being. Healthcare services, including regular
physical check-ups, are provided. We also provide our Beijing-based staff
with free access to Li Ning Center, the sports center where the Beijing
office is located, to encourage their active participation in sports activities.

To promote work-life balance, our Hong Kong headquarters organised a
number of staff activities during the year. For instance, our staff had the
opportunity to socialise and get to know their colleagues better at our
annual year-end party, monthly birthday lunches, as well as workshops on
recreational interests. We also invited the Hong Kong Society for the Blind
to provide our staff with massage services for the sake of work stress
relieve.

Throughout the Reporting Period, we strictly complied with all relevant
laws and regulations in relation to compensation and dismissal, recruitment
and promotion, working hours, rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity,
anti-discrimination and other benefits and welfare including Employment
Ordinance (Chapter 57 of the Law of Hong Kong), Mandatory Provident
Fund Scheme Ordinance (Chapter 485 of the Law of Hong Kong) and
Labour Law of the People’s Republic of China in PRC.
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Human resource overview 2018 2017
ANERBR —E-NEE ZZE—tHEE
Total number of staff ETHAH 266° 220
Number of staff — by gender BEHERESETI AR

Male 2 142 120
Female Z 124 100
Number of staff — by age group BRERAERNEIET A

< 30 years old <30B% 106 79
30 — 50 years old 305%-505% 125 113
> 50 years old >508% 35 28
Number of staff — by employee type REBEHNEIET A

Full-time 28 264 219
Part-time R 2 1
Staff turnover 2018 2017
ETREABR —E-NEE Z—ZE—tEE
Overall staff turnover rate ETHARKE % 60" 36
Staff turnover rate — by gender BRHUERESETIRAR

Male 5 % 33 34
Female =z % 27 37
Staff turnover rate — by age group BREFERAERNB BT RAE

< 30 years old <30%% % 43 64
30 — 50 years old 30B%-505% % 16 20
> 50 years old >508% % 2 20
Staff turnover rate — by employee category Z{ESEBIE P E T HREAR

Functional heads HFEE" % 0.4 0
Management EIEE % 2 9
General/technical staff — e T % 58 37
Contract worker/temporary warker BRI/ HET % 0 48
e For the purpose of this Report, the total number of staff covers only the full time employees of o iRERA B TRABREARAR R ARBER

the Company and five other operating subsidiaries in the PRC rather than the total number of

full time employees of the Group.

0 The increase in overall staff turnover rate is partly due to the launch of Linyi Li Ning Sports
Center in 2018, which employed a significant amount of full-time security personnel and
cleaning staff during the pre-opening phase. Excluding that, the overall staff turnover rate was

40% in 2018.

n Functional heads refers to major decision-makers of the business or functional departments,
including directors, financial controller, company secretary, general counsel, and general

managers and deputy general managers of the subsidiaries.

Fe@EsMBARMNE2BET Y IARRAEE
ZERBETHEAR

AR IEZEEs P O EEHRERREAKRE
PRRATZLBERL - BR T N\FEETHAR
SEEM-FIBRLIE —S—N\EEETBRL
R B40% o

P EE B AP A PI M E EIREE -

BREARBNAE WA RENENER
VA K2 B JB8 2% B B 48 48 32 AN B A 4K 32 -
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Training and Development

We believe on-going training enables our staff to reach their full potential.
Therefore, we offer job-specific training and development opportunities to
enhance staff's performance and career development. The Group has set
out its own training and development policies with transparent application
procedures. During the Reporting Period, various internal training
programmes were arranged covering topics such as risk management.
We also offered staff members at our Hong Kong headquarters and two
subsidiaries in Beijing a paid holiday if professional examinations were
scheduled on their working days.

el BB R

BAREFEEITERMANE TR
7 BEIEE N - B - 3R 5 B
LEREE URHEITHRREEE
R -AKBEEHEEFNEIIRER
KR RAERHERBER N HREH
A ANERED B S EAREIE S
MERREESETIE SHEXEZALH
EETITEA RATEREEEILL
B E B R AR B TR & #
fRREA -

Average training hours'? 2018 2017

T35 32 5 B 22 —E-N\FE Z—ZZE—tHFE
Hours Hours

/N B /N B

Average training hours by gender BRI D 8 TZIIFHRE

Male S 5 13

Female Z 5 17

Average training hours by employee REESERNESETIZI

category TIRE

Functional heads ENES 10 17

Management EIEE 26 13

General/technical staff —R e T 6 5

Contract worker/temporary worker BRI/ HET 35 17

12 Training attendees and hours exclude training for Board members. 12 FHIARERBHE TR E AR EEHNE -
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Occupational Health and Safety

One of our top priorities is to ensure the health and safety of our staff.
Guided by our OHS policies, we make every effort to enhance workplace
quality and minimise OHS risks. This year, we implemented different health

and safety measures at our Hong Kong headquarters and PRC subsidiaries,

respectively, including:

Occupational health

e Provided staff members with medical insurance

e (Qrganised free physical check-ups for staff

e Provided staff with ergonomic office chairs and laptop accessories

Occupational safety

e (Conducted fire drills periodically

e Regular checks on fire-fighting facilities

e Subsidised staff to attend first-aid courses
e Qrganised health-related seminars

Throughout the year, we have complied with Occupational Safety and
Health Ordinance (Chapter 509 of the Law of Hong Kong) by ensuring

the above health and safety measures properly implemented. There was
no record of any non-compliance case relating to the provision of a safe
working environment and the protection of staff from occupational hazards.

Labour Standards

We operate in compliance with all applicable laws and regulations related
to labour practices. The Human Resources Department reviews and verifies
the information of the applicants to prohibit the employment of child
labour and forced labour. Internal audit and management reviews are also
conducted on a regular basis. Disciplinary action will be taken against any
case of violation. During the Reporting Period, there were no reported
cases relating to child and forced labour.

Anti-Corruption

We adhere to business integrity and professional conduct while carrying
out business. We have complied with Prevention of Bribery Ordinance
(Chapter 201 of the Law of Hong Kong) and do not tolerate any form of
bribery, extortion, fraud or money laundering. It is compulsory for our staff
to comply with the staff handbook and relevant internal policies relating to
anti-corruption, and fully disclose actual or potential conflicts of interest.
Our staff members may raise concerns on any suspected misconduct
anonymously where designated personnel will conduct a comprehensive
investigation under the whistleblowing policies of the Group. During the
Reporting Period, there were no reported legal cases regarding corrupt
practices brought against the Group.
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The Group works with various suppliers and seeks to extend our sustainable
practices across the value chain. To effectively manage the environmental
and social risks arising from our extensive supply chain, we prudently select
suppliers who share our dedication to quality services and sustainability. At
our Yangzhou Li Ning Sports Park, we closely follow standard “Purchase
Management Methods” procedures and encourage green procurement.
Through developing long-term partnerships with appropriate suppliers, we
manage to enhance our operational efficiency and minimise ESG-related
risks.

Our Quality Services

With our dedication to our started mission, we leverage our rich and
diversified sports resources to create an integrated social platform.
Throughout our operations, we follow a customer-oriented principle with

a focus on safety and quality while engaging citizens in sports and leisure
activities. As part of our usual safety practice, we appoint security personnel
and ensure relevant insurance is in place during the sports competitions
and events carried out by the Group. All personal information collected

on our customers and staff is handled by designated personnel in strict
confidence in accordance with the Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance and
other relevant local and national legislation governing data privacy.

During the Reporting Period, we complied with the relevant laws and
regulations relating to health and safety, advertising, labelling and privacy
matters relating to the offerings and services provided by the Group.
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OUR COMMUNITY

The Group’s commitment is to promote nationwide sports culture and
raise the quality of life for citizens. With our all-out efforts in community

development, we strive to advocate sports and healthy living, and meet the

local community needs for a more inclusive society. Since 2014, we have
been awarded the Caring Company Logo in recognition of our continuous
contributions in corporate citizenship.

Number of
community service
events/activities

EMHOHE

AEBYNHEEEZREFH LA R
MRZEEZE -HME N HESHES
B-BOEEREMERLE YA
BHHtREREABRRUENTLE B
T-ENR BMEREE [HREE
BIES URERFUEREERRM
FERR -

Total hours of

supported and community service Number of
attended by the Group contributed beneficiaries served'
EEBFXER
S E RS
EE BEHRE BT ERKARH R A8
2018
—E-N\F 88 1,490 55,388
2017
—E—+F 38 1,335 48,300
1 Refer to the number of people served or engaged during the Group's community 8 EASEMERBTEHAMAKREHLEY A

service programmes.

Promoting Sports and Healthy Living

We endeavour to promote the popularity of sports activities and foster
sports culture in China. Throughout the year, we make good use of our
diversified resources, especially the well-equipped sports park and sports
center, to push forward sportive and healthy lifestyles within the local
community.
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To promote active sports participation among citizens of all ages, a wide
spectrum of sports and leisure activities are organised and promoted
during the Reporting Period at our Yangzhou Li Ning Sports Park and Linyi
Li Ning Sports Center, including sports training classes, cultural carnivals
and festivals infused with sports elements, jogging and marathon activities,
cycling and table tennis competitions, to name a few.

Aspiring to serve as community hubs, our sports park and sports center
also offered a wide variety of public welfare initiatives regularly to the public.
These included free body check-up and healthcare sessions, elderly fitness
activities, health seminars on water safety and rehabilitation, family fun days,
and etc. Free rental of sports facilities is also offered for the citizens at
specific times during the year.

VIVA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED JE AL ER = RA R A F

REBTRFRENHREEGS M
BAE BN BESRNESMNFTER
FERBIFEES D OABKIERE
BRBERAREED SERBEIIRR
BMABE TR UL RFEREGA
AE BB UNEE REERE

ERBES-

BMBAKBERED  EHE QR
MEEERESHT OARRIEIL
BB BR2ESERE RREE
B RERBRLIY WAXZEREEE
BNRFERNE REBLALZ-BEF
RETERFARERHEHETRL2E
FDE o



Environmental, Social and Governance Report IR315 - {1 ERELHRES

Creating an Inclusive Society

In parallel with our efforts to nurture a nationwide sports culture, we actively
promote social participation and inclusion. Through collaborating with
different non-governmental organizations and charity groups, we encourage
our staff to support the disadvantaged groups and the younger generation,
and thereby deliver positive messages to the wider community.

We have maintained a close relationship with Fu Hong Society, an
organisation dedicated to providing rehabilitation services in Hong Kong. In
2018, we took part in its “Best Buddies Hong Kong” cooking competition
where our staff volunteers teamed up with disabled persons to make dishes
together. In addition, we continued to purchase cookies on a regular basis
from Madam Hong's Bakery, an organisation where disadvantaged persons
make the bakeries, to support the disadvantaged group.

During the Reporting Period, our staff volunteers from our Hong Kong
headquarters paid a visit to the Ronald McDonald House, delivering our
care and love to children suffering from long-term diseases.

Moreover, by collaborating with Olympic medalists and renowned athletes,
the Group initiated donation programmes to Linyi Pu Yuan Primary School
and No.39 High School of Linyi during the year. The Group believed that
the donation of various kind of sports equipment to the younger generation
would help cultivate sports habits among them.
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Awards and Recognition

Over the Reporting Period, the Group has been recognised for its continual
efforts in community investment contribution.

o Presented with the “Caring Company Award 2018" by the Hong
Kong Council of Social Service

° Presented with the “Family-Friendly Employers Awards 2017/18" by
the Family Council

. Presented with the “Social Capital Builder Awards” in 2018 by the
Community Investment and Inclusion Fund of the Labour and Welfare
Bureau

° Presented with the “9th Hong Kong Outstanding Corporate
Citizenship Awards (Volunteer Team Category and SME Category)” by
Hong Kong Productivity Council and the Committee on the Promotion
of Civic Education

o Supported and promoted the ‘Breastfeeding-Friendly Workplace
2018” campaign organised by the Hong Kong Committee for
UNICEF

o Supported and promoted the “Hong Kong Work Happiness 2018"
programme organised by Promoting Happiness Index Foundation

° Yangzhou Li Ning Sports Park was honoured as “Yangzhou City
Courtesy Unit"

° Yangzhou Li Ning Sports Park was honoured as “Advanced Unit”
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8. HKEX ESG GUIDE CONTENT INDEX 8. BMXMRE HEREAWME
ESIRA %3
Aspect HKEx KPI Description Page Number/
BmE BRX T #a Remarks
BREN B fEE
BE
A.  Environmental
BRIE
A1 Emissions Al General Disclosure
B — MR P.78-P.79
A1 The type of emissions and respective emissions data
PEn ) & 48 I A8 B B iR BB P81
A1.2 Greenhouse gas emissions in total and intensity
MERBENEREE P81
A1.3 Total hazardous waste produced and intensity
FEXEERBEMREREE P83
Al.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced and intensity
FMEXREEEVHEERER P83
A1.5 Description of measures to mitigate emissions and results
achieved )
IR B E R RAEKR P.79-P.80
A1.6 Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes are
handled, reduction initiatives and results achieved
MAEERERBERRYNIT L BREELEN
CRNS TR IS P.79-P.80
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Aspect HKEx KPl Description Page Number/
[& BERAT Remarks
BREX BHiE B
BE
A2 Use of Resources A2 General Disclosure
ERER —REER P.78-P.79
A2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type in total and
intensity
REMESMNEER SEEEREEERTE P82
A2.2 Water consumption in total and intensity
BEKEREE P.82
A2.3 Description of energy use efficiency initiaﬁves and results achieved
e RE AR RS RAFKR P.78-P.80
A2.4 Description of issue in sourcing water, water efficiency initiatives
SR EUE AR KR L AT (AT - A R B2 A A K3 P79
met Bl RATERR
A2.5 Total packaging material used for finished products Due to the business

A3

HXmAAREMHNEE

nature of the Group,
this KPI is considered
not material.
ENAEE
BMEE - LA
BB NIEIE AR
HEEE-

The Environment A3
and Natural

General Disclosure

— R R

Resources
BERIXARER A3

Description of the significant impacts of activities on the

environment and natural resources and actions taken to manage

them

XA HRERRAERNEKR

EEABETENTY

22 480
e

The Business of
Group does not have
significant impacts on
the summoning
NEBEBKHFE
BRBERRAE

ERR mesepe
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Aspect
B m

B Social
He

B1 Employment
EE

B2 Health and Safety
BREHEHZS

B3 Development and
Training
BRNIEI

HKEx KPl Description Page Number/
BRET Remarks
BREN i
BEE
B1 General Disclosure

— PRI R P.84
B1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment type, age group and

geographical region

BRI EBEER FRERNKMWEESES LS P8
B1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and

geographical region

RUER - FhRARN RMEE HHEB MK E P.85
B2 General Disclosure

— R E P87
B2.1 Number and rate of work-related fatalities

EATEBRMILTHAB KL X NIL &
B2.2 Lost days due to work injury

EIEBBEEAIEAS NIL =
B2.3 Description of occupational health and safety measures adopted,

how they are implemented and monitored

R P ER AR EY B SR R R B 22 2 1R e - DA AR TT I

ERAE P87
B3 General Disclosure

— MR P.86
B3.1 Percentage of employees trained by gender and

employee category B

U REBENE S NZIIEERT DL P.86
B3.2 Average training hours completed per employee by gender and

employee category o

RUBIREERMNE S BR2EETKZ I TH

A &1 P.86
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Aspect
[E T

B4 Labour Standards
T AR

B5 Supply Chain
Management

HEEER

B6 Product
Responsibility
EmEE

B7 Anti-Corruption

RES

B8 Community
Investment

HERE

96

HKEx KPI
B 32 AT
B A N
BEE

B4

Description
ot

General Disclosure

— AR R

Page Number/
Remarks
HiG fEE

P.87

B4.1

Description of measures to review employment practices to avoid
child and forced labour
it BB NEE AR R ET KRS T

P.87

B4.2

Description of steps taken to eliminate such practices when

discovered

i A2 B3R B R IB R OB R A BB AT SR ER R 22 R

P.87

B5

General Disclosure

— R

P.88

B6

General Disclosure

— AR R

P.868

B7

General Disclosure

— AR FR

P.87

B7.1

Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt practices
brought against the issuer or its employees during the Reporting
Period and the outcomes of the cases
RERPAEBETASIEESERHEIEELENES
FARMBE MFF

R

P.87

B7.2

Description of preventive measures and whistle-blowing
procedures, how they are implemented and monitored

By s fa i R B MR - A RARREETT

-
2

P.87

B8

General Disclosure

—RIWE

P.89

B8.1

Focus areas of contribution

HIRRERE

P.89-P.91

B8.2

Resources contributed to the focus area

EEIHBERMBAER

P.89
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Independent Auditor’s Report

A% BN IR S

To the shareholders of Viva China Holdings Limited
(incorporated in Cayman Islands with limited liability)
OPINION

What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of Viva China Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 104 to 194,
which comprise:

° the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2018;

o the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income for the year then ended;

o the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then ended;
o the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended; and

o the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which include a summary
of significant accounting policies.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of
the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2018, and
of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA") and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BRARAE
BEATEERERATDRR
(REEHEETMA LN ERAA)
=R
BFIEFAHAR
FENTEEZERERAFR(ATHBEIER
A REMBAR (ATHEEEE])7
HNFI4R1UENGARVBRE B

e RIZZE-N\F+A=+—HHESE
AR

s HBEZRALFEMGABmIEME
E &

s HBERBULFENGARZEHK:
s HEZALFENHFERASRER N

s HAMBHRERME BRIESFTEXR
BE -

BFHER

BPRE REEAUBHRREREETES
SR AEEMN (FEMBREER) BEE
M sRR T EEER —T—\F+_A
—t-ANGAMBRRREREZE LF
ENGAMBRRIGFERASRELDER
BB (RBGRD) WEBEREZL SHE-

PricewaterhouseCoopers, 22/F Prince’s Building, Central, Hong Kong
T: +852 2289 8888, F: +852 2810 9888, www.pwchk.com

AR I8 Tl BT > il ERAK AR BEH —4

Mtk : +852 2289 8888 » L : +852 2810 9888 * www.pwchk.com
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing
("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those standards are
further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of
most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon,
and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matter identified in our audit is summarised as follow:

° Revenue recognition

VIVA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED J£ AL+ Bl £ IR G FR A 7]
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Key Audit Matter
BRESEE

Revenue recognition

WA #&Z

Refer to note 3 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES, ASSUMPTIONS
AND JUDGEMENTS, note 4 OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION
and note 5 REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND OTHER GAINS-NET to
the consolidated financial statements

FR2HEE B HRERMAIERS A RERH
BT e & EE R Mol - i A R EH AL
I & F 58

The Group recognized revenue of HK$1,135 million for the

year ended 31 December 2018. The revenue was mainly

derived from sports content production and distribution, sports
talent management, sale of goods and community development
consultancy services.

B F2018F12 A3 A IEFE - EEERRBYA136BE
BT - WAFTEREREBERNDTRIEREIT BEAL
EREMSHERE HERMMUARMEREERRS -

Significant management judgement was involved in revenue
recognition, such as determining whether the role of the Group in
those transactions was acting as principal or as agent and whether to
recognise revenue on a gross or net basis. The assessment included
considering and weighing key features like which party bears the
primary responsibility, inventory risks, and the way to establish prices.
PRI ARRS REBENHE fINEEEEELL
REFHAEBREARIEIBERSREANLEE R
PREERFREEREBARA ZETHBREZSE
MEGHNESEERESRAEFEER RERERE
R ARRERBEEEBRNEBRESE-

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BMNESTNATEERREESSTE

We assessed the reasonableness of management’s judgement with
reference to the relevant accounting standards and consideration of
relevant facts and circumstances. The audit procedures we performed
mainly included:
BRERBGTETZEREBEENER KMAHERE
BrHEH B ET T E -RMEENEAREFEE
BIE

- We reviewed selected samples of contracts, discussed with
management, finance and business personnel of the Group to
understand the business substance, transaction process and
arrangement;

- HAEETHEEDRONER BRESEEERE-
MGEHMEBEEAABETIR THREXEEL
MRS mBME

- For selected samples of transactions, we examined the
supporting documents, including sales orders, shipping
documents, records of deliverables, invoices and cash receipts,
where applicable;

- HEWMKRERNRG KMRETHEBEFUEX
% BIEHEEE BEE RHMNREKRLH
BEMNRRE (0E)F:

- We selected samples of customers to confirm the balances as
of 31 December 2018, the main terms of the contracts and the
amounts of transactions occurred during the year;

- HMEEHMEERNTFEZE2018F12H31HME
WHENRSHRE cRFERFNAFRENRIHE
MET BT -
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Key Audit Matter
BRESEER

Revenue recognition

WA R

Our audit focused on this area due to the magnitude of revenue,

the sales and services contracts that the Group entered into in the
current year and the significant judgment involved.
BMNEFEIE —FEEZER T WARELRAKE
MEHEER REER - AR RAEEE 6 -

VIVA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED J£ AL+ Bl £ IR G FR A 7]

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BB NAEERREENSE

We also performed the following procedures in relation to the
judgement of the revenue recognition on a gross or net basis:
BHEHHBARRBEE AL FREAERNAGERET
THRF:

- We reviewed the contracts and discussed with the management
to assess the main terms, including who is the primary obligor
to provide goods or services to the customer, who has the
inventory risks;

- HEMYERETTER TEEEEBENUTGEE
TEGRN BRERATEFHEIRERHRBHNEE
BN HEEREEERR

- For selected samples of customers and suppliers, we checked
their background and interviewed them to understand the key
areas of their cooperation, such as how their relationships were
established, how the price was negotiated and determined and
the acceptance of goods delivered or service rendered;

- HEWMEERNEPNMEER KMETTERH
B WERBEZGATRENGERETNEES
M Pl aneE 5 anf 27 AR P R R - (B AR a9 ok I BR
T E LA K SRV B W 3 AR 75 1) B L

Based on the procedures performed, we found the revenue
recognised were consistent with the established accounting policy of
the Group with no material difference identified.
EREEmNER BMARRKARREEERENE
TR B RREXREER-
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises all of the information included in the annual report other
than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether
the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We
have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE CHARGED
WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are responsible
for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis
of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance is responsible for overseeing the Group's financial
reporting process.

Hi 58

BERREEAHAMERAR HiWEER
REBRANABERS BT EREEEMBR
KRBT ZBED RS o

BAESEEMBHRRNBEELL MREEME
B BT A EREEMERERETMEN

HY 2258 A ©

‘BAEBRMBRAMBEHRERNES  RMANE
TRHBEMES EilBiEd ZEHEM
EEREHEAAMBRRAKMESZBE
TAATENBEAFEEXNEBLEUTFE
ERERRANIBR -

AERBAEATH I MREMBR/EAD
EEFEEREREL RMATEREZE
BE-rE @ BB EMERS-

EERAEERGREMBRRARE

VEE

&

BERREZABAERETEQFAMAEMR
) (BEWBREER) REFE (RAKE
) WEBEREREBEEM T SNEAE MG
BE UHERBRESEEMBRROEE
PEEBRRFFREER M SR ERERR
AFTFEAREHEE -

ERBEEAVBERRE BEFAATHES
BEELENEE N YEERBR T RER
FEKERABNER URERRBERLER
AR RIEZAEREEEBRAEF
& SR BEEMERNBER TR

REBAAREESRENV K REBRE-
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether

due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.
We report our opinion solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional judgment
and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform
audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by
the directors.

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained,
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.
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o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated
financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the
consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to express
an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for
the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our
audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to
communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be
thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in
our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor's report
is Ng Ping Fai.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 22 March 2019
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
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Year ended 31 December 2018 HE—ZE—N\F+_A=+—HLEFE

2018 2017
—2-N\F —2-+tF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B 7 FET FAT
Revenue U &= 5 1,134,584 612,467
Cost of sales 85 & B (967,856) (517,959)
Gross profit E A 166,728 94,508
Other income and other gains — net H AU A R B U 25 5 5 5 24,532 42,055
Selling and distribution expenses $HE K& HE X (41,215) (21,614)
Administrative and other operating expenses 7 B 2 H ftb 4% & & 9 (136,220) (184,793)
Net impairment losses on financial assets B & EREF B R 39 (17,738) -
Finance costs B 7 K 2N o 6 (83,693) (87,215)
Share of profits less losses of associates DEBERTNEERELZ
and joint ventures i )k 5 18 15 182,329 48,196
Profit/(loss) before income tax BRATSHATER, (&8) 7 94,723 (108,863)
Income tax Frig i 10 (21,733) 5,995
Profit/(loss) for the year FRRF(FEER) 72,990 (102,868)
Other comprehensive (loss)/income: ~ Hft2H (&E) W
ltems that may be reclassified subsequently ~ EIZRRAIEM D EBm 2
to profit or loss, net of income tax of nil HE - HBRFSH (&)
— Share of other comprehensive loss of —DHBE QR Z
an associate HiEmEEE (514) (545)
— Reclassification adjustment upon —SEB D i EH = R 7]
deemed partial disposal of REFOEAE
an assocate o = 18,439
— Exchange differences on translation of —BEFINEBE 2
foreign operations ME X ZE& (246,515) 298,518
Other comprehensive (loss)/income FREMZ2E (FHE) ks
for the year, net of income tax of nil  HIBRFTEH (&) (247,029) 316,412
Total comprehensive (loss)/income FR2mE (FE) Wi sE
for the year (174,039) 213,544
Profit/(loss) attributable to: LT AT EESR (BE) :
— Equity holders of the Company —ARAAIERFEEA 76,982 (109,666)
— Non-controlling interests — JE4E AR A 25 (3,992) 6,798
72,990 (102,868)
Total comprehensive (loss)/income LTALTEAZ2E (E)
attributable to: e S
— Equity holders of the Company —RAEERFTFAEA (168,047) 201,636
— Non-controlling interests — IR (5,992) 11,908
(174,039) 213,544
Profit/(loss) per share attributable to A< X R B IF A A FE 1S
equity holders of the Company: FREF(EE) :
Basic (HK cents) ELR (7 4L) 11 0.69 (0.98)
Diluted (HK cents) g AL 11 0.67 (0.98)

The notes on pages 1171 to 194 are an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.

BHR ZEXED °
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

RESMBRRNR

As at 31 December 2018 M=—_Z—\F+=-_A=+—H

2018 2017
—E-N\E —E—tF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B 7 FH& T FET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment e 12 20,399 14,563
Investment properties "EYE 13 139,938 137,274
Intangible assets EmREE 14 29,721 =
Interests in associates and joint ventures REtE N R NEECE I ES 15 3,596,220 3,629,509
Derivative financial instruments PTHEFBKTA 16 - 2,255
Deposits and other receivables e & EHAth W skIA 20 68,955 1,760
Deferred tax assets BEEHIEEE 28 12,443 8,048
Total non-current assets JEMBEERE 3,867,676 3,793,409
CURRENT ASSETS REEE
Stock of properties MEFE 17 293,474 273,048
Inventories FE 18 244 336
Trade debtors and bills receivable JE 5 BR K % e W R AR 19 380,315 299,539
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables  FEHZXIE - R & &
H b & W kI8 20 115,861 258,026
Derivative financial instruments PTEMBITA 16 22,780 =
Cash and bank balances Be MIRITHE R 21 380,654 521,012
Total current assets MENEESE 1,193,328 1,351,961
CURRENT LIABILITIES REEE
Trade and other payables JE AT BR 30 K L R S BB 22 146,237 166,784
Contract liabilities EHEE 5 20,474 =
Accruals and receipts in advance BT E B R TB K GRIE 23 33,859 71,421
Deferred income IR E A 24 15,732 19,216
Bank loans RITE X 25 40,023 —
Payable to a non-controlling interest JE - FE 2 A% 4 26 - 1,135
Income tax payable TSR 34,654 38,218
Total current liabilities mEBERE 290,979 296,774
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEEFE 902,349 1,055,187
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT EEBERABER
LIABILITIES 4,770,025 4,848,596
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES kRBEE
Deferred income RIE WA 24 10,011 21,971
Derivative financial instruments PTEBMKIA 16 2,772 -
Bank loan IRITE K 25 - 37,535
Deferred tax liabilities REFHIEEFE 28 3,178 =
Convertible notes Al A ZE iR 27 819,602 750,605
Total non-current liabilities ERBBERTE 835,563 810,111
NET ASSETS EEFE 3,934,462 4,038,485
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As at 31 December 2018 M=—_Z—\FE+_-_A=+—H

2018 2017
—B-N\E —B-tF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B 7 FET FAT
EQUITY xR
Equity attributable to equity ARATEZEEAEGES
holders of the Company
Issued capital B BT IR 29 442,396 440,437
Perpetual convertible bonds KA ME AT 2 A (E 31 1,139,046 1,139,046
Reserves ek 32 2,309,695 2,423,649
3,891,137 4,003,132
Non-controlling interests IEFE IR HE = 43,325 35,353
TOTAL EQUITY FERBEE 3,934,462 4,038,485
The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on 22 March APBEHRERZE—NFE=A=-_F+T_HE
2019. EEgtE-
Li Ning Chan Ling
= PR 22
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer Executive Director and Chief Operating Officer
FREFTHAEH HITEFFLELE
The notes on pages 117 to 194 are an integral part of these consolidated FINMBEEZFIUEFMHE 2 MERZSEEEH
financial statements. BIRER 2 EKED o
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

REERBIR

Year ended 31 December 2018 HE_—_ZT—\F+_A=+—HILEFE

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

RARREHEAEL
Share  Perpetual Share  Exchange Convertible Non-
Issued  premium  convertible option  fluctuation  Reserve notes equity Accumulated controlling Total
capital account bonds Teserve reserve funds Teserve losses Total  interests equity
TR
KAt EX ZREE
BEIRA ROEER TLRREZ BREGE ROHE BEES R RIER 3 FERER  BREE
Notes HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 Hk$'000 HK§'000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000
i3 Tén TEx TEr  FTEr  TEr  TEr  TEr  TRn  TEx  TEr TEn
1 Janvary 2017 —E-+F-f-H 438218 4145239 1139046 125246 (370,088 1013 90392 (1851249 3718317 23445 374,762
Loss for the year FRER = = = = = - - (109666 (109,666) 6,798 (102,868)
Other comprefensive income/oss for the year: FREMRERS/ (BB):
Exchange diferences on tiansaton of foreign operaons BERNEBERZE - - - - 093408 - - - 2408 510 208518
Share of ofer comprehensive 1oss of an associte AMEBEAR A2 EER - - - - (545) - - - (549) - [545)
Reclasifcaton acjustment upon deemed pertl disposal of BESALERED TR
0 as00ite ExiprEL S - - - - 18439 - - - 18439 - 18439
Totlcomprefensie incomeoss for the year Fh2ERE/ (BB 4E - - - B K17 - ~ (100666 20163 N8 21354
Shares issued upon exercise of share aptions BREETERZTZRG k| 2219 2,87 - 6.944) - - - - 20562 - 22562
Equiy-setled sher opion arengements WRELSE 2 BRERH k| - - - 52,644 - - - - 52,644 - 52,644
Tienster o share opon resere upon the forefure or RERER RN
aipiy o share options EREERERERE - - - (18814 - - - 18814 - - -
Snare of assorees' resenve AMEBERA 2R - - - 7973 - 269 - 269 7973 - 7973
Tiansle o steufory reserve SEZERER - = = = = 2459 = (2459 - - -
At 31 December 2017 and 1 January 2018 RZE-tF+-B=1+-AR
—Z-\f-A-H 40437 4172526* 1,139,046 160,105* (58,786)* 6,664* 90,392 (1,947,252)* 4,003,132 35,353 4,038,485
Profi for the year FREF - - - - - - - 76,982 76,982 (399 72,990
Other comprefensive income/oss) for the year: FREp2ELE/ (BE):
Exchange diferences on tiansaton of foreign operaons BERNEBERZE - - - - (44515) - - - (4518) (2000  (246515)
St of ofher comprehensive los of an associate MEBERRZ L R2EER - - - - (514) - - - (514) - (514)
Total comprehensive loss/income for the year ER2E (BR) /hies - - - - (5029 - - 76,962 (168,047) (5,992 (174,039
Aeauisiion of a subsidary WE-RHEAR - - - - - - - - - 13,964 13,964
Sharesissed Upon exercie ofshare apions BREETERETZRG 20 1,959 2%52% - [112) - - - - 1373 - 1313
Fquiy-setfed share opion arangements NRELEzBRERSE %0 - - - 13,599 - - - (#s1) 13,148 - 13,148
Transfer ofshare opion rserve upon the forfefure or RERER LS
eipry of share options EREERERERE - - - @M - - - 01 - - -
Share of assoraes reserve MEBERA 2 G - - - 21,531 - 3123 - (3123 215 - 21,531
Tiansle o steufory reserve SETERRER - - - - - 2012 - (2,012) - - -
At 31 December 2018 RZE-NE+=A=1-A 442,39 4199,052* 1,139,046 165,911*  (303,815)* 11,799 90,392 (1,893,644 3,891,137 43,325 3934462

*

These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of HK$2,309,695,000

(2017: HK$2,423,649,000) in the consolidated statement of financial position.

*

ZERERREGEMBMRARAZER
A % 152,309,695,0008 T (—Z & —tF:
2,423,649,0007 7T, ) ©
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

REHERE

‘

4

Year ended 31 December 2018 HE—ZE—N\F+_A=+—HLEFE

2018 2017
—E2-NF —E—+tF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
Bt 5 FER F&T
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING EETHZRERE
ACTIVITIES
Profit/(loss) before tax BREATDE R, (E18) 94,723 (108,863)
Adjustments for; T
Finance costs B 7 2R 6 83,693 87,215
Share of profits less losses of associates PaR [y iR A/NET DS
and joint ventures G 2w R E B 14 (182,329) (48,196)
Interest income B U A 5 (6,525) (5,067)
Fair value loss on investment properties "EMEZ AFEEE 13 677 28,440
Fair value change in derivative PTEBBITAEZ
financial instruments NEEEE 5 5,109 (607)
Gain on remeasurement of pre-existing EFIEREELEY
interest in a joint venture HAE R 2 W (1,764) =
Gain on disposal of items of property, HEME BE K
plant and equipment HBEE W= 5 (183) (443)
Depreciation e 12 4,200 3,122
Amortisation of intangible assets | EEHH 14 380 =
Impairment losses on financial assets MBEEREEIE 17,738 -
Equity-settled share option expenses LARRREAEE 2 BERR R S 30(a) 13,148 52,644
28,867 8,251
Decrease in inventories FERD 76 922
Increase in stock of properties S/ EXER: Yl (3,552) (4,586)
Increase in trade debtors and bills receivable & U B 2k Kz 8 U Z2 4% 42 n (80,098) (24,420)
Increase in prepayments, deposits and ERNRE ek
other receivables H b & U FRIEE N (1,322) (40,608)
(Decrease)/increase in trade and JE 11 BR 5 Ko EL Ath B <) BR IR
other payables CmA) /30 (12,013) 72,329
Increase in contract liabilities AHBaFEEN 20,474 =
(Decrease)/increase in accruals and receipts ~ FE 5+ 2 A3 & B Uk 7B
in advance (e 4) /& (50,520) 7,653
Decrease in deferred income i JE W AR (14,042) (30,565)
Cash used in operations ZEEBFTARE (112,130) (11,024)
Income tax paid ERFEH (29,038) (9,688)
Net cash flows used in operating activities LEERBFTARESREFE (141,168) (20,712)

VIVA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED J£ AL+ Bl £ IR G FR A 7]
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows {8 IREREBR

Year ended 31 December 2018 HE—ZE—\F+_A=+—HLFE

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+tH
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B 5 FET FAET
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING REZHzRERE
ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from disposal of items of property, & W« ME &
plant and equipment RBEEB 2B E0E 577 566
Proceeds from disposal of investment HEREMEMSRIEA
properties 64,060 29,550
Cash received from deregistration of a joint 2R B8 —fE& &%
venture BUEEREMBEWE 2 - 10,392
Dividend received from an associate B —REEE QA MR E 15 11,343 2,408
Interest received 2 WF B 4,510 3,422
Purchases of items of property, plant and BEWME WBELAKEEE
equipment 12 (7,799) (1,198
Loan advance to third parties ME=ZFHNER - (78,407)
Purchases of investment properties BEKREMHE 13 (11,331) —
Payment for investing in a joint venture HE—REEERNRIE (576) =
Payments for acquisition of associates and UG BB & N E) &
joint ventures BEDEMNRIE - (30,208)
Net cash used in acquisition of subsidiaries ~ UREE KT B A BT IR & F 58 36 (3,407) =
Net cash flows generated from/(used in) wEFRESMB,/ (A2
investing activities ReMEFE 57,377 (63,475)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING METEZ2RERE
ACTIVITIES
Interest paid B RAFE (40,530) (53,536)
Proceeds from new bank loan FIRTTE RTERE 40,000 40,000
Repayment of bank and other loans BEFITREMERK (40,000) (429,058)
Refund of cash advance from a third party —HBEBE=ZFRERESIBN - 199,907
Proceeds from issue of ordinary shares upon B P 428 JE 17 {5 R B 1T
exercise of share options TR FTISRIA 21,373 22 562
Repayment to a non-controlling interest ) JE 5 B A 25 38 3K (1,076) =
Net cash flows used in financing activities BEEBAREREFE (20,233) (220,125)

Annual Report 2018 3 109



Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (RS IRERER ‘ |

Year ended 31 December 2018 HE—ZE—N\F+_A=+—HLEFE

2018 2017
—E-NF —E—+tF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B 7 FET FAET
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH ReRBEEENRL FHE
EQUIVALENTS (104,024) (304,312)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year F #1384 N IR & %f‘i% 521,012 804,731
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net ~ SNFEFE R4 Bf) » 32 28R %8 (36,334) 20,593
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FREESRBESEEY
AT END OF YEAR 380,654 521,012
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASHAND R ERBESZEYEH SN
CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and bank balances & MIRITH R 21 349,457 501,395
Non-pledged time deposits with original WERREIR
maturity of less than three months when —EAAREIEHZ
acquired FEEAEHER 21 31,197 19,617
Cash and bank balances as stated in the R RTIER 2
statement of financial position Be MIRITHE R 21 380,654 521,012
The notes on pages 111 to 194 are an integral part of these consolidated FI1MEE %1945}%%2511 TREZEREH
financial statements. HmER 2B
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

REMEEmRMIcE

1. CORPORATE INFORMATION

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in the Cayman Islands
and the ordinary shares of which are listed on the GEM of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”).

Principal activities
During the year, the Company and its subsidiaries (“Group”) were involved in the
following principal activities:

o production and distribution of sports content, management and marketing
of sports talents and provision of sports-related marketing and consultancy
services; and

° operation of sports parks and sports centres, development of communities,
provision of community development consultancy and subcontracting services;
property development for sales and investment, and research and development,
manufacturing, marketing and sales of construction materials.

Li Ning Company Limited (“Li Ning Co”), a company incorporated in the Cayman
Islands with limited liability, the issued shares of which are listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 2331), is an associated company

of the Group, whose principal activities include brand development, design,
manufacture, sale and distribution of sport-related footwear, apparel, equipment
and accessories in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC").

CITIC Land Co., Ltd (“CITIC Land"), a company incorporated in the PRC with
limited liability and a directly owned subsidiary of CITIC Group Corporation, is

an associated company of the Group, whose principal activities include project
investment, real estate development, hotel investment and management, property
management, project contracting, and real estate consultancy.

Shanghai Double Happiness Co., Ltd. (the “Double Happiness"), a company
incorporated in the PRC with limited liability, is an associated company of the
Group, whose principal activities include manufacture, research and development,
marketing and sale of principally table tennis and badminton equipment under its
own “4AL# = (Double Happiness)” brand and other sports accessories.

These financial statements are presented in HK$, unless otherwise stated.

31 December 2018 —ZE—NF+=ZA=+—H

1. QAFEH
ARalB—HMRrASEEIMERZZER
NA EERABRNELEHAIIAERAA
([BEZFT]) GEM ET e

FARARBREMBLR ([AEE])RE
THERERR:

s BENTHERET BEATEER
5 & fe f BE B AR RE T 35 1 B K K R
Bk

o KEBEERENEZTL:MABELE:IR
HHEBEREZARDBRE  FEWERE
MIE  AREM 23 8% TIgHER
SHE o

FEARAB ([FERA])  —HREE
HEEMKLZBRAR HEZTROR
B PR BT (BRD AR : 2331) RAKE
Z—HBENR HXBRBHBERENTD
FEARAME ([MEDREZREHEBE
1 BReh B3 M 2 an R E  BRET B
EHERDH-

FEEXBRAR([FEEX] —BRH
BEMAKLZBRARESTEF(EEE
ERAPERFEG ZHBLR) RAKEZ
—HBERR AT EXHHERERA K
E EHERE BEREERE WEERE.
TRABREHERH-

EPEOEERHERAR ([AEE]) AR
PREFMEZZERAR WARNEE 2B
ERR -HXEEBBERERE -
B MIEEE B A 4% = Double Happiness)
IRETHEITERERIREPEBREMIA
REAMEEE -

BRBEREBEIN ZFMBHRERIIANETE
5] o
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements §3 S B I5 SR R MIsE
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31 December 2018 —E—N\F+=-_A=+—H

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these consolidated
financial statements are set out below. These policies have been consistently
applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with

all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards which include all Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards and
Interpretations ("HKFRSs”). The consolidated financial statements also include
applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
the GEM and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. They have been prepared
under the historical cost convention, as modified by certain financial assets and
financial liabilities (including derivative instruments) at fair value through profit or
loss and investment properties, which are carried at fair value.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRSs requires the
use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires management to
exercise its judgement in the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies.
The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to the consolidated financial statements
are disclosed in Note 3.

2.2 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures

@) New and amended standaras adopted by the Group

The Group has applied the following standards and amendments for the first time
for their annual reporting period commencing 1 January 2018:

HKFRS 9
HKFRS 15

Financial Instruments
Revenue from Contracts with Customers

VIVA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED J£ AL+ Bl £ IR G FR A 7]
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 7S B35 SR R M1 5

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

The Group had to change its accounting policies and make certain retrospective

adjustments following the adoption of HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 15, see note 2.2(c).

(b)  New standard issued but not yet effective

The following is standard that has been published and is relevant and mandatory
for the Group's accounting periods beginning after 1 January 2019 or later
periods, but has not been early adopted by the Group.

31 December 2018 —ZE—NF+=ZA=+—H

2. FTEEHBEHE (@)

R & 78 5 i 5 2R RSB 05 ) BB B 1S ¥
HEAFEGHR  AEBEBEREARRL
EHETEPHAE  FRMTE220) -

) EEME R KL FTATER]
NTAEEAAEERBANEE A MBEEAREE
—E-hF-A—BZzEABHSERER
B 1% HAR R B A B M AR AR B IR F RN
HyZE R o

Effective for accounting
periods beginning on or after
RIS BEHR 2 REBRZ
SHBEN

HKFRS 16, Leases BERPIERE

HKFRS 16 Leases

HKFRS 16 will result in almost all leases being recognised on the statement

of financial position, as the distinction between operating and finance leases is
removed. Under the new standard, an asset (the right to use the leased item) and
a financial liability to pay rentals are recognised. The only exceptions are short-
term and low-value leases.

The Group has set up a project team which has reviewed all of the Group's
leasing arrangements over the last year in light of the new lease accounting rules
in HKFRS 16. The standard will affect primarily the accounting for the group’s
operating leases. The Group’s current accounting policy for such leases is set out
in note 2.3.

As at the reporting date, the Group has non-cancellable operating lease
commitments of HK$111,309,000 (2017:HK$105,714,000), see note 33(b). Of
these commitments, approximately HK$3,198,000 relate to short-term leases and
which will be recognised on a straight-line basis as expense in profit or 10ss.

For the remaining lease commitments the Group expects to recognise right-of-
use assets of approximately HK$45,665,000 on 1 January 2019, lease liabilities
of HK$45,665,000 (after adjustments for prepayments recognised as at 31
December 2018).

HRIF165 HE

1 January 2019
—E-NF—H—H
BEAMBREENFE 165 [HE]
HREEHEREREMEENE D ERFIB -
BEAVBHRELENE IR ERELTRER
EEMBRAKRAER - BIBZ LR &
E(ZHEEEEMNERE B NESH
BEBERER E—OlINEREHFNEEE
HE-

ENBBUBRELEANKOHEESFR
A AEBEKIZIERERK BEHASELE
FENR2HEER S - WERBETEZER
SERLEHENSTRE - AEE B MG H
REHEM S BRENHF23 -

RBEBH AEEETRHELCER
EA¥E111,309,0008 T (ZFE— L F:
105,714,000 7T ) » 5 KT 5E33(b) - 52 F &
4931980008 T B ERRE 2%
MEYRESIRBETERAMY -

AEFERBHER -_ZT-—NL—A—-B#R&H
FH & 7 JE fE 52 £ F #E & E 4945,665,00078 7T

FH-A=t—H®ERNBENRIEBEELR

B) -
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31 December 2018 —ZE—N\&FE+=-A=+—H

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

The accounting for lessor is not significantly changed and hence the Group does
not expect any significant impact on the financial statements. However, some
additional disclosures will be required from next year.

The new standard is mandatory for financial years commencing on or after 1
January 2019. The Group intends to apply the simplified transition approach and
will not restate comparative amounts for the year prior to first adoption. Right-
of-use assets for property leases will be measured on transition as if the new
rules had always been applied. All other right-of-use assets will be measured at
the amount of the lease liability on adoption (adjusted for any prepaid or accrued

lease expenses).

There are no other HKFRS or interpretation that are not yet effective that would be
expected to have a material impact on the Group’s results and financial position.

(c)  Changes in accounting policies

This note explains the impact of the adoption of HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 15 on the

Group's financial statements.

(i) Impact on the financial statements

HKFRS 9 was generally adopted without restating comparative information. HKFRS
15 was adopted using the modified retrospective approach that comparatives
information was not restated. The reclassifications are not reflected in the restated
balance sheet as at 31 December 2017, but are recognised in the opening

balance sheet on 1 January 2018.

The following tables show the adjustments recognised for each individual line
item. Line items that were not affected by the changes have not been included.
As a result, the sub-totals and totals disclosed cannot be recalculated from the
numbers provided. The adjustments are explained in more detail by standard

2. FESTEHEEE )

HEAZSHEBYES KIS FUtAE
BEA AKENMBERIG I EZBNEAN
Z;J;”E“ A T —FErAIREAERE TH
A Ego

MEAR T NF— A B 2KFABE
Wﬁirﬁﬁiﬂ 7R & B B B R ER AT
B—EFEEMAMLERBESAATEE
BB F -MERE2ERAREERIZSB
BIRXGE HUE —ERAHNER-FIE
HfEAREESRRAS cHERESR
At B W EAAN KB HER LR

%Eko

BB B At 8 R A R IR AT B AN B B R AE
MR RNELBERZENET BB RERE
Al

0 BEAKEEH
P 5 % X R % 7 7B B 755 R o5 22 B B 958 N
S8 B TS R 2 RSB 155% W AN SR B B RS Rk

pe.

EIPH%“

() HBYBBRROZE

RN E B M 15 S ERIFORE —RAED
LR ER - BB MBS ERF155RE AL
EFTRER T ARA MR TFTEINLERE
Be-BHNBEARAR _T—tF+-_A=+—
AMSESEERBEATRE AR -F
—N\F-A—BEHVEEABRER-

TRIFAEBUIAE BB AR - KX
MEBSTEMIAB R TIIH - FHit - FKE
B/ NET RABET BT DAL AR IR BLF 3
AAECMEAERNTIEAMEEFREE-

below.

Balance sheet (extract)

Current liabilities
Contract liabilities
Accruals and receipts in advance

31 December

2017 as
originally 1 January 2018
presented HKFRS 15 Restated

—E—tF+=
A BB —E-N\F
=t+—H BB|RE —A—H
EEGER (FR) (RIg25) % B %1555 (REF)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FET

/JILEJ EFE

:. ERAaE - 48,808 48,808
FEETE A R TBU IR 71,421 (48,808) 22,613

VIVA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED J£ AL+ Bl £ IR G FR A 7]



‘x Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 7S B35 SR R M1 5

\
Yy ?

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(i) HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 replaces the provisions of HKAS 39 that relate to the recognition,

classification and measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities,

derecognition of financial instruments, impairment of financial assets and hedge

accounting.

The Group has adopted HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments from 1 January 2018.
In accordance with the transitional provisions in HKFRS 9 (7.2.15) and (7.2.26),
comparative figures have not been restated with the exception of certain aspects
of hedge accounting. The new accounting policies are set out in Note 2.3.

Classification and measurement

On 1 January 2018 (the date of initial application of HKFRS 9), the Group’s
management has assessed which business models apply to the financial assets
held by the Group and has classified its financial instruments into the appropriate
HKFRS 9 categories, the majority of the Group’s financial assets include:

° Debt instruments and trade debtors and bills receivable and other loans and
receivables previously measured at amortised cost which meet the conditions for
classification at amortised cost under HKFRS 9; and

° Derivative financial instruments was currently classified as at fair value
through profit or loss (‘FVPL") as a whole under HKFRS 9.

Impairment of financial assets
The Group has two types of financial assets that are subject to HKFRS 9's new
expected credit loss model:

° trade debtors and bills receivable; and
° deposits and other receivables.

The Group was required to revise its impairment methodology under HKFRS 9 for
each of these classes of assets. The impact of change in impairment methodology
was immaterial and there was no adjustments in retained earnings as at 1 January
2018.

While cash and cash equivalents are also subject to the impairment requirements
of HKFRS 9, no impairment loss was identified.

(i) HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

The Group has adopted HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers from
1 January 2018. The Group has adopted the modified retrospective approach
and the comparatives were not restated. The impact of the adoption of HKFRS 15
was immaterial and there was no adjustments in retained earnings as at 1 January
2018.

31 December 2018 —ZE—NF+=ZA=+—H
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements §3 S B I5 SR R MIsE

31 December 2018 —E—N\F+=-_A=+—H

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Management assessed accounting for the customers for sports park facilities

hiring income that was affected as upon the payment for a membership, the

Group granted some free services to its customers, which would be identified

as a separate performance obligation under HKFRS 15. HKFRS 15 requires that

the total consideration received should be allocated to the distinct goods and

services based on relative stand-alone selling prices. This would result in an earlier

recognition for the free services. The impact of the adoption of HKFRS 15 was

immaterial.

Presentation of assets and liabilities related to contracts with customers
The Group has changed the presentation of certain amounts in the balance sheet
to reflect the terminology of HKFRS 15 and HKFRS 9:

° Contract liabilities in relation to advances from customers were previously
included accruals and receipts in advance.

2.3 Summary of significant accounting policies

Consolidation

Subsidiaries are entities (including structured entities) over which the Group has
control. The Group controls an entity when the Group is exposed to, has rights to,
variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect
those returns through its power over the entity. Subsidiaries are consolidated
from the date of acquisition, being the date on which control is transferred to the
Group. They are deconsolidated from the date that control ceases.

(@)  Business combinations

The Group applies the acquisition method to account for business combinations.
The consideration transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair values of
the assets transferred, the liabilities incurred to the former owners of the acquiree
and the equity interests issued by the Group. The consideration transferred
includes the fair value of any asset and liability resulting from a contingent
consideration arrangement. Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.
Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a
business combination are measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition
date.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 7S B35 SR R M1 5

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)
The Group recognises any non-controlling interest in the acquiree on an
acquisition-by-acquisition basis. Non-controlling interests in the acquiree that are
present ownership interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of
the entity’s net assets in the event of liquidation are measured at either fair value
or the present ownership interests’ proportionate share in the recognised amounts
of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other components of non-controlling
interests are measured at their acquisition date fair value, unless another
measurement basis is required by HKFRS.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the acquisition date carrying
value of the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree is
remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date; any gains or losses arising from
such re-measurement are recognised in profit or loss.

Where settlement of any part of cash consideration is deferred, the amounts
payable in the future are discounted to their present value as at the date of
exchange. The discount rate used is the entity's incremental borrowing rate, being
the rate at which a similar borrowing could be obtained from an independent
financier under comparable terms and conditions. Any contingent consideration
to be transferred by the acquirer is recognised at fair value at the acquisition
date. Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not remeasured and
subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity.

The excess of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interest in the acquiree and the acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity
interest in the acquiree over the fair value of the identifiable net assets acquired
is recorded as goodwill. If the total of consideration transferred, non-controlling
interest recognised and previously held interest measured is less than the fair
value of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired in the case of a bargain
purchase, the difference is recognised directly in the profit or loss.

Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised gains on transactions between
group companies are eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the transferred asset. When
necessary, amounts reported by subsidiaries have been adjusted to conform with
the Group’s accounting policies.

(b)  Changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries without change of control

Transactions with non-controlling interests that do not result in a loss of control
are accounted for as equity transactions — that is, as transactions with the owners
of the subsidiary in their capacity as owners. The difference between fair value of
any consideration paid and the relevant share acquired of the carrying amount of
net assets of the subsidiary is recorded in equity. Gains or losses on disposals to
non-controlling interests are also recorded in equity.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements §3 S B I5 SR R MIsE

31 December 2018 —E—N\F+=-_A=+—H

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)
(c)  Disposal of subsidiaries
When the Group ceases to have control, any retained interest in the entity is
remeasured to its fair value at the date when control is lost, with the change in
carrying amount recognised in profit or loss. The fair value is the initial carrying
amount for the purposes of subsequently accounting for the retained interest as
an associate, joint venture or financial asset. In addition, any amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in respect of that entity are accounted
for as if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities. This
may mean that amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income are
reclassified to profit or loss.

Separate Financial Statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less impairment. Cost
includes direct attributable costs of investment. The results of subsidiaries are
accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividend received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is required upon receiving a
dividend from these investments if the dividend exceeds the total comprehensive
income of the subsidiary in the period the dividend is declared or if the carrying
amount of the investment in the separate financial statements exceeds the
carrying amount in the consolidated financial statements of the investee’s net
assets including goodwill.

Associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence but not
control. Investments in associates are accounted for using the equity method of
accounting. Under the equity method, the investment is initially recognised at cost,
and the carrying amount is increased or decreased to recognise the investor’s
share of the profit or loss of the investee after the date of acquisition. The Group’s
investment in associates includes goodwill identified on acquisition. Upon the
acquisition of the ownership interest in an associate, any difference between the
cost of the associate and the Group’s share of the net fair value of the associate’s
identifiable assets and liabilities is accounted for as goodwill.

It the ownership interest in an associate is reduced but significant influence is
retained, only a proportionate share of the amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or loss where appropriate.

The Group’s share of post-acquisition profit or loss is recognised in the profit or
loss, and its share of post-acquisition movements in other comprehensive income
is recognised in other comprehensive income with a corresponding adjustment
to the carrying amount of the investment. When the Group's share of losses in
an associate equals or exceeds its interest in the associate, including any other
unsecured receivables, the Group does not recognise further losses, unless it

has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the
associate.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 7S B35 SR R M1 5

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)
When the most recently available financial statements of an associate is different
from the Group's reporting date, the Group may take advantage of the provision
contained in HKAS 28 whereby it is permitted to include the attributable share
of associate’s results based on the financial statements drawn up to a non-
coterminous period end where the difference must be no greater than three
months. Adjustments shall be made for the effects of significant transactions or
events that occur between that date and the date of the Group’s consolidated
financial statements.

Unrealised gains and losses resulting from transactions between the Group and its
associate are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s investment in an associate,
except where unrealised losses provide evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred. Goodwill arising from the acquisition of associate is not individually
tested for impairment.

The Group determines at each reporting date whether there is any objective
evidence that the investment in the associate is impaired. If this is the case,
the Group calculates the amount of impairment as the difference between the
recoverable amount of the associate and its carrying value and recognises the
amount adjacent to ‘share of profit of investments accounted for using equity
method’ in the profit or loss.

Gain or losses on dilution of equity interest in associates are recognised in the
profit or loss.

Joint arrangements

Under HKFRS 11 investments in joint arrangements are classified as either joint
operations or joint ventures depending on the contractual rights and obligations
of each investor. The Group has assessed the nature of its joint arrangements and
determined them to be joint ventures. Joint ventures are accounted for using the
equity method.

Under the equity method of accounting, interests in joint ventures are initially
recognised at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group's share of
the post-acquisition profits or losses and movements in other comprehensive
income. The Group’s investments in joint ventures include goodwill identified on
acquisition. Upon the acquisition of the ownership interest in a joint venture, any
difference between the cost of the joint venture and the Group’s share of the
net fair value of the joint venture's identifiable assets and liabilities is accounted
for as goodwill. When the Group’s share of losses in a joint venture equals or
exceeds its interests in the joint ventures (which includes any long-term interests
that, in substance, form part of the Group’s net investment in the joint ventures),
the Group does not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred obligations or
made payments on behalf of the joint ventures.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements §3 S B I5 SR R MIsE

31 December 2018 —E—N\F+=-_A=+—H

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)
Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and its joint ventures are
eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interest in the joint ventures. Unrealised
losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of the joint ventures have
been changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted
by the Group.

Segment Reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting
provided to the chief operating decision-maker. The chief operating decision-
maker, who is responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance

of the operating segments, has been identified as the management that makes
strategic decisions.

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a)  the party is a person or a close member of that person’s family and that
person

(i)~ has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management personnel of the Group or of a parent
of the Group;

or
(b)  the party is an entity where any of the following conditions applies:

(i) the entity and the Group are members of the same group;

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or of a parent,
subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of the other entity);

(i) the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the same third party;
(iv)  one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other entity is an

associate of the third entity;

(v)  the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of employees of
either the Group or an entity related to the Group;

(v the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person identified in (a); and

(vii)  a person identified in (a) (i) has significant influence over the entity or is
a member of the key management personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the
entity).
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Close family members of the family of a person are those family members who

may be expected to influence, or be influenced by, that person in their dealings

with the entity.

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment primarily consist of buildings, leasehold
improvements, machinery and office equipment, furniture and fixtures, and
motor vehicles. They are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any
impairment losses. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable
to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognised as
a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic
benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the

item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is
derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to the profit or loss
during the financial period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate their cost to
their residual values over their estimated useful lives. The principal annual rates
used for this purpose are as follows:

2.5% to 5%
Shorter of remaining
lease term or 20%
7.5% t0 33.3%

9% to 33.3%

9% to 25%

Buildings
Leasehold improvements

Machinery and office equipment
Furniture and fixtures
Motor vehicles

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at the end of each reporting period. Where parts of an item of
property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, the cost of that item is
allocated on a reasonable basis among the parts and each part is depreciated
separately.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount
if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the proceeds with the
carrying amount and are recognised within ‘other gains — net’ in the profit or loss.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements §3 S B I5 SR R MIsE

31 December 2018 —E—N\F+=-_A=+—H

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings (including the leasehold

interest under an operating lease for a property which would otherwise meet the

definition of an investment property) held for long-term rental yields or for capital

appreciation or both, and that is not occupied by the Group. Such properties

are measured initially at cost, including related transaction costs and where

applicable borrowing costs. After initial recognition, investment properties are

carried at fair value, representing open market value determined at each reporting

date by external valuers. Fair value is based on active market prices, adjusted, if

necessary, for any difference in the nature, location or condition of the specific

asset.

Property under construction or development for future use as an investment
property is classified as investment property under construction. If the fair value
cannot be reliably determined, the investment property under construction will be
measured at cost until such time as fair value can be determined or construction
is completed.

Changes in fair values are recorded in the profit or loss as part of a valuation gain
or loss in ‘other gains — net’. Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal

of an investment property are recognised in profit or loss in the year of the
retirement or disposal.

Intangible assets

(@) Goodwill

Goodwill arises on the acquisition of subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures
and represents the excess of the consideration transferred over the Group’s
interest in net fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities
of the acquiree and the fair value of the non-controlling interest in the acquiree.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business
combination is allocated to each of the cash-generating units (‘CGUS"), or groups
of CGUs, that is expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination. Each
unit or group of units to which the goodwill is allocated represents the lowest
level within the entity at which the goodwill is monitored for internal management
purposes. Goodwill is monitored at the operating segment level.

Impairment reviews of goodwill arising from acquisition of subsidiaries are
undertaken annually or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate a potential impairment. The carrying value of CGU containing the goodwill
is compared to the recoverable amount, which is the higher of value in use and
the fair value less costs of disposal. Any impairment is recognised immediately as
an expense and is not subsequently reversed.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 7S B35 SR R M1 5

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)
(b)  Intangible assets (other than goodwill)
Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost.
The cost of intangible assets acquired in a business combination is the fair value
at the date of acquisition. The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to
be either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives are subsequently
amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment whenever
there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation
period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life
are reviewed at least at each financial year end.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for impairment annually
either individually or at the cash-generating unit level. Such intangible assets

are not amortised. The useful life of an intangible asset with an indefinite life is
reviewed annually to determine whether the indefinite life assessment continues to
be supportable. If not, the change in the useful life assessment from indefinite to
finite is accounted for on a prospective basis.

Leases

Leases of property, plant and equipment where the Group, as lessee, has
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are classified as finance leases.
Finance leases are capitalised at the lease’s inception at the fair value of the
leased property or, if lower, the present value of the minimum lease payments.
The corresponding rental obligations, net of finance charges, are included in other
short-term and long-term payables. Each lease payment is allocated between the
liability and finance cost. The finance cost is charged to the profit or loss over the
lease period so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining
balance of the liability for each period. The property, plant and equipment acquired
under finance leases is depreciated over the asset's useful life or over the shorter
of the asset’s useful life and the lease term if there is no reasonable certainty that
the Group will obtain ownership at the end of the lease term.

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are not
transferred to the Group as lessee are classified as operating leases. Payments
made under operating leases (net of any incentives received from the lessor) are
charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

Lease income from operating leases where the Group is a lessor is recognised in
income on a straight-line basis over the lease term. The respective leased assets
are included in the statement of financial position based on their nature.
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31 December 2018 —E—N\F+=-_A=+—H

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)
Impairment of non-financial assets
Goodwill, intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life or intangible assets
not ready to use are not subject to amortisation and are tested annually for
impairment, or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate
that they might be impaired. Other assets are tested for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the
higher of an asset's fair value less costs to sell and value in use. For the purposes
of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there
are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units). Non-financial assets
other than goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal
of the impairment at the end of each reporting period.

Financial assets

Classification

From 1 January 2018, the Group classifies its financial assets in the following
measurement categories: those to be measured subsequently at fair value through
profit or loss, and those to be measured at amortised cost. The classification
depends on the entity's business model for managing the financial assets and the
contractual terms of the cash flows.

The group reclassifies debt investments when and only when its business model
for managing those assets changes.

Recognition and measurement

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on trade-
date, the date on which the group commits to purchase or sell the asset. At initial
recognition, the group measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case
of a financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss (FVPL), transaction costs
that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction
costs of financial assets carried at FVPL are expensed in profit or loss.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are considered in their entirety when
determining whether their cash flows are solely payment of principal and interest.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the group’s business
model for managing the asset and the cash flow characteristics of the asset.
There are three measurement categories into which the group classifies its debt
instruments:
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)
o Amortised cost; Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash
flows where those cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest
are measured at amortised cost. Interest income from these financial assets is
included in finance income using the effective interest rate method. Any gain
or loss arising on derecognition is recognised directly in profit or loss and
presented in other gains/(losses) together with foreign exchange gains and losses.
Impairment losses are presented as separate line item in the statement of profit or
loss.

° FVPL: Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised cost or FVOCI
are measured at FVPL. A gain or loss on a debt investment that is subsequently
measured at FVPL is recognised in profit or loss and presented net within other
gains/(losses) in the period in which it arises.

° FVOCI: Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows and
for selling the financial assets, where the assets’ cash flows represent solely
payments of principal and interest, are measured at FVOCI. Movements in the
carrying amount are taken through OCI, except for the recognition of impairment
gains or losses, interest income and foreign exchange gains and losses which
are recognised in profit or loss. When the financial asset is derecognised, the
cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI is reclassified from equity to
profit or loss and recognised in other gains/(losses). Interest income from these
financial assets is included in finance income using the effective interest rate
method. Foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in other gains/(losses)
and impairment expenses are presented as separate line item in the statement of
profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial assets

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from
the financial assets have expired or have been transferred and the group has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership.

Impairment

From 1 January 2018, the Group assesses on a forward looking basis the
expected credit losses associated with its debt instruments carried at amortised
cost. The impairment methodology applied depends on whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk.

For further details on the Group's accounting policies for management of financial
assets, see note 39 credit risk.

Accounting policies applied until 31 December 2017

The Group has applied HKFRS 9 retrospectively, but has elected not to restate
comparative information. As a result, the comparative information provided
continues to be accounted for in accordance with the Group's previous accounting
policy.

Classification

Until 31 December 2017 the Group classifies it financial assets in the following
categories: at fair value through profit or loss and loans and receivables. The
classification depends on the purpose for which the financial assets were
acquired. Management determines the classification of its financial assets at initial
recognition.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements §3 S B I5 SR R MIsE

31 December 2018 —E—N\F+=-_A=+—H

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)
Recognition and measurement
All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on the
trade-date — the date on which the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Investments are initially recognised at fair value plus transaction costs for all
financial assets not carried at fair value through profit or loss. Financial assets
carried at fair value through profit or loss are initially recognised at fair value, and
fransaction costs are expensed in the profit or loss. Available-for-sale financial
assets and financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are subsequently
carried at fair value. Loans and receivables are subsequently carried at amortised
cost using the effective interest method.

Changes in the fair value of monetary and non-monetary securities classified as
available-for-sale are recognised in other comprehensive income.

When securities classified as available-for-sale are sold or impaired, the
accumulated fair value adjustments recognised in equity are included in the profit
or loss as ‘gains and losses from investment securities’.

Derecognition of financial assets
A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group
of similar financial assets) is derecognised when:

° the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or

° the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or
has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material
delay to a third party under a “pass-through” arrangement; and either (a) the
Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset or (b) the
Group has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of
the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

Impairment

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there is objective
evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired. A
financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired and impairment l0sses
are incurred only if there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one
or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (an “loss
event’) and that loss event (or events) has an impact on the estimated future cash
flows of the financial asset or the group of financial assets that can be reliably
estimated.

Evidence of impairment may include indications that a debtor or a group of
debtors is experiencing significant financial difficulty, default or delinquency in
interest or principal payments, the probability that they will enter bankruptcy
or other financial reorganisation, where observable data indicate that there is
a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such as changes in
arrears or economic conditions that correlate with defaults.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 7S B35 SR R M1 5

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Offsetting Financial Instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the

statement of financial position when there is a legally enforceable right to offset

the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise

the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must

not be contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the normal course

of business and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the company

or the counterparty.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments of the Group include call and put options in
connection with the acquisition of an associate and derivative financial assets

in relation to a forward convertible loan. Such derivative financial instruments

are initially recognised at fair value on the date on which a derivative contract is
entered into and are subsequently remeasured at fair value. Derivatives are carried
as assets when the fair value is positive and as liabilities when the fair value is
negative. Any gains or losses arising from changes in fair value of derivatives are
taken directly to profit or loss.

Perpetual Convertible Bonds

Perpetual Convertible Bonds issued by the Group gives holders the right to
convert these Perpetual Convertible Bonds into a fixed number of the Company’s
ordinary shares at any time at a fixed exercise price per share, subject to
adjustments as provided in the terms and conditions of the bonds. The Perpetual
Convertible Bonds have no maturity date and are not redeemable. They are
treated as equity instruments and are not remeasured in subsequent years.

Compound financial instruments

The liability component of a compound financial instrument is recognised initially
at the fair value of a similar liability that does not have an equity conversion option.
The equity component is recognised initially at the difference between the fair
value of the compound financial instrument as a whole and the fair value of the
liability component, which is included in shareholders' equity in convertible notes
equity reserve. Any directly attributable transaction costs are allocated to the
liability and equity components in proportion to their initial carrying amounts.

Subsequent to initial recognition, the liability component of a compound financial
instrument is measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.
The equity component of a compound financial instrument is not re-measured
subsequent to initial recognition. The convertible notes equity reserve will be
transferred to share capital and share premium accounts upon conversion.
Balance of convertible notes equity reserve will be transferred to accumulated
profits or losses at the expiry of the conversion rights.

The liability component of a convertible instrument is classified as current unless
the Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least
12 months after the end of the reporting period.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements §3 S B I5 SR R MIsE

31 December 2018 —ZE—N\&FE+=-A=+—H

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Stock of properties

Stock of properties are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Net

realisable value takes into account the price ultimately expected to be realised and

the anticipated costs to completion.

Costs of properties include acquisition costs, development expenditure, borrowing
costs and other direct costs attributable to the properties. The carrying values

of properties held by subsidiaries are adjusted in the consolidated financial
statements to reflect the Group's actual costs incurred where appropriate.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is
determined using the weighted average cost method. The cost of finished goods
and work in progress comprises raw materials, direct labour, other direct costs
and related production overheads (based on normal operating capacity). Net
realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business,
less applicable variable selling expenses.

Trade debtors and bills receivable and other receivables

Trade debtors and bills receivable are amounts due from customers for goods sold
and services rendered in the ordinary course of business. If collection of trade
debtors and bills receivable and other receivables is expected in one year or less,
they are classified as current assets. If not, they are presented as non-current
assets.

Trade debtors and bills receivable and other receivables are recognised initially at
the amount of consideration that is unconditional unless they contain significant
financing components, when they are recognised at fair value. The Group holds
the trade debtors and bills receivable with the objective to collect the contractual
cash flows and therefore measures them subsequently at amortised cost using the
effective interest method. See note 19 for further information about the Group’s
accounting for trade debtors and bills receivable and note 39 for a description of
the Group’s impairment policies.

Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents include
cash on hand, demand deposits and other short-term highly liquid investments
with original maturities of three months or less.

Trade payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services that have been
acquired in the ordinary course of business from suppliers. Trade payables are
classified as current liabilities if payment is due within one year or less. If not, they
are presented as non-current liabilities.

Trade payables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 7S B35 SR R M1 5

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or constructive) has

arisen as a result of a past event and it is probable that a future outflow of

resources will be required to settle the obligation, provided that a reliable estimate

can be made of the amount of the obligation.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will
be required in settlement is determined by considering the class of obligations as
a whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect
to any one item included in the same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures expected to be
required to settle the obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the obligation.
The increase in the provision due to passage of time is recognised as interest
expense.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred.
Borrowings are subsequently carried at amortised cost; any difference between
the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption value is recognised
in the profit or loss over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest
method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised as transaction
costs of the loan to the extent that it is probable that some or all the facility will be
drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred until the draw-down occurs. To the
extent there is no evidence that it is probable that some or all of the facility will
be drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a pre-payment for liquidity services and
amortised over the period of the facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has an
unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after
the end of the reporting period.

Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily
take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings
pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing

costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements §3 S B I5 SR R MIsE

31 December 2018 —ZE—N\&FE+=-A=+—H

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the

profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in other

comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised

in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

(@)  Current income tax

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior periods are measured

at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities,
based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted
by the end of the reporting period, taking into consideration interpretations and
practices prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

(b)  Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all temporary differences at
the end of the reporting period between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:

° when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill
or an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at
the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit
or loss; and

o in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments

in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures, when the timing of the reversal of
the temporary differences can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the
carryforward of unused tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets
are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the deductible temporary differences, the carryforward of unused tax
credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

o when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary differences
arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not
a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

o in respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments
in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures, deferred tax assets are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable that the temporary differences will
reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available against which
the temporary differences can be utilised.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)
The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each
reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax
asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at the end
of each reporting period and are recognised to the extent that it has become
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the
deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected
to apply to the period when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based
on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable
right to offset current tax assets against current tax liabilities and when the
deferred taxes assets and liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority on either the taxable entity or different taxable entities where
there is an intention to settle the balances on a net basis.

Revenue recognition

Revenues are recognised when, or as, the control of the goods or services is
transferred to the customer. Depending on the business model, terms of the
contract and the laws applicable, control of the goods and services may be
transferred over time or at a point in time. Control of the goods and services is
transferred over time if the Group’s performance:

o provides all of the benefits received and consumed simultaneously by the
customer;

° creates or enhances an asset that the customer controls as the Group
performs; or

° does not create an asset with an alternative use to the Group and the Group
has an enforceable right to payment for performance completed to date.

If control of the goods and services transfers over time, revenue is recognised
over the period of the contract by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of that performance obligation. Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a
point in time when the customer obtains control of the goods and services.

The progress towards complete satisfaction of performance obligation, depending
on the nature of the good and service to be transferred, is measured based

on one of the following methods that best depicts the Group's performance in
satisfying the performance obligation:

° direct measurements of the value of individual services transferred by the
Group to the customer; or

o the Group’s efforts or inputs to the satisfaction of the performance
obligation.
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31 December 2018 —ZE—N\&FE+=-A=+—H

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)
If contracts involve the sale of multiple goods, goods followed by related services,
or multiple services, the transaction price will be allocated to each performance
obligation based on their relative stand-alone selling prices. If the stand-alone
selling prices are not directly observable, they are estimated based on expected
cost plus a margin or adjusted market assessment approach, depending on the
availability of observable information.

When either party to a contact has performed, the Group presents the contract
in the balance sheet as a contract asset or a contract liability, depending on the
relationship between the entity’s performance and the customer’s payment.

A contract asset is the Group’s right to consideration in exchange for goods or
services that the Group has transferred to a customer. Contract assets and assets
arising from costs to obtain or fulfil a contract that are recognised in accordance
with HKFRS 15. The Group uses practical expedients to recognise the incremental
costs of obtaining a contract as an expense when incurred as the amortisation
period of the asset that the Group otherwise would have recognised is one year or
less.

If a customer pays consideration before the Group transfers a good or service

to the customer, the Group presents the contract as a contract liability when the
payment is made. A contract liability is the Group’s obligation to transfer goods or
services to a customer for which the Group has received consideration from the
customer.

A receivable is recorded when the Group has an unconditional right to
consideration. A right to consideration is unconditional if only the passage of time
is required before payment of that consideration is due.

The following is a description of the accounting policy for the principal revenue
streams of the Group:

(@)  from providing services including integrated sports content production
and distribution, sports talent management, community development consultancy
service and sports park facilities hiring, in the accounting period in which the
services are rendered. For fixed-price contracts, revenue is recognised based on
the actual service provided to the end of the reporting period as a proportion of
the total services to be provided because the customer receives and uses the
benefits simultaneously;

(b)  from the sale of goods, when control of the goods has been transferred to
the buyer, which is upon the acceptance of the goods.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

When another party is involved in providing goods or services to a customer, the

Group is a principal if it obtains control through one of the following way:

° Control the good or services before it transfers to the customers;

° Has the ability to direct another party to provide the service to the customer
on the entity’s behalf; or

° Providing a significant service of integrating services and obtains control
of the inputs to the specified good or service and directs their use to create the
combined output that is the specified good or service.

If control is not clear, the Group will analyse the three indicators (1) who is the
primary obligator; (2) who has the inventory risk and (3) who has the discretion in
establishing the price to assist the analysis of control. Sometimes, control are not
always clear and judgement are need in analysis of whether the Group is principle
or agent.

If the Group is principle, revenue will be recognise at the ‘gross’ amount paid
by the customer for the specified good or service and record a corresponding
expense for the commission or fee that it has to pay to any agent, in addition to
the direct costs of satisfying the contract. If as an agent, will record revenue the
commission or fee earned for facilitating the transfer of the specified goods or
services (the ‘net” amount retained).

Rental income is recognised on a straight line basis over the lease terms;

Interest income

Interest income on financial assets at amortised cost calculated using the effective
interest method is recognised in the statement of profit or loss as part of other
income and other gains-net.

Interest income is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the gross
carrying amount of a financial asset except for financial assets that subsequently
become credit-impaired. For credit-impaired financial assets the effective interest
rate is applied to the net carrying amount of the financial asset (after deduction of
the loss allowance).
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31 December 2018 —E—N\F+=-_A=+—H

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where there is reasonable

assurance that the grant will be received and the Group will comply with all

attached conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred and recognised in the profit
or loss over the period necessary to match them with the costs that they are
intended to compensate.

Government grants relating to property, plant and equipment are included in non-
current liabilities as deferred government grants and are credited to the profit or
loss on a straight-line basis over the expected lives of the related assets.

Share-based payments

The Group operates a number of equity-settled, share-based compensation plans,
under which the entity receives services from employees as consideration for
equity instruments (options) of the Group. The fair value of the employee services
received in exchange for the grant of the options or shares is recognised as an
expense with a corresponding increase in equity. The total amount to be expensed
is determined by reference to the fair value of the options or shares granted on
grant day:

o including any market performance conditions (for example, an entity’s share
price);

o excluding the impact of any service and non-market performance vesting
conditions (for example, profitability, sales growth targets and remaining an
employee of the entity over a specified time period); and

o including the impact of any non-vesting conditions (for example, the

requirement for employees to save or holding shares for a specified period of
time).
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 7S B35 SR R M1 5

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

The total expense is recognised over the vesting period, which is the period over

which all of the specified vesting conditions are to be satisfied. At the end of each

reporting period, the entity revises its estimates of the number of options that

are expected to vest based on the non-market vesting and service conditions. It

recognises the impact of the revision to original estimates, if any, in profit or loss,

with a corresponding adjustment to equity.

When the options are exercised, the Company issues new shares. The proceeds
received net of any directly attributable transaction costs are credited to share
capital (nominal value) and share premium when the options are exercised.

Other employee benefits

Pension scheme

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident Fund retirement
benefit scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance for all of its employees in Hong Kong. Contributions are made
based on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and are charged to profit
or loss as they become payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme.
The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the Group in an
independently administered fund.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate in the PRC are required
to participate in central pension schemes operated by the local municipal
governments. These subsidiaries are required to contribute certain percentage of
their payroll costs to the central pension schemes. The contributions are charged
to profit or loss as they become payable in accordance with the rules of the
central pension schemes.

Foreign currency translation

(@)  Functional and presentation currency

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars, which is the
Company's functional and presentation currency. Each entity in the Group
determines its own functional currency and items included in the financial
statements of each entity are measured using the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates (‘the functional currency’).

(b)  Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated at the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the foreign exchange

rates ruling at the end of the reporting period. Exchange gains and losses are
recognised in profit or loss, except those arising from foreign currency borrowings
used to hedge a net investment in a foreign operation which are recognised in
other comprehensive income.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements §3 S B I5 SR R MIsE

31 December 2018 —ZE—N\&FE+=-A=+—H

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in terms of historical cost

in foreign currency are translated using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the

franslation dates. Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign

currencies that are stated at fair value are translated using the foreign exchange

rates ruling at the dates the fair value was measured.

The results of foreign operations are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the
exchange rates approximating the foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates
of the translations. The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated separately in equity in the exchange
reserve.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative amount of the exchange
differences relating to that foreign operation is reclassified from equity to profit or
loss when the profit or loss on disposal is recognised.

(c)  Group companies

The results and financial position of all the group entities (none of which has the
currency of a hyper-inflationary economy) that have a functional currency different
from the presentation currency are translated into the presentation currency as
follows:

(i) assets and liabilities for each statement of financial position presented are
translated at the closing rate at the date of that statement of financial position;

(i)~ income and expenses for each profit or loss are translated at average
exchange rates (unless this average is not a reasonable approximation of the
cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in which case
income and expenses are translated at the rate on the dates of the transactions);
and

(i) all resulting currency translation differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of a foreign entity
are freated as assets and liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at the
closing rate. Currency translation differences arising are recognised in other
comprehensive income.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)
(d)  Disposal of foreign operation and partial disposal
On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a disposal of the Group's entire
interest in a foreign operation, or a disposal involving loss of control over a
subsidiary that includes a foreign operation, a disposal involving loss of joint
control over a joint venture that includes a foreign operation, or a disposal
involving loss of significant influence over an associate that includes a foreign
operation), all of the currency translation differences accumulated in equity in
respect of that operation attributable to the owners of the company are reclassified
to profit or loss.

In the case of a partial disposal that does not result in the Group losing control
over a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation, the proportionate share of
accumulated currency translation differences are re-attributed to non-controlling
interests and are not recognised in profit or loss. For all other partial disposals
(that is, reductions in the Group’s ownership interest in associates or joint ventures
that do not result in the Group losing significant influence or joint control) the
proportionate share of the accumulated exchange difference is reclassified to
profit or loss.

Ordinary shares

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to
the issue of new shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax,
from the proceeds.

Where any group company purchases the Company’s equity share capital
(treasury shares), the consideration paid, including any directly attributable
incremental costs (net of income taxes), is deducted from equity attributable to the
Company's equity holders until the shares are cancelled or reissued. Where such
shares are subsequently reissued, any consideration received, net of any directly
attributable incremental transaction costs and the related income tax effects, is
included in equity attributable to the Company’s equity holders.

3. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES, ASSUMPTIONS AND
JUDGEMENTS
The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires management to
make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and their accompanying disclosures, and
the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and
estimates could result in outcomes that could require a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities affected in the future.
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31 December 2018 —ZE—N\&FE+=-A=+—H

3. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES, ASSUMPTIONS AND
JUDGEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group's accounting policies, management has made

the following judgements apart from those involving estimations, which have the

most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements:

() Revenue recognition

The main revenue streams of the Group include revenue from sports content
production and distribution, sports talent management, sale of goods and
community development consultancy services. Under HKFRS 15 “Revenue from
Contracts with Customers”, revenue from the sale of goods and rendering of
services is recognised when control of goods or services transfer to customers.
The Group’s accounting policy in relation to revenue recognition is disclosed in
note 2.3. In addition, the illustrative example of HKFRS 15 requires the Group to
determine whether the Group is acting as a principal or an agent on these type of
activities, the Group made assessment based on indicators of (a) who is primarily
responsible for providing the goods or services; (b) who has inventory risk; and
(c) who has latitude to establish prices. Based on a comprehensive assessment of
all the facts and circumstances, judgement is made on an individual contract basis
to determine whether revenue can be recognised during the year and whether
revenue should be recognised on a gross or net basis.

With respect to the sponsorship and marketing related services the Group
provided to its associates in relation to a top-tier professional basketball league
in the PRC included in sports content production and distribution income in

Note 5 REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND OTHER GAINS-NET, the Group makes

a judgement that it is acting as a principal instead of an agent by considering
several factors including: (a) the Group creates the combined output by integrating
services and goods provided by other parties together with the services produced
by itself; (b) the Group could control the services and goods and direct the use
of them; (c) the Group is acting as the primary obligor to fulfill the obligations to
provide integrated sponsorship and marketing activities services to its customers;
and (d) the Group bears the substantive inventory risk of the specified goods and
services obtained from the suppliers.

(i) Classification between investment properties and owner-occupied properties
The Group determines whether a property qualifies as an investment property, and
has developed criteria in making that judgement. Investment property is a property
held to earn rentals or for capital appreciation or both. Therefore, the Group
considers whether a property generates cash flows largely independently of the
other assets held by the Group.

Some properties comprise a portion that is held to earn rentals or for capital
appreciation and another portion that is held for use in the production or supply of
goods or services or for administrative purposes. If these portions could be sold
separately (or leased out separately under a finance lease), the Group accounts
for the portions separately. If the portions could not be sold separately, the
property is an investment property only if an insignificant portion is held for use

in the production or supply of goods or services or for administrative purposes.
Judgement is made on an individual property basis to determine whether ancillary
services are so significant that a property does not quality as an investment
property.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 7S B35 SR R M1 5

3. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES, ASSUMPTIONS AND
JUDGEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Estimation uncertainty

Notes 13, 15, 16, 28, and 30 contain information about the assumptions and

their risk factors relating to estimation of fair value of investment properties,

interests in associates and joint ventures, derivative financial instruments, deferred

tax assets and liabilities and fair value of share options granted, other key sources

of estimation uncertainty are as follow:

() Impairment of financial assets

The loss allowances for financial assets are based on assumptions about risk

of default and expected loss rates. The Group uses judgement in making these
assumptions and selecting the inputs to the impairment calculation, based on

the Group’s past history, existing market conditions as well as forward looking
estimates at the end of each reporting period. Details of the key assumptions and
inputs used are disclosed in the tables in note 39.

() Impairment of Goodwill and intangible assets

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of impairment for all
non-financial assets at the end of each reporting period in accordance with

the accounting policies stated in note 2.3. Indefinite life intangible assets and
goodwill are tested for impairment annually and at other times when such an
indicator exists. Other non-financial assets are tested for impairment when there
are indicators that the carrying amounts may not be recoverable. An impairment
exists when the carrying value of an asset or a cash-generating unit exceeds its
recoverable amount, which is the higher of its fair value less costs to sell and

its value in use. Both calculations require the use of estimates. The calculation

of the fair value less costs to sell is based on available data from binding sales
transactions in an arm’s length transaction of similar assets or observable market
prices less incremental costs for disposing of the asset. In estimating the value in
use of assets, various assumptions, including future cash flows to be associated
with the non-current assets (such as future sales forecast, expected capital
expenditure and working capital requirements) and discount rates, are made. If
future events do not correspond to such assumptions, the recoverable amounts
will need to be revised, and this may have an impact on the Group's results of
operations or financial position.

The goodwill arising from the acquisition of JE 12 B5 amounted to
HK$18,433,000. The Group has assessed the recoverable amount of the CGU
with goodwill and concluded that goodwill has not been impaired. The recoverable
amounts of the CGUs with goodwill have been determined based on value in use
calculation, which use cash flow projections as at 31 December 2018. These
cash flow projections are derived from the approved business plan which has a
forecast covering a period of 5 years and have incorporated necessary updates.
The key assumptions used in the value in use calculations are set out in note 14,
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31 December 2018 —ZE—N\&FE+=-A=+—H

3. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES, ASSUMPTIONS AND
JUDGEMENTS (CONTINUED)

(i) Depreciation

The Group’s management exercises its judgement in estimating the useful lives

of the depreciable assets. The estimated useful lives reflect the management’s

estimate of the periods the Group intends to derive future economic benefits from

the use of these assets.

The Group depreciates the property, plant and equipment in accordance with the
accounting policies stated in note 2.3 to the financial statements. The carrying
amount of property, plant and equipment is disclosed in note 12 to the financial
statements.

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

The management is the Group’s chief operating decision-maker. The management
reviews the Group's internal reports periodically in order to assess performance
and allocate resources.

The management considers the business from a product/service perspective. The
management separately considers the different products and services offered,
and for the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group is organised into two
reportable operating segments as follows:

(@)  the sports-related business segment engages in the production and
distribution of sports content, management and marketing of sports talents and
provision of sports-related marketing and consultancy service; and

(b)  the community development segment engages in operation of sports
parks, and sports centres, development of communities, provision of community
development consultancy and subcontracting services; property development for
sales and investment, and research and development, manufacturing, marketing
and sales of construction materials.

Management monitors the results of the Group’s operating segments separately
for the purpose of making decisions about resources allocation and performance
assessment. Segment performance is evaluated based on reportable segment
profit or loss, which is a measure of adjusted profit or loss before tax. The
adjusted profit or loss before tax is measured consistently with the Group's profit
or loss before tax except that interest income, finance costs, equity-settled share
option expenses, fair value changes on investment properties, share of profits
and losses of associates and joint ventures as well as head office and corporate
income and expenses are excluded from such measurement.
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
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4. RKEIIEHR (80

Sports-related Community
business development Total
BE-Z2-N\F
Year ended 31 December 2018 +ZA=t-HLEE EAEHBER HEMR @
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TER TER TER
Segment revenue: 2 ik &
Fxternal Mg 363,310 M,274 1,134,584
Segment results PHEE 51,928 10,184 62,112
Reconcilation: FEE
Interest income AN ON 6,525
Gain on remeasurement of pre-existing interest BHAERGELEYL
in a joint venture BEEZ W& 1,764
Fair value gain on investment properties REWME N FEKE (677)
Equity-settled share option expense NIREES 2 BRERX (13,148)
Corporate and other unallocated income rERAEMRIERA 183
Corporate and other unallocated expenses rERAEMRIERAZ (60,672)
Share of profits less losses of associates and DEBERAREEREL
joint ventures i AR B 1R 182,329
Finance costs IR SN (83,693)
Profit before income tax BR BT 15350 A& A1 94,723
Other segment information: HitrpHEHR
Depreciation nE 573 3,531 4,104
Add: depreciation related to corporate mECEBEITE 9%
4,200
Capital expenditure BARY 140 7,577 7,717
Add: capital expenditure related to corporate m-BEcEFHEsERRT 658
8,375
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31 December 2018 —ZE—N\&FE+=-A=+—H

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

4. KEIBEH (@)

Sports-related Community
busingss development Total
HE-Z—tF )
Vear ended 31 December 2017 +TZA=T-HLEEE EERBES HEFA% @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TET AT
Segment revenue: DU
External HNER 177,904 434,563 612,467
Segment results PHER 19,538 36,199 55,737
Reconciliation: FEE -
Interest income FSWA 5,067
Fair value loss on investment properties REMEZNTEER (28,440)
Fauity-settled share option expense NREEE 2 BRERS (62,644)
Corporate and other unallocated income TEREMRDERA 600
Corporate and other unallocated expenses s CEREMAIERY (50,164)
Share of profits less losses of associates and DIEBENRIREECEY
joint ventures i AR E 48,196
Finance costs IR N (87,215)
Loss before income tax B TS B A% Al (108,863)
Other segment information: HittpHEHR
Depreciation 3 556 2,475 3,031
Add: depreciation related to corporate mECEEE E 91
3,122
Capital expenditure BEARY 197 857 1,054
Add: capital expenditure related to corporate MmEGEEE I BEARY 54,172
55,226
Information about major customers FEEFZEH

Revenue of approximately HK$329,959,000 was derived from an individual
customer of the sports-related business segment, while HK$274,695,000,

HK$270,330,000 and HK$152,068,000 were derived from three individual
customers of the community development segment, respectively, for the year

ended 31 December 2018.

Revenue of approximately HK$145,282,000 was derived from an individual

customer of the sports-related business segment, while HK$169,270,000 and
HK$114,810,000 were derived from two individual customers of the community

development segment, respectively, for the year ended 31 December 2017,

Geography information

For the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017, the operating activities of the
Group are mainly carried out in the PRC.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 7S B35 SR R M1 5

5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND OTHER GAINS-NET
Revenue, which is also the Group's turnover, represents (i) the net invoiced

value of goods sold, net of value-added tax and after allowances for returns and
trade discounts; (ii) the value of services rendered, net of value-added tax and
government surcharges; (iii) considerations received and receivable for organising
events and competitions; (iv) gross hiring income received and receivable from
sports park facilities; and (v) gross rental income received and receivable from

investment properties during the year.

An analysis of the Group's revenue, other income and other gains-net are as

31 December 2018 —E—N\F+=-_A=+—H
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K 2
EERZEEFE (LMK
BREBEBEREZTM)

\

MR LB ZARE:

5. Uz HAbU A K H i 558 5 58
oz (FREDA SR8 2 %) To R P - () $4

RIZ(E DA KRR

(hFTIREt IR B EE
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(iv) 88 B B &% i B WK

+ (il 2 W N e

KMEWzHEWRAERE: RWVBREDED

Wk e 2 e I A KB
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follows: T -
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+tF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
Bt & TET FHET
Revenue Uz
Sports content production and e RNARIEREITIRA
distribution income 354,573 170,271
Sports talent management income BEATERKA 8,694 7,633
Sale of goods HEEMm 715,211 383,483
Community development consultancy [ B2 R FE RR AR TS UL A
service income 24,482 35,123
Sports park facilities hiring income and BEEXMEcHERAR
other service income H 4th R 7% U A 21,019 11,586
Gross rental income el A 10,605 4,371
1,134,584 612,467
Other income Hk A
Government grants AT # Bk 21,169 35,944
Interest income WA (a) 6,525 5,067
Gain on re-measurement of pre-existing EFFTERE %E\%Z
interest in a joint venture RAE R 2 W= 1,764 =
29,458 41,011
Other gains-net Hih = 38
Fair value change on derivative financial fﬁé&ﬁﬁ%lﬂz
instruments NFEEE) (5,109) 601
Net gain on disposal of property, & %% BB Rz
plant and equipment G- 183 443
(4,926) 1,044
24,532 42,055
Note: Bt sE -

(@) Total interest income on financial assets that are measured at amortised cost for the
year was HK$6,525,000 (2017: HK$5,067,000 at amortised cost).

(b) Revenue recognised during the year that was included in the contract liability
balance at the beginning of the year was HK$47,978,000.

@ FRARBEXRTENUBEENATN S

I A 46,525,000 7T (=&
5,067,000 7T )

b FFAFHIELHAEELE
/547,978,000 T °
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R FAD BRI E
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31 December 2018 —E—N\F+=-_A=+—H

5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND OTHER GAINS-NET 5. W& HMWARHEMIESFE
(CONTINUED) (#&)
Revenue recognised in relation to contract liabilities BRENEERIANKRER
The Group has recognised the following liabilities related to contracts with AEECERATIHEEFEGHNBEENBE:
customers:
2018 2017
—B-N\E —B-tF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Contract liabilities — receipts in advance BRAEEBE-FAWFIA 20,474 -
Reclassified and remeasured amounts — See note 2.2(c) for explanations KEFHBERENTENRE-EBRBER
2B M FE2.2(c)
As at 31 December 2018, included in contract liabilities was an amount of RZE-—NF+ZA=+—8 8 —HH
HK$2,563,000 (2017: HK$44,263,000 included in receipts in advance) 2N Al W B 2 FRIE2,563,0008 0 ( —FE—+
received from an associate, which is based on normal commercial terms offered F 1 44,263,000 TTEF ATEWFIR) THEF A S
by the Group to major customers. HNEBE WIHRBASEREIERPRHE
EEEFEIGERETE -
6. FINANCE COSTS 6. BBRAE
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+t5F
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
By E FET FAT
Interest on bank loans IRITERF B 25 4,117 14,879
Interest on convertible notes Al AR E R B 27 107,898 99,065
Less: interest expense capitalised into B BN EEERERZ
properties under development for sale HEMEZHNERAX (a) (28,322) (26,729)
83,693 87,215
Note: MiEE -
(@  The finance costs have been capitalised at a weighted average interest rate of @ HBRABIZRI38I%Z INEFEHFERRER
13.81% per annum (2017: 12.25% per annum). {E(ZE—tF: FFE1225%) °
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31 December 2018 —E—N\F+=-_A=+—H
7. PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE INCOME TAX 7. BRFFBHAER(&HHE)

The Group’s profit/(loss) before income tax is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

B (FEA) TRIRRES:

AEBEZBAEHANERN, (BE) D&

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
By E FET FAET
Cost of inventories sold EEFEKAE 687,961 378,285
Cost of services provided FiT 52 ik AR 7% AX A< 279,895 139,674
Depreciation e 12 4,200 3,122
Amortisation of intangible assets | EEEE 14 380 =
Gain on remeasurement of pre-existing interest EF st E RN A LD EZ
in a joint venture HAE#EZE 2 W= 5 (1,764) =
Minimum lease payments under operating T REFEEHRLY 2
leases of land and buildings SEBAE R 10,484 9,049
Auditor’s remuneration % S 6N B &
— audit services — %8R 75 3,986 3,603
— fax services — R AR 75 150 150
— other services —E M AR 1,367 1,922
Employee benefit expense EERMAX
(including directors’ remuneration (Note 8)): (B IEZEEB<E (MIzE8) ) :
— Wages and salaries —TEKES 61,363 48,798
— Equity-settled share option expenses — AR E 2 B R 9,138 33,585
— Contributions to defined contribution — EREHFRIRE B 2 H®HK
retirement plans 5,697 3,646
76,198 86,029
Fair value loss on w"EMEZ NFEEE
investment properties 13 677 28,440
Foreign exchange 10ss M % B 18 2,635 3,683
Net gain on disposal of property, HEME BE K
plant and equipment RBEE W= FRE 5 (183) (443)
Fair value change on derivative financial PTEMBIAZRAFEEZS
instruments 5 5,109 (601)
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31 December 2018 —E—N\F+=-_A=+—H

8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

Directors’ remuneration for the year disclosed pursuant to section 383(1) of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of
Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation are as follows:

8. EEMe

BB D A D B8R AT (HEE
FRHRER) RO BRE EFEFHS
T :

2018 2017

—E-NF —B—LF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FAET

Fees e 1,950 1,725
Other emoluments: H i B S

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e EMEEYERN 14,881 14,523

Equity-settled share option expenses LAPRHEAEE 2 BBRRHE S 5,380 26,014

Pension scheme contributions BRIREETEIHE R 72 72

20,333 40,609

22,283 42,334

During the current and prior years, certain directors were granted share options,
in respect of their services to the Group, under the share option schemes of

the Company, further details of which are set out in note 30 to the financial
statements. The fair values of such options, which have been recognised in profit
or loss over the relevant vesting period, were determined as at the respective
dates of grant and the amount included in the financial statements for the current
year are included in the above directors’ remuneration disclosures.

VIVA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED J£ AL+ Bl £ IR G FR A 7]
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 7S B35 SR R M1 5

8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (CONTINUED)

An analysis of the directors’ remuneration, is as follows:

2018 —E-N\§
Executive directors: BTEE:
M. Li Ning FELE
Mr. Chan Ling BREfE
Mr, Li Chunyang FEGHLE
M. Li Qilin FRBEE
Non-executive directors: FHTES:
Mr. Ma Wing Man SHCEE
M, Chan James [ e
Independent non-executive BUFHTES:
directors:
M. Chen Johnny BELTE
Mr. Lien Jown Jing, Vincent BRIFEAE
Mr. Wang Yan TR AE

31 December 2018 —E—N\F+=-_A=+—H

8. EEME ®
EEMEeomOT:
Salaries,
allowances  Equity-settled Retirement
and benefits share option scheme Total
Fees in kind expenses contributions remuneration
e RRER NURELEZ  BiREE
e BENRA  BRERX it M@zt
Note HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
i TER TER TET TER TET
200 10,682 183 18 11,083
200 1,800 1,216 18 3,234
200 1,047 608 18 1,873
200 1,352 2,645 18 4,215
800 14,881 4,652 72 20,405
200 - 182 - 382
200 - 182 - 382
400 - 364 - 764
250 - 182 - 432
250 - 182 - 432
250 - - - 250
750 - 364 - 1,114
1,950 14,881 5,380 72 22,283
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31 December 2018 —E—N\F+=-_A=+—H

8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (CONTINUED) 8. EEM< (&)
Salaries,
allowances Equity-settled Retirement
and henefits Share option scheme Total
Fees in kind EXpenses contributions remuneration
He 2Rk NRELZEZ RIKE T2
e EMREF BRERS R W& @t
Note HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Pt = THET THBT TET T FTET
2017 —E-t&
Executive directors: BTES:
Mr. Li Ning TEEE 175 10,356 867 18 11,416
Mr. Chan Ling BRETAE 175 1,800 5,780 18 7,773
Mr, Li Chunyang FEGLE 175 1,067 2,890 18 4,150
Mr. Li Qilin FRBLE 175 1,300 12,571 18 14,064
700 14,523 22,108 72 37,403
Non-executive directors: FHTES:
Mr, Ma Wing Man B E 175 = 867 = 1,042
Mr. Chan James BB LE 175 - 867 - 1,042
350 - 1,734 - 2,084
Independent non-executive BUFHTES:
directors:
Mr. Ng Sau Kei, Wilfred RIFELE @ 100 = 438 = 538
Mr. Chen Johnny BERTE 225 = 867 = 1,092
Mr. Lien Jown Jing, Vincent BRIERSE 225 = 867 = 1,092
Mr. Wang Yan TS AE (b) 125 = = = 125
675 - 2,172 - 2,847
1,725 14,523 26,014 72 42,334
Note: B aE
(@  Mr. Ng Sau Kei, Wilfred, resigned with effect from 1 July 2017, @ RIFEEER-_FT—tFtA—HEE-
() Mr. Wang Yan, appointed on 1 July 2017. b FEEER-Z—tFLA—BHEZE-

There was no arrangement under which a director waived or agreed to waive any

remuneration during the year (2017: Nil).
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 7S B35 SR R M1 5

9. FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

The five highest paid individuals during the year included three directors (2017:
four directors), details of whose remuneration are set out in note 8 above. Details
of the remuneration for the year of the remaining two (2017: one) highest paid
individuals who are neither a director nor a chief executive of the Company are as
follows:

31 December 2018 —E—N\F+=-_A=+—H

9. AEEEFMAL
FARERSFHALEBE=ZRER(_F
—tFHREF)  HMEFBHIINLEX
M8 - FREBMB (T —£F:— &)
HARREERTRAHE CESFMALLZ
MBI

2018 2017

—E-N\E —E—+tF

HK$’000 HK$'000

THE T FAET

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e EMEEYER 4,030 2,372
Equity-settled share option expenses AR HE4E S 7 BB AR HE R S 2,744 3,928
Retirement scheme contributions RIREET 2R 87 53
6,861 6,353

The number of the non-director and non-chief executive highest paid individuals
whose remuneration fell within the following bands is as follows:

HINBATEE 2 FEE RIFTTRAR 2 &
SEFMALZ ABT

Number of employees

BEAH
2018 2017
—B-N\F —B—-+tF
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,500,001 7T £3,000,00078 7T 1 -
HK$3,500,001 to HK$4,000,000 3,500,001 7T £4,000,00078 7T 1 -
HK$6,000,001 to HK$6,500,000 6,000,001 7T £6,500,00078 7T - 1
2 1

In prior years, share options were granted to the non-director and non-chief
executive highest paid individuals in respect of their services to the Group, further
details of which are set out in note 30 to the financial statements. The fair value
of such share options, which has been recognised in profit or loss over the vesting
period, was determined as at the date of grant and the amount included in the
financial statements for the current year is included in the above non-director and
non-chief executive highest paid individuals remuneration disclosures.

RBEFE CRIFEFRFTRRRE &
SH A T RASEE RS M A EEX D EBR
# BRE - THBERNYMERRMEE -
ZEBREZATENEBHEEE AR
R WHRRH BHEE Mt ARFETE
WRZHBEDFTA LA EZFEENIE
TRz ESHFMALTZHMER-
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31 December 2018 —ZE—N\&FE+=-A=+—H

10. INCOME TAX

10. FiB8%

2018 2017
—E-N\E —E—+tF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
i3 FET FAT
Current tax - the PRC 7N H B 18 — o
Charge for the year FRTH 27,114 14,800
Overprovision in prior years BAFEBRBEREGE (559) (25,722)
Deferred tax IE T B 18
Origination and reversal of temporary R EZHEESE KRR
differences 28 (4,822) 4,927
Income tax expense/(credit) FBRAS,/ (E&R) 21,733 (5,995)
No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been provided for the year ended 31 AEBEEZE_FT—\F+-_A=+—81t

December 2018 as the Group did not generate any assessable profits arising in
Hong Kong during the year (2017: Nil). The PRC corporate income tax provision
in respect of operations in the PRC is calculated based on the statutory tax rate of
25% on the estimated assessable profits for the year based on existing legislation,
interpretations and practices in respect thereof (2017: 25%).

A reconciliation of the income tax expense/(credit) applicant to profit/(loss) before
income tax for the jurisdictions in which the Company and the majority of its
subsidiaries are domiciled to the tax charge is a follows:

EFI%BAE/%%EEHFMR,@%U 5511[
ERAFEEREEFNEFHEE (= t
E:ﬁﬁi\)o?MJ%W”ﬁﬁZEle%ﬁﬁ
ﬁéﬁmﬁﬂfxifﬁéﬁfﬁﬁiﬂ%\éﬁ%ﬁu'\“é‘ﬁiwﬁ
FE R REFAS% 2 EERRAE
(ZEB—+tF:25%) °

AR A e B KRR Y BB~ B FTBR mlAE B2 1R
ZHEARGREHIaN, (BEB) 2MiE
BB, (%) EBIEX B2 HRMAT :

2018 2017

—E-NF —E—tF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHET FET

Profit/(loss) before income tax BRATESRANEF, (EE) 94,723 (108,863)
At the statutory/applicable income tax rates of BRRAAEER AT,

different jurisdictions BRI HEEE 35,858 (10,610)

Tax effect of profits less losses attributable to MERRIREGEBXEMN

associates and joint ventures AR BT E (45,582) (12,031)

Tax effect of income not subject to tax BERBMA Z B 'fv = (1,226) (966)

Tax effect of expenses not deductible for tax PAMBRAZ 2 MBEZE 10,507 40,325

Qverprovision in prior years BT FEEERE (559) (25,722)

Tax effect of unused tax losses not recognised REHARER fRIEJ%EZﬁR?T% 5 22,735 17,776

Tax effect of tax losses utilised EHABEERECHBEE - (14,767)

Income tax expense/(credit) RS (K&) 21,733 (5,995)

The share of income tax expense atiributable to associates and joint ventures for
the year amounting to HK$27,982,000 (2017: HK$10,291,000) is included in
“Share of profits less losses of associates and joint ventures” in the profit or loss.

VIVA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED J£ AL+ Bl £ IR G FR A 7]
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31 December 2018 —ZE—NF+=ZA=+—H

11. PROFIT/(LOSS) PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY N, XA ERFEEAEBELERER
HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY /(EA)
The calculation of basic earnings/(loss) per share amounts for the years ended 31 BEZ—)\EE=_FT—tF+=-H=+—
December 2018 and 2017 is based on the profit/(loss) for the year attributable BIEtFEZSE ﬁﬁﬁzﬁ &, (& TEI )& R TY
to equity holders of the Company, and the weighted average number of ordinary RN D A 1A ARE(S T R F (8
shares in issue and participating equity instruments during the years. BIRFRNEETEBR RS HERRAT AN
B E-
No adjustment has been made to the basic 10ss per share amounts presented for HREE_—_ZT— E +=—RA= ‘f’ AiEF
the year ended 31 December 2017 in respect of a dilution as the impact of the B EBE N EBErE BEERREA
potential dilution effect of the associate’s dilutive potential ordinary shares and NE] E’\J‘}%E%@HQZ@E%&@&JE HETE75
the Company's potential ordinary shares for the year ended 31 December 2017, CEREARAEESEARBEERES T E
either had anti-dilutive or no dilutive effect on the basic loss per share amount BENE AU EREEHBEE T+ &
presented. + - A=+— BRIt EEF 2 SREAE
BEBEELFHE-
The calculation of the diluted earnings per share amounts for the year ended 31 BEZ—)\E+-A=1T—"HULtFEZE
December 2018 is based an the profit for the year attributable to equity holders BREE ARS8 DAREAND AR A AR
of the Company after adjustment to the dilutive effect of share of profits in an 1l W/ﬁ F(EREBEEBRESL 2515
associate arising from its potential ordinary shares and the weighted average —MEE R e s f 2 #E %%f’ﬁ ) &
number of ordinary shares after adjustment for the effect of deemed exercise of %@H’i MEFEHH (ERMEERBPINIRER
all dilutive potential ordinary shares at no consideration at the beginning of the BITEE2SBEEEBEELEBR 2 ZEEL S
period. The effect of the outstanding convertible nates (note 27) was not included B EFE o R HRITEE A AT R R IR (5
in the computation of diluted earning per share for 2018 as it was anti-dilutive. NEREEURE RERAE_ZT—\F
Z B IR B I By U SR 5T % e AR AT AT HRLAR
ERoTE-
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
Profit/(loss) attributable to equity holders of the BRAESREARF, (EiE)
Company, used in the basic earning/(10ss) ZARNREEEEARERER,
per share calculation (HK$'000) (B8 (FE&x) 76,982 (109,666)
Adjustment to the share of profits in an associate BEEE LB AR
arising from its dilutive potential ordinary shares DG — B E R R 2B (1,244) =
Profit/(loss) attributable to equity holders of the ARstEgREERH, (&8)
company, used in the diluted earnings/(loss) per ZARNBIEREA AEESH,
share calculation (HK$'000) (B#R) (T&T) 75,738 (109,666)
Number of ordinary shares ZEREHE
Weighted average number of ordinary shares in ARETEERERRF, (&8)
issue and participating equity instruments used in ZEBTEEREKBERATA
the basic earnings/(loss) per share ZINBEFHE (TR)
calculation ('000) 11,231,069 11,187,179
Dilutive equivalent shares arising from potential BT RERTEE 2
ordinary shares ('000) BaERRE (F&R) 87,351 -
Weighted average number of ordinary shares and RAREFTESREERA 2
potential ordinary shares used in the diluted LB B LB niE T &
eamings per share calculation (000) (F%) 11,318,420 11,187,179
Basic earnings/(loss) per share (HK cents) BREARRBF(FBE) (FBW) 0.69 (0.98)
Diluted earnings/(loss) per share (HK cents) BREERF(FBE) (BW) 0.67 (0.98)
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31 December 2018 —E—N\F+=-_A=+—H

12. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

12. ¥ BERRKRE

Machinery
Leasehold and office Furniture Motor
improvements equipment and fixtures vehicles Total
BER ) X
HENEEE WOERE HBAREE RE @zt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$000
FER FEx TER T T
31 December 2018 “E-N§+ZB=1-H
At T January 2018; R-F-\$-H-R:
Cost PR 20,023 13,006 723 5,503 39,255
Accumulated depreciation and impairment ZiERRE (12,262) (7,591) (629) (4,210) (24,692)
Net book amount FRFE 7,761 5,415 94 1,203 14,563
Opening net book amount FENREFE 7,761 5,415 9% 1,93 14,563
Acquisition of a subsidiary WEEHB AR 907 2,696 - - 3,603
Addtions NE 4,051 3,312 53 383 7,199
Disposal & - (370) - (24) (394)
Depreciation charge nEE (1,931) (1,854) (34) (381) (4,200)
Currency translation differences ERER (499) (454) (U] (15) (972)
Closing net book amount FREMFE 10,289 8,745 109 1,256 20,399
At 31 December 2018; RZF-\F+-A=1-R:
Cost KA 23,992 17,615 769 5,249 47,625
Accumulated depreciation and impairment ZFMERRE (13,703) (8,870) (660) (3,993) (27,226)
Net hook amount EHFE 10,289 8,745 109 1,256 20,399
31 December 2017 “EB-tE+t=A=t-H
At 1 January 2017; RZE—tF-A-R:
Cost KA 18,339 11,506 7 7,047 37,609
Accumulated depreciation and impairment ZMERRE (9,783) (6,445) (622) (5,229) (22,073)
Net book amount RETE 8,556 5,061 95 1,824 15,536
Opening net book amount EREFE 8,556 5,061 95 1,824 15,536
Additions RE 446 728 % - 1198
Disposal HE - (1) = (122) (129)
Depreciation charge nER (1834) (741) (30) (517) (3,122)
Currency translation differences EREE 593 368 b 108 1,074
Closing net book amount FREEFE 7,761 5,415 94 1293 14,563
At 31 December 2017 RZF—tFT-A=1-R:
Cost KA 20,023 13,006 723 5,503 39,255
Accumulated depreciation and impairment ZFMERRE (12,262) 7591) (629) (4210) (24,692)
Net book amount RETE 7,761 5415 94 1,293 14,563
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31 December 2018 —E—N\F+=ZA=+—H
13. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 13. REWZE
Land use rights
held for future
development
Under of industrial
Completed construction buildings Total
BFERK
MRIEET
%I EE ziuFERE @zt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT FTAEL THET THT
(Note (b))
(Ft3E())
Carrying amount at 1 January 2017 RZZ—tF—A—H
ZEEAE 76,494 5171 158,275 239,940
Fair value loss NFEEE (6,909) (1,862) (19,669) (28,440)
Disposal HeE - (3,585) (86,735) (90,320)
Currency tranglation differences R 5,601 276 10,217 16,094
Carrying amount at 31 December 2017 and R-ZT—+F
1 January 2018 +-A=t-BR
—T-\5—H—H
ZEREE 75,186 - 62,088 137,274
Addition NE 11,331 - - 11,331
Fair value loss NHEEE (392) - (285) (677)
Currency tranglation differences R ER (4,780) - (3,210) (7,990)
Carrying amount at 31 December 2018 RZE-N\F
+=-A=+-AH
ZEHE 81,345 - 58,503 139,938
Amounts recognised in profit or loss BBEMEZERER 2018 2017
for investment properties 2 &5 —E-N\E —E—+tF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTET FHET
Rental income He A 5,576 4,066

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had no unprovided contractual obligations
for future repairs and maintenance (2017: Nil).

Notes:

(a) The Group’s investment properties are situated in the PRC and are held under
medium term leases.

(b) Land use rights held for future development of industrial buildings are used to earn
rental income and/or for capital appreciation.

RZE-NE+_A=1+—"HB XAEFINE
ERNEBRBEZEREERREEX (=
T—LF E)o

P

Y

(@) ARBEZEEVFMLNPE WEHHBLD
KB

b FHERKRBEIXBEFT 2 LMEREDR
IABRER A 2 WA K,k B AL (E -
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31 December 2018 —E—N\F+=-_A=+—H

13. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED) 13. REWE (&)

(c)  The fair values of the Group's investment properties are assessed by management © ETEERBEIEESBERGHEME—K

based on the property valuation performed by Savills Valuation and Professional Services TREFTHEREXFEMBRARETZMEM

Limited, independent professionally qualified valuers. The carrying amount of investment BB AEERENE L ATFEH RZE—/N\F

properties at 31 December 2018 was HK$139,938,000 (2017: HK$137,274,000). +-A=1+—8 KEYHE ZEEEA139,938,000
BT (=T — 4 137,274,000 L) °

AEBEREMEZHBRR-_T—N\F+_-A
St HZAVFESERRBZERDT:

Details of the Group’s investment properties and information about the fair value hierarchy
as at 31 December 2018 are as follows:

Quoted prices

in active markets  Significant other Significant Fair value as at

for identical observable unobservable 31 December

assets Level 1 inputs Level 2 inputs Level 3 2018

HEEE HHtEATRE EARTH RZB-N\f

RIERTIHZ BARE EBHABE +=-A=t+-8H

REE-R EZR EZR ZRYE

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000

TER TET TET TR

Industrial property units TEMEET - - 139,938 139,938

AEEREMEZHFBRR-_ZE—CtF+=A
=t HZRAFESEREBZERDT:

Details of the Group's investment properties and information about the fair value hierarchy
as at 31 December 2017 are as follows:

Quoted prices

in active markets  Significant other Significant Fair value as at

for identical observable unobservable 31 December

assets Level 1 inputs Level 2 inputs Level 3 2017

HEEE HtHEATEE EXFABE R-E-—+&

REBMEZ BAZE BAHE +=A=t-H

REE-K -t E=R ZAVE

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

THET THET THEr TR

Industrial property units TEMEET - - 137,274 137,274

The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers into and transfers out of fair value hierarchy
levels as of the date of the event or change in circumstances that caused the transfer. There
were no transfers among the levels during the year.

The fair value of investment properties is determined by adopting the income capitalisation
approach and made reference to available comparable market transactions. The valuation
also takes into account the rental income of contractual tenancies, reversionary market rent
after the expiry of tenancy in capitalisation (2018: RMB4.5 — 36.3 per sq.m. per month
and 2017: RMB4.5 — 13.0 per sg.m. per month), capitalisation rate (2018 and 2017:
6.0%-7.0%), expected vacancy rate (2018 and 2017: 20%), interest rate (2018: NA
and 2017: NA), developer's profit margin (2018: NA and 2017: NA), latest development
proposals and estimated construction costs to completion (2018: NA and 2017: NA) etc.
The assumptions have been adjusted for the quality and location of the properties. The fair
value measurement is positively correlated to the market rent and negatively correlated to
the capitalisation rate, expected vacancy rate, interest rate, estimated cost to completion
and developer's profit margin.
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13. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED)

(d)  Asat 31 December 2018, all the investment properties has been completed,

for which the completion and acceptance certificates for construction works and the real
estate title certificates have been under application by the Group. Accordingly, additional
construction costs and any other associated charges may be incurred and payable to
contractors and/or the relevant government authorities for the fulfillment of the completion
and acceptance for construction works.

(€) Further particulars of the Group’s investment properties are set out on page 195.

31 December 2018 —E—N\F+=-_A=+—H

13. BREY=E (@)

@ R-F-—\F+-A=+—8 FERAY
¥HERT MAKBERFRETRRTIRE
BEUREGEXEEE - AUTEGHTHRE
ETIR2 W T R £ RN AR R XA
RS 18 2 B S P A A () LA A5 B % o

6 AEBREMEZE - PTFBHNEID

E °
14. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 14. BILEE
Goodwill Trademarks Total
(RS (GRS ot
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FATT F&7T FET
At 1 January 2018: RZE—N\FE—H—A8:
Acquisition of a subsidiary g1 =N 18,433 13,539 31,972
Amortisation charge BiHE — (380) (380)
Currency translation differences e =5 (963) (908) (1,871)
Closing net book amount FRIEEFE 17,470 12,251 29,721
At 31 December 2018: NRZE—)N\F
+=-A=+—8:
Cost B AR 17,470 12,619 30,089
Accumulated amortisation S X - (368) (368)
Net book amount R FE 17,470 12,251 29,721
Goodwill arose from the acquisition of 3F L& s (3K ) BB R E R FﬁﬁEFI BR_-Z —)\EH&Z FBIENL R
AR A F(IEREBE) during the year of 2018. Trademarks represent the (HKB)BERK ?’Y‘ BRERAR([FEAE
trademarks of 3E JL{2 5, also arose from the acquisition of FF L1 Bswith the  Bk) ° LR Y 7T B IEN

useful life of 20 years

The goodwill arising from the acquisition of 3E ;.12 B amounted to
HK$18,433,000. As each of the single entity within the group of 3F ;L7 &
cannot generate cash inflows that are largely independent from other entities, the
management considers the 3E L 12 & group as a separate CGU, and all the
goodwill is allocated to this CGU.

Goodwill impairment review is undertaken by the management annually or more
frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate a potential impairment.
The carrying amount of goodwill is compared to the recoverable amount, which

is the higher of value in use (“VIU") and fair value less costs of disposal (FVLCD).
The recoverable amount of the cash generating unit (CGU) is determined based on
VIU. The VIU calculation is based on certain key assumptions, which use cash flow
projections based on financial forecast prepared by management covering a five-
year period.

RBEL AIERFEHR205F-

W B8 3E FLE RS EE A 2 782 518,433,000 7T ©
B JE L B B A B 5 B — B B A
$ﬁiﬁéﬁﬁﬂaafmiﬁim ﬁ&( HiE 71
BIENEBAR AEBREELEEN ﬁﬁﬁﬁ
BEEASEKEZEMNIREEAEN-

aﬁﬁ!iLﬁﬁ%mﬁkﬁ kA0 1 2k
EREE B R A G FERME A E AT
*ﬁ'ﬁﬁﬁﬁ@ﬁﬂWEﬁﬁ(ﬁ%Eﬁ
(TMEAEE]) BRAFERNERARSE)
L8 e B B A B 2 AT M [E) < R TS B £
AEEET - EREEHENLETEER
RAEE FREREEEMRERERSF
WP HERASENRE RETRR
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31 December 2018 —ZE—N\&FE+=-A=+—H

14. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONTINUED)

The Group believes that it is appropriate to cover a five-year period in its cash
flow projection, because it captures the development stage of the JE JL12&

J5's businesses during which it expects to experience a high growth rate. The
management leveraged their extensive experiences in the industries and provided
forecast based on past performance and their expectation of future business plans
and market developments.

The key assumptions, revenue growth rate, earnings before interest, tax,
depreciation and amortization ("EBITDA”), and discount rate used in the VIU
calculations as at 31 December 2018, are as follows:

14, BEEE ()
Zli‘il.m?% KRREAFHNBETRER
ATEAE BERARTRIENEBESE

TREN I?ﬁﬁ,ﬁﬂﬁAﬁﬂW;ﬁf;iﬁET @
EEBREARXEAZEERLR REBE
RAREHRKEB A LTS ERNTES
EITTRR

R_T—-\F+_A=+_AEAEBETE
TKFHZEKTE““ WHEER - BREFITE
RS & F ([EBITDA ) RBLAIR KN T

Year ended

31 December
2018

BZE
—E-N\F
+=ZA=+—H
IEFEE

Revenue growth rate W a5 18 &

EBITDA margin (% of revenue)

EBITDAFE = ((E =B D)

24%-60%
0.8%-35.1%

Discount rate 8535 & 14.5%
Long-term growth rate REPERE 3%
The revenue growth rate is for the five-year forecast period. The cash flow WEEREDNHEAFEAPE - ReER=E

projection is derived from the approved business plan which has a forecast
covering a period of five years and have incorporated necessary updates.

The percentage of EBITDA of revenue is the average percentages over the five-
year forecast period. It is based on the current margin levels, with adjustments
made to reflect the expected future market conditions.

The discount rate used is post-tax and reflect specific risks relating to the CGU.
The following changes in assumptions would cause the recoverable amount to fall

below the carrying value:

A reduction in the sales growth rate from the assumption of 24%-60% applied to
a revised assumption of 23%-48% or less.

A reduction in the EBITDA margin from the assumption of 0.8%-35.1% applied to
a revised assumption of —6.6%-27.8% or less.

An increase in the discount rate from the 14.5% assumption applied to a revised
assumption of 18.64% or more.

VIVA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED J£ AL+ Bl £ IR G FR A 7]

BRI T B R HEX BT 8 AT EIE AR
ERFHNAATCHABEETHRER -

EBITDAMR Wz 2 B 2 th & F 4 78 8| B ff /9
HESL DERBERABERKELELA
A S B T8 23 R SR T 35 AR ©

IR IR R SHRL R I RRBEBRSE
ELEBUZRFERR -

TIRRES G E AN E SRR EENK
[ENI=E
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 7S B35 SR R M1 5

31 December 2018 —E—N\F+=-_A=+—H

15. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURES 15, REERNAIREELE R
2018 2017
—E-N\F —EB—tHF
HK$’000 HK$'000
B FET FAET
Associates kN 3,577,938 3,575,241
Joint ventures BEDE 18,282 54,268
3,596,220 3,629,509
Interests in associates REE ARz R
The following is a movement of interests in associates during the year: IWTAEFAREE R R 2 ESEH):
2018 2017
—E-N\E —E—+tF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAET
At 1 January n—A—B 3,575,241 3,255,017
Share of profits less losses for the period 25 B AR IS 18 183,179 48,342
Share of other comprehensive (loss)/income SEEMEmE (BE) s (514) (545)
Share of reserves pal Ik {% 21,531 7,973
Dividend received 2 AR 2 (11,343) (2,408)
Currency translation differences ME N, ZE 5 (190,156) 266,862
At 31 December R+—-_A=+—H 3,577,938 3,575,241

Particulars of the Group’s principal associates are as follows:

Name Notes
2% (i3
Li ng Co (@)
$ ey /'\

CMC Land (b)
REER

Double Happmess )
IX =

Percentage of

Place of ownership interest
incorporation/ directly attributable
registration to the Group
i AEEEERLER
B/ E i BEZCEAHL
Cayman Islands 22.5%
HEHE

The PRC 29%
h

The PRC 10%
i

As at 31 December 2018, the market value of Li Ning Co’s listed shares was HK$8.40
(2017: HK$6.33) per share. The number of Li Ning Co ordinary shares held by the Group
as at 31 December 2018 was approximately 299,374,000 Shares (2017: 299,374,000
Shares) and the number of convertible securities held as at 31 December 2018 was
approximately 249,827,000 units (2017: 249,827,000 units).

[

AEBZETBEHERRZFBE T

Principal activities

TEXEH

Brand development, design, manufacture, sale and distribution of sport-
related footwear, apparel, equipment and accessories in the PRC

iSRS g
Ret BE HERDHE

Project investment, real estate development, hotel investment and
management, property management, project contracting, and real estate
consultancy, etc.

)] H RE BHERE

BRI IR S Rz mERE

BEEREER MEEE IRA

BREREZNAF

Manufacture, research and development, marketing and sale of principally
table tennis and badminton equipment under its own 4L & = (Double
Happiness)” brand and other sports accessories

RE B SHRHERAA LR ISR MERER
REPERRRRAMEERYG
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31 December 2018 —E—N\F+=-_A=+—H

15. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURES
(CONTINUED)
The following table illustrates the summarised financial information of the Group’s
principal associates extracted from its financial information or financial statements
after adjusting for the impacts of adjustments made at the time of acquisition
and adjustments for differences in accounting policies, if any (the ones extracted
from Li Ning Co and Double Happiness are after adjusting for the impacts of
adjustments made at the time of acquisition and adjustments for differences in
accounting policies, if any, and for non-coterminous periods between the Group
and Li Ning Co):

15, REEERTARGELE ES
(%)

TRMEASEEIRHENR BB BEE
o BRAER A EM B ER S 7R
R (ERNKBRAEL Z ABRZEELAR
LR BRER (WHE)FLRE) (ZF
WA FERRRALEE ZEHHERNIK
BREL ZARTZEFELHBRAAEEHE
FERRZEGABERNER (MA) RN
HESTHEELAR)

2018 2017
—E-N\¥ —E-tf
Double Double
Li Ning Co CITIC Land Happiness LiNing Co CITIC Land Happiness
FENT hEEE aeE NG| RIEEE nes
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ /000 HK$'000
TR TR Tz THET THT T
Gross amounts of the associates BENRACELE
Current assets MBEE 7,148,061 336,090 923,204 5,707,241 407,330 788,586
Non-current assets ERBEE 4,642,210 1,237,906 1,190,093 4,796,773 1,239,742 1,228,049
Current liabifies nBaE 3,512,848 184,608 908,907 2,641,642 165,630 751,239
Non-current liabilies FnEaE 195,788 381,765 183,527 225,001 404,375 200,608
Net assets attributable to the equity holders BaiAAELREEFE 8,081,635 1,007,623 1,020,953 7,634,309 1,077,067 1,051,899
Revenue for the period HR S 11,977,388 36,751 814,395 9,876,807 30,788 821,860
Profit/(loss) for the period R (BE) 718,601 (13,757) 125,633 463,373 (12,526) 135,233
Other comprehensive income//(loss) Hin2EkS/ (BE) (2,280) - - (2,427) = =
Total comprehensive income/(loss) AN/ (FB) B8 776,321 (13,757) 125,633 460,946 (12,526) 135,233
Reconciliation to the Group’s interests FEERBEATANH
in the associates ERENYE
Gross amounts of net assets attributable to BENFEEREARLEE
the equity holders of the associates FEEE 8,081,635 1,007,623 1,007,958 7,634,309 1,077,067 1,051,899
Group's effective interest AEEERER 22.5% 29.0% 10.0% 22.6% 29.0% 10.0%
Group's share of net assets of the associates AEBREBHENRANEEFE 1,829,682 292,212 100,796 1,728,408 312,350 105,189
Goodwil e 1,218,004 76,847 55,484 1,284,305 81,030 58,322
Carrying amount in the consolidated financial statements REEA R BRENEEE 3,047,686 369,059 156,280 3,012,713 393,380 163,511

VIVA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED J£ AL+ Bl £ IR G FR A 7]
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 7S B35 SR R M1 5

15. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURES
(CONTINUED)
The Group’s consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2018 include the Group’s share of the results and reserves of Li Ning Co for the
twelve months ended 30 September 2018 and adjusted for any significant events
or transactions for the period from 1 October 2018 to 31 December 2018. The
Group’s consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2017
include the Group's share of the results and reserves of Li Ning Co for the twelve
months ended 30 September 2017 and adjusted for any significant events or
transactions for the period from 1 October 2017 to 31 December 2017. The
Group has adopted the provision contained in HKAS 28 whereby it is permitted to
include the attributable share of associates’ results based on accounts drawn up
to a non-coterminous period end where the difference must be no greater than
three months. There is no non-coterminous period end for other associates and
joint ventures.

Interests in joint ventures

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group entered into a capital
contribution agreement to subscribe for 50% equity interest in 3F .12 B for a
consideration of RMB30,000,000. The transaction was completed in December
2017 and a goodwill amounting to approximately HK$12 million, which arose
from the excess of the purchase consideration over the Group's interests in the
fair value of identifiable net assets of E L& B attributable to shareholders of
JE RL1E 5 at the date of acquisition was recognised and included in “Interests in
joint ventures” in the consolidated statement of financial position. The fair value of
the identifiable net assets is based on the valuation performed by Savills Valuation
and Professional Services Limited. 3E FL72 5 is a company incorporated

in the PRC with limited liability, whose principal activities include provision of
scientific physical rehabilitation training and health management services for the
community to enhance the people’s physical health and sports performance.

The Group shared a post-acquisition loss of HK$307,000 for the period ended
31 December 2017 and HK$995,000 for the year of 2018 till FE 1= 5
becomes a subsidiary of the Group in June 2018. The Group completed the step
acquisition of 20% equity interest in £ FL4Z= B, resulting in holding 70% equity
interest in total since June 2018.

31 December 2018 —ZE—NF+=ZA=+—H

15. REEE QARG ELEZER
(#)

AEEHEE-_ZE—N\F+-_A=1+—HLF
B EUNBRREEAEEDEEELNT
HE_ T )\GEAA=+tHIt+-@AZ%
BERRFEHETRE - N\FE+A—BEE_
T-NF+_A=+—HILHBZ2EREKR
EHIRGEHAR - AEEHE_T—+
FH+_A=+—HIFEZGEUBEREE
BEAEESLZEERREHE _ZT—tFhA
= tRETZ@EAZEERRELRE =
Z—t+tF+A—HAEEE_ZT—tF+=HA
=t+—BIEHEZERNEREHHRSHIED
FE AKBEDHEMB BT ERE285% AT
B2 IES R BT AN E QR
HEHER(BEEEE2ETSBB=EA)
B AREEEMHMENR 2 ¥E - Hit
ERNRIREEPERETAEHRRER -

REELENER
REBEE-_T—+FE+-_A=1+—BILtFE"
AEBFTZ—BIEHR URBEARK
30,000,0007T 52 i 3E FL1E BE50% A% 7 - 45 78 X
SGER_FT—LtF+_AEZKERKEH
B EABEREBHAEBRIENLEE 2K
REMIENLEBAHNEEFEZATFERE
FRMEE 7 #912,000,0008 T2 AEBDHER
Wt AGREFBEARRKRZ [REEENE
wm| o AHBANEEFELATFEDNRESE —XK
FTEEHEREXERERARMETZE
BEET - FEAEBI —BNPEFMK LN
ERAR HFXBXKBREATREEHREIEZ
BEREIREEREERRT - AEE A
MERBEREAESRR RNEBEE_FT—+tF
+-A=1+—8BI-HE KREBEREEKREER
E518307,0008 7T RIEABEBER T — N\F
NAKAREERBARZAIZ T —N\F
FKIF995,0007 7T ° ANEE 2 T 7 P& ER Y
JERER Z20%HE BN — T — NFE XA
ARG HIFHT70%% # -
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31 December 2018 —E—N\F+=-_A=+—H

15. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURES
(CONTINUED)

Interests in joint ventures (CONTINUED)

On 18 September 2017, the Group entered into a limited partnership agreement

with a wholly-owned subsidiary of Huarong Real Estate Co., Ltd, which is

principally engaged in financial consultancy services, investment consultancy

services and investment management, for the establishment of a Sports Cultural

Industry Fund with an aggregate capital contribution totalling RMB1.5 billion while

the Group is responsible for RMB500 million of the aggregate capital contribution.

The Fund'’s investment objective is to invest in sport community development
projects, and sports and cultural-related intellectual property projects, as well as
investments in private equity funds and other investment opportunities.

Commitments in respect of associates and joint ventures

15, REEERTARGELE ES
(%)
REghxmESs (/)
R-ZE—LtFNATN\B AEERERE
XEREERAIZZENBAR (X2RE
TRABARYE REZARBLREEE)
RINERAERHRE UK IBE X LEXE
T HERERARKIEL AREARE
HEZBTHOARKSET - EE2RERR
RREAREHEBERIBRAREBEMICE
PAMBEERE ARRELEES RHEM
BREKSE -

Commitment to provide funding for associates’ and ~ FLEEE QA AN —M&

EREES 2 AE

a joint venture's capital commitment*

BREEARAREGELRNER
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTRERT THET
B REAE
584,329 616,137

Included in the total capital commitment disclosed in note 34 to the financial
statements.

16. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

B AR B S SRR I RO BB 2 A AR
i -

16. TTEMBITA

2018 2017

—E-N\F —E—+tfF

Asset Liabilities Assets

BE afE BE

Options H 4 - 2,772 2,255
Forward convertible loan mHEATT AR B K 22,780 = =
22,780 2,772 2,255

Current Vi) 22,780 = =
Non-current ER B — 2,772 2,255
22,780 2,772 2,255

(a) The options are accounted for as derivative financial instruments in the consolidated
statement of financial position. As at 31 December 2018, the fair values of the put

option and the call option were approximately HK$736,000 (2017: HK$4,903,000) and
approximately HK$3,508,000 (2017: HK$2,648,000) respectively.

VIVA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED J£ AL+ Bl £ IR G FR A 7]

@) BRERGAMBRARAARAITEY
BIBR-RZE—N\E+-A=+—8 4K
REEZ ANTFED R AX736,0008 T (ZF—+
£ 1 4,903,0005% 7T ) & #93,508,0008 7T ( =T —+
£ 1 2,648,0005 7T ) °



F%

\
Yy ’

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 7S B35 SR R M1 5

16. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

The fair values of the options as at 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2018 were
estimated, using a binomial model, taking into account the terms and conditions, spot price
and exercise price of the options. The following table lists the other key inputs to the model
used:

31 December 2018 —E—N\F+=-_A=+—H

16. fTEMBITA (&)
ERENR-T—+ET-A=+-AR=ZF-N
F+-A=+—-AZAFENERABEREXE
YW EEERE L R R BREZR
EERTEE TRBIIREAEA A MES
Bk

Valuation date

HEBH

31 December 2017 31 December 2018

“E—+tF —E-N\F

+=-A=+—-8 +=ZA=+—H

Annual risk-free rate (%) 42 3 B 5 1 2K (%) 3.77 2.75
Expected volatility (%) T8 HA R 02 (%) 55.90 454
Life of options (years) BRESH(F) 2.98 1.98
Probability of fulfiling all conditions for exercise (%) ERFT B TR G 2 AT RE1E (%) 8.4 4.4

The fair values of the put option and the call option were measured using
significant unobservable inputs (level 3 of fair value hierarchy). During the year,
there were no transfers among the levels.

(b) A forward convertible loan with six-month maturity is formed near year ended 31
December 2018 for a potential acquisition of a e-sports group when certain conditions are
met. At 31 December 2018, the carrying amount of it reasonably approximated to its fair
value.

17. STOCK OF PROPERTIES

RaERRBEZ AFEDEBEKRDTA
B ABE (FRAFERB)GFE-F
W RFEERELEETER -

b  —ORERISNERITREERNEE
—E-NFTZA=T—BEENEF BN E
RETHREREE - EREXEEE -R_F—N\
Ft-A=+—B EHITRARERZREAESR
HRAFERERS-

17. MEEE

2018 2017

—E-N\E —E—+tF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FAET

Properties under development for sale BRYZHFEME 293,474 273,048

The properties under development for sale are held outside Hong Kong with
medium to long term lease. The development is expected to be completed after
more than one year from the reporting date.

BRI\ ZHEEVRIINEBIRINAFREHE
ERNA - BHEEREHKNA RS AHEB
B—FRTEK
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31 December 2018 —E—N\F+=-_A=+—H

18. INVENTORIES 18. &8
2018 2017
—E-N\F —B-tF
HK$’000 HK$'000
TET FHET
Raw materials R 12 196
Finished goods FLAX o 232 140
244 336

There was no write-down of inventories for the years ended 31 December 2018
and 31 December 2017.

19. TRADE DEBTORS AND BILLS RECEIVABLE

RBE-_Z-\F+-_A=+—RAK_-%
—tF+t- A=+ -RLFE UEREFEM
e

19. EWRZKREWERE

2018 2017

—2-N\F —2—-+t#F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET F&T

Trade debtors and bills receivable JFE UG BR R K R W R 384,764 303,577
Less: allowance for doubtful debts B RERBE (4,449) (4,038)
380,315 299,539

The Group’s trading terms with its customers are mainly on credit, generally

one month, extending up to six months for major customers. Each customer

has a maximum credit limit. Overdue balances are reviewed regularly by

senior management. The Group does not hold any collateral or other credit
enhancements over its trade debtors and bills receivable balances. Trade debtors
and bills receivable are non-interest-bearing.

An aged analysis of the trade debtors and bill receivable based on the payment
due date is as follows:

AEEEBELESAETFRS EEH
—RAE—EA TEEPRARZALEREE
HERER BREFHUAERSEERRE-
SREEET R AL N RE Y E
3 L LA R K % B M SR A A 4 B (] AR
i 3 EL IR R (5 & 2 (RIE - REUAR SR I UL
SRR TENE -

FE MR BR X 2 P IR SR AR AR S AR B A B 2 Bl
SHTAT :

2018 2017

—E-N\F —E—+tF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FAT

Current B HA 349,183 235,152
Less than 3 months past due wH LR =@ A 17,900 44,523
3 to 6 months past due wmE == XA A 800 18,083
More than 6 months past due wHREE AN E A 12,432 1,781
380,315 299,539

VIVA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED J£ AL+ Bl £ IR G FR A 7]
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19. TRADE DEBTORS AND BILLS RECEIVABLE (CONTINUED)
Information about the impairment of trade debtors and the Group’s exposure to
credit risk, foreign currency risk and interest risk can be found in Note 39.

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to diversified
customers with no recent history of default.

No amounts included in the Group's trade debtors and bills receivable as at 31
December 2018 are due from associates, (2017: HK$15,193,000 which are
repayable on similar credit terms to those offered by the Group to the major
customers).

20. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

31 December 2018 —E—N\F+=-_A=+—H

19. EWRZKRERERE (&)
EEENEZNREARAEEEREER
% HNEERR R ERER 2 ER - B2
5¥39 o

I R 780 B SRl (B 2 FE WO TR 2 % 22 T B 4
REEZEFER-

AEBR-_ZT—N\F+_A=+—B2ZEK
BRARERERSE B IEREWEZ QR R
B (T —+4:15193,000/8 T &R
EHEAEBRRETFFERF ZEEHHE
)

20, ARRE ReREMERKRRIE

2018 2017
—E-N\E —E—tF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B 5 FET FAET
Prepayments TEfT IR 112,701 98,883
Deposits and other receivables Be Kk E TR (@) 96,129 168,109
Less: loss allowance for deposits and B IRe RE M EBGRIE
other receivables 2 EEEE 38 (24,014) (7,206)
184,816 259,786
Less: current portion B mENER D 115,861 258,026
Non-current deposits and other receivables ERBIEE K
H b JE W R IE 68,955 1,760
Notes: B 5T -

(a) Included in deposits and other receivables as at 31 December 2017 and

31 December 2018 is an interest-bearing loan advance of HK$70,000,000 and
HK$72,150,000 respectively to a third party which was guaranteed by the controlling
shareholder of the third party and repayable within one year and three years respectively,
which is because the maturity date has been extended for another three years. For the
credit risk and impairment analysis, please see note 39.

Deposits and other receivables are measured at amortised costs. The detalil
information about the impairment of deposits and other receivables can be found
in note 39.

@ WR-E—+FE+-A=+—HEZZE—N
F+-_AZ+—HHZREREMERFED A
% ¥ — & % =75 #970,000,000% 7T K272,150,0007%
T BER ZEFRAZE =R RE
REDFR—FAR=ZFANEE READHEHH
BEEE=ZF - ARAEERRERES I E2H
B 5E39 ©

Ba REMEBRRZEERN A E - BRRE
Ko HoAth & W SR IR (B 2 7 15 76 2 B Y 39 ©
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31 December 2018 —E—N\F+=-_A=+—H

21. CASH AND BANK BALANGES
(a) Cash and bank balances comprise

21. BERBITER
(a) BLRBITESHEE

2018 2017

—B-N\E —B-tF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FAET

Cash and bank balances other than time deposits FHTFERAINZ RS MIBI1THE S 349,457 501,395
Time deposits EHFR 31,197 19,617
Cash and bank balances Be MIRITER 380,654 521,012

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank balances of the Group
denominated in RMB amounted to approximately HK$355,390,000 (2017:
HK$380,099,000), approximately HK$283,685,000 (2017: HK$379,239,000)
of which was domiciled in the PRC. The RMB is not freely convertible into other
currencies in the PRC, however, under the PRC's Foreign Exchange Control
Regulations and Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign
Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange RMB for other
currencies through banks authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks other than time deposits earns interest at floating rates based on
daily bank deposit rates. Short-term time deposits are made for varying periods of
between one and three months depending on the short-term cash requirements
of the Group, and earn interest at the respective short-term time deposit rates.
The bank balances are deposited with creditworthy banks with no recent history of
default,

(b) Net debt
This section sets out an analysis of net debt for the year ended 31 December
2018.

RBEHR AEBUARBAEZRE
MR 1T 4588 49 355,390,000 T (—E—+
4 1 380,099,000/ 7T ) + H & 49283,685,0007
7T ( Z T —+ % : 379,239,000/ 7t ) F R &
TARBRBPEFAATERLIBRAHEME
B o ORT » ARIR (P RSMNEERIEH) K (&
B EEMMMEESERT) AEERES
BEREETINEEE ZRITHARE KB
AEHEME-

RTAS (EPEFFINRESARTE
TR R 3% B F R BREUK B - 58 B E B TE K
RP—E=-EATE RILEEEHAE
TR - WK B 52 HIE B FON R BRER
ME - RITERTFRNRIOEEOLERARE
BRIFZRIT

(b) EHFE
rHHEERE_T-N\F+-_A=1T—HL
FENEBRFRIOM-

2018 2017
—2-N\F —2-+tF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET T

Net debt BERIFEE
Cash and cash equivalents BeNREEEY 380,654 521,012
Barrowings — repayable within one year BE-R—FAEE (40,023) =
Borrowings — repayable after one year BE-R—FREER (819,602) (788,140)
Net debt (G (478,971) (267,128)
Cash and cash equivalents RekB2EEY 380,654 521,012
Gross debt — fixed interest rates BB E M =X (819,602) (750,605)
Gross debt — variable interest rates BB F xR (40,023) (37,535)
Net debt (G (478,971) (267,128)
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31 December 2018 —E—N\F+=-_A=+—H

21. CASH AND BANK BALANCES (CONTINUED) 21. RERBITEH (&)

(c) Reconciliation of liabilities from financing activities (c) MEEBFEEEENHER

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities from financing activities, THRFANASERBREZDELENBENE
including both cash and non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing B RERESRIIBRSEY - REETHELE
activities are liabilities for which cash flows were, or future cash flows will be, WEEAREMREIRKESREFTNAE

classified in the Group’s consolidated statement of cash flows as cash flows from EMGeRenERNS BAREEH 2
financing activities. EMEMNAEE

Bank and Gonvertible

other loans notes Total
HBITR
HhBR wWHREREE et
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FERT FET
Notes (Note 25) (Note 27)
Bt =E ( Bff£25) ( B aE27)
At 1 January 2018 R=ZZE-—N\FE—HF—H 37,535 750,605 788,140
Changes from financing METE2RSRESE:
cash flows:
Proceeds from new bank loan FIRITTERMBRIEA 40,000 = 40,000
Repayment of bank and other loans BEFRITREMER (40,000) — (40,000)
Interest paid B 15 71 8 (1,629) (38,901) (40,530)
Total changes from financing cash flows REE EEZ R4 mE &
4= (1,629) (38,901) (40,530)
Non-cash changes FREEH
Interest expenses B R X 3,065 80,628 83,693
Capitalised borrowing costs EREBEEKA 1,052 27,270 28,322
At 31 December 2018 R=ZB-—N\F
+=ZA=+—H 40,023 819,602 859,625
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31 December 2018 —E—N\F+=-_A=+—H

21. CASH AND BANK BALANGES (CONTINUED)

21. RERBITER (&)

Bank and Convertible
other loans notes Total
RBITR
HhBER "HREREE et
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FERT
Notes (Note 25) (Note 27)
B & (B 5%25) (Bt &E27)
At 1 January 2017 R=-=ZE—tH—H—H 416,640 690,440 1,107,080
Changes from financing RMETBH2RSRESE:
cash flows:
Proceeds from new bank loan FIRTTE RS KA 40,000 — 40,000
Repayment of bank and other loans EEBRITREMER (429,058) — (429,058)
Interest paid B 8 (14,636) (38,900) (53,536)
Total changes from financing cash flows REEEEZE SR EE
48 RE (403,694) (38,900) (442,594)
Non-cash changes FREEH
Net exchange and translation difference B[ &, N [E X, =58 9,710 - 9,710
Interest expenses BB X 6 11,389 75,826 87,215
Capitalised borrowing costs BRI EE KA 6 3,490 23,239 26,729
At 31 December 2017 R-ZE—tHF
+=ZA=+—H 37,535 750,605 788,140
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22. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

The trade payables of the Group as at 31 December 2018 and 2017 were all
aged within three months, as determined based on the invoice date. They are non-
interest-bearing and are normally settled on terms ranging from 30 to 60 days.

31 December 2018 —E—N\F+=-_A=+—H

22. BHERAREHMENSIE
BEBEZZAHHE AXEER_ZT—-N\FK
—E—+tF+ A=+ HZENERZE
R IOPR =R ZEHXRBREER—RE
MR30E60H 2 HABR AEE -

2018 2017

—E-N\F —E—tF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FHET

Trade payables FEBR K 102,789 105,252
Other payables H b FE A 5IE 43,448 61,532
146,237 166,784

23. ACCRUALS AND RECEIPTS IN ADVANCE

23. EFFERRBEWRRKIE

2018 2017

—E-N\F —E—+tF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FAET

Accruals BT EH 33,859 22,613
Receipts in advance T8 Y 118 - 48,808
33,859 71,421

24. DEFERRED INCOME

The movements in deferred income as stated under current and non-current

contract liabilities are as follows:

24, EFEU A
5 ARB RIFRENA 08 EE T ZEERA
Z2BMT

2018 2017

—E-N\F —E—+tHF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FAT

Carrying amount at 1 January R—A—BZEEE 41,187 71,752
Government grants received during the year F N E W KT 7 Bh 8,368 =

Credited to profit or loss A= (21,169) (34,485)
Currency translation differences E X ZE% (2,643) 3,920
Carrying amount at 31 December RT+ZA=+—RAZKEE 25,743 41,187
Less: current portion B M ENER 15,732 19,216
10,011 21,971
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31 December 2018 —E—N\F+=-_A=+—H

24. DEFERRED INCOME (CONTINUED)

Deferred income mainly represents government grants obtained for the purpose
of subsidising subsidiaries’ operation. Government grants received are initially
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position as deferred income
and are amortised through profit or loss on a systematic basis over the periods in
which the grants are intended to compensate.

25. BANK LOANS

24, JEFEW A (%)

EEWA T BB —RNBEBAR 228
M BT 2 BR AT 48 B o B YBR AT 468 B 1) P IR 4R
BHMBARRR AR BETEWA - 1R R
EENZHF B TREZ RN BT #

25. MITER

2018 2017

=E-N\F —E—tF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FAT

Bank loans, secured RITER FHEF 40,023 37,535
40,023 37,535

Less: Current portion R BN 40,023 =
- 7B

Bank loans bear floating rate of HIBOR plus basis.

As at 31 December 2018, loan included collateralised bank loan which is secured
by interest in an associate with an estimated carrying amount of approximately
HK$110,986,000 (2017: HK$111,612,000).

The Group has obtained bank facilities of HK$460,000,000 during the year, of
which HK$420,000,000 remained unutilised at 31 December 2018.

VIVA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED J£ AL+ Bl £ IR G FR A 7]
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26. PAYABLE TO A NON-CONTROLLING INTEREST

31 December 2018 —ZE—NF+=ZA=+—H

26. EFERERS

2018 2017
—E-N\E ZT—t#&E
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B 3E FE&T FAET
Payable to a non-controlling interest JE - FE 2 A% R 2
— current portion — B I D - 1,135
Note: Mzt :

(a) The amount payable to a non-controlling interest was unsecured, interest-free and
repayable on demand. It has been repaid during the year ended 31 December 2018.

27. CONVERTIBLE NOTES

On 13 December 2016, the Group completed the issuance of redeemable
convertible notes (the “Notes”) in the aggregate principal amount of
HK$778,000,000 with an initial conversion price of HK$0.840 per ordinary share
of the Company (subject to adjustments). The Notes were issued on 16 December
2016 (the “Issue Date") which will be due on the fifth anniversary of the Issue
Date, i.e. 16 December 2021 (the “Maturity Date"). The Notes bore an initial
interest of 5% per annum payable quarterly in arrears after the Issue Date. Unless
previously converted, redeemed or cancelled, the Notes will be redeemed on the
Maturity Date, at a redemption price equal to the aggregate of:

(i) the outstanding principal amount of the Notes;
(i) the outstanding interest up to the date of redemption;
(i) the outstanding default interest (if any); and

(iv)  any additional amount that would make up an internal rate of return on
the amount of the Notes in (i) above at 10.5% per annum (having included all
interests paid together with that payable in (i) and (iii) above), calculated during
the period from the Issue Date up to (and including) the Maturity Date.

The Notes are secured by interest in an associate with an estimated carrying
amount of approximately HK$764,676,000 as at 31 December 2018 (2017:
HK$755,901,000).

(@ ENFEERERFUAREER 2R KB
ERERE-HERBE-_ZT—N\F+_A=+—
BIEFEEER-

27. TRREE
RZEBE—RNF+-_A+=8 AEEZTKE
1774 4858 /778,000,0005 7T 2 7] & [0] A] £
BREE([ERE]) MPRREAESRAR
A EMAR0.840B L (AT THAE)  EENZ
T—RNE+ A+ B ([#E7TH])%ETL
BRETAZERARFER (M2 =_—F
+- A+ B ([RHA]) )R - ZEMNS
BEF KT B AREBBEITARE=
A BE—K-BrIEIRATER  FEE skaEsy -
GHZEER BRI HAER  BRIBERAT
A

i) BEBEZBHRES:

i) HEBLOBHZHEXFL:

iy MMREE(WE): K

vy BEEEX)MARESENEITHE
ZHHE (BEZB)EEFI05%TEZR
e (BEE2EE A FLEE R (i) K i)
FEARTE) MR EMEEE-
R-ZE—NE+-_A=+—8 EHhfk:t

BRTE {8 /& 49764,676,00058 7T 2 Bt & N 7] 2 #E
HEEIR (ZF—+4F:755901,000/87T) °
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31 December 2018 —ZE—N\&FE+=-A=+—H

27. CONVERTIBLE NOTES (CONTINUED)
An aggregated net proceeds of approximately HK$777,013,000 was raised by
the convertible notes during the year 2016.

The fair values of the liability component and the equity conversion component
were determined upon the issuance of the Notes.

The fair value of the liability component as at the Issue Date was determined

by reference to the valuation performed by American Appraisal using cash flows
discounted at an effective market yield of 14.64% for a similar liability that does
not have an equity conversion option. The residual amount, representing the value
of equity conversion component, is included in shareholders’ equity.

From 16 December 2017 to 31 December 2018, no noteholders has converted
any portion of the Notes into ordinary shares of the Company.

The Notes are presented in the statement of financial position as follows:

27. ATRARERE (&)
RIE—RNFEBIURBREEEEESHEY
777,013,000/ 70 Z FT1S T8 5 &8 -

BERDREFEBRD 2 ATFERRER
ﬁﬁvﬁm°
BEIONEITEZA ”_HETJQE”%IEHE

N EEmERENELABEERRE
%%ArM@%ﬁﬁmﬁﬁm;LHZﬁﬁ
BT -#HTHE (AEREREBD ZEE) T
INGE Tk

R-EBE—+FEF+-_A+NBE_ZT—N\F
+—A=Z+—8 BEZEFEE ABTMEB
DEEEHBARNRZEBRK-

EERMBRRARAZ50T

HK$’000

FHERT

Liability component at and 1 January 2017 RZE—tF—A—AZAEBBH 690,440

Interest expense PSS Eﬁ EZ 99,065

Interest paid B FE (38,900)
Liability component at 31 December 2017 and 1 January 2018 R-_Z—+&+_-_A=+—HK

—E-NF-A—HZEEHKS 750,605

Interest expense FEAXZ 107,898

Interest paid [ERNEUYSS (38,901)

Liability component at 31 December 2018 RZE-N\F+ZA=+—Hz8E&HD 819,602

28. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
Net deferred tax assets recognised in the consolidated statement of financial
position are as follows:

28 EFiEBEEEREE
RIFETBRARERCEEFHIBEEF
fEZzuT

2018 2017

=F-NF ZE—tF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FE T FH&TT

Deferred tax assets ELEHIBEE 12,443 8,048
Deferred tax liabilities BEERIBEE (3,178) -
9,265 8,048
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28. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)

31 December 2018 —E—N\F+=-_A=+—H

28, EEBHEBEEERE S (&)

The movement in deferred tax assets and liabilities during the year are as follows:

Fair value
changes
arising from Impairment
valuation on  Amortization and other
investment  of intangible temporary
properties assets differences Total
BERE
MG E
MEKZ £/ BERHEM
NEELH EESH BREH st
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Bt & FAT FAT FAT FAT
At 1 January 2017 RZE—+F—H—H 12,067 = 12,067
(Charged)/credited to profit or loss MBS (F1BR) /5t A 10 (5,936) = 1,009 (4,927)
Currency translation differences M Z 892 = 16 908
At 31 December 2017 and RZZE—+F
1 January 2018 +tZA=+—-BRk
—E-\¥—HA—H 7,023 - 1,025 8,048
Acquisition of a subsidiary W — B QA 36 - (3,385) - (3,385)
Credited to profit or loss REERETA 10 169 95 4,558 4,822
Currency translation differences ME N =5 1 226 (447) (220)
At 31 December 2018 —\F+=A=+—H 7,193 (3,064) 5,136 9,265
Notes: Bt =T -
@ At 31 December 2018, the Group had tax losses arising in Hong Kong of @ MNRZZE-—N\F+-_A=+—8 FrE£ERE
approximately HK$586,679,000 (2017: HK$540,156,000), subject to the confirmation of B E TR TEE18 47586,679,0008 7L (ZZF— L4 -
tax losses from the Hong Kong Inland Revenue Department. These tax losses are available 540,156,000/ 7T ) ' E BT B BRI B ER R IE
indefinitely for offsetting against future taxable profits of the companies in which the losses BB mzERIEEERERBAERESEE
arose. The Group also has tax losses arising in the PRC of HK$40,642,000 (2017: RAIZARERT AT c NREB IR BIEER

FRELCHAEEERBBEZESHNOT

HK$19,067,000) that will expire within five years to offsetting against future taxable profits.
Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of these losses as they have arisen
in companies that have been loss-making for some time and it is not considered probable
that taxable profits will be available against which the tax losses can be utilised.

Deferred tax liability has not been recognised for withholding taxes that would be payable on
certain portions of the unremitted earnings that are subject to withholding taxes of certain of
the Group's subsidiaries established in the PRC as all of those profits will not be distributed
in the foreseeable future.

There are no income tax consequences attaching to the payment of dividends by the
Company to its shareholders.

TH [E51840,642,0007%8 7T ( =& —t 4 : 19,067,000
J0) - A ARIE SR R ERBE R - BT IBEE
BRAEFRIR - ARZEAREHEEE &
5 fE - A FEER B s A1) 1] FB A4 B F % TE /5 18 2 1
SR R ERZEEEERELEHIBEEE -

AREBIW AR E TR BRI B AR ZAKE
&AMz E TS mENBRIHERECHEASR

B ARZENEE2HTERATRBEROE -

AN R A H R 32 B B AR ART B 75 P S AR 2
@,
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31 December 2018 —E—N\F+=-_A=+—H

29. SHARE CAPITAL 29. B
Shares % 17
2018 2017
—B-N\E —g-tf
Nominal value Nominal value
HfE HE
No. of shares HK$'000 No. of shares HK$'000
RO EE TEL bt TAT
Authorised: FE
Ordinary shares of HK$0.05 each FREEGETLZAR
(Ordinary Shares’) ([E£ER)) 20,000,000,000 1,000,000 20,000,000,000 1,000,000
Redeemable convertible preferred shares of BREBENETZER
HK$0.01 each (Prefered Shares) TEAELR(TEER]) 6000000000 60,000 6,000,000,000 60,000
Total @t 26,000,000,000 1,060,000 26,000,000,000 1,060,000
Issued and fully paid: BEIRAR:
Ordinary Shares TEk 8,847,924,726 442,396 8,808,732,726 440,437
A summary of the movements in the Company’s issued capital during the years HE_ZT—)\GRE—+F+A=1+—
ended 31 December 2018 and 2017 is as follows: BIEFEARQGCBEITRASHBAMOT
Issued Capital 2®ITRAK
Number of Share
Ordinary Issued premium
Shares in issue capital account Total
BRI
EEREA BERITRA KRB EER o5
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Mt TAT TAT TET
At 1 January 2017 RZZE—+&—-A—H 8,764,360,726 438,218 4,145,239 4,583,457
Issue of ordinary shares BITERR (b) 44,372,000 2,219 27,287 29,506
At 31 December 2017 W_E—+&+-A=1+—H 8,808,732,726 440,437 4.172,526 4,612,963
Issue of ordinary shares EIEER (b) 39,192,000 1,959 26,526 28,485
At 31 December 2018 RZE-N\E+ZA=1+—H 8,847,924,726 442,396 4,199,052 4,641,448
Notes: B & -
(@) 44,372,000 Ordinary Shares were issued upon exercise of certain share options @ Z—ZE—tFRNABTHEREETEMET
during the year of 2017 for proceeds totalling HK$22,562,000. The proceeds of such 44,372,000% & BA% - HE1SFT1S 5RIE A $£22,562,000
issues had been applied towards general working capital of the Group. B -ZEBET B RECREAER 2 —K
BEED -
(b) 39,192,000 Ordinary Shares were issued upon exercise of certain share options b ZE-NFARETEREETEMET
during the year of 2018 for proceeds totalling HK$21,373,000. The proceeds of such 39,192,0000% & @A% - 1S AT{S 5RIEA $£21,373,000
issues had been applied towards general working capital of the Group. B -ZEBRTZAMEBRECRHEAERZ —K

LEES-

172  VIVA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED 3t LB = B A PR A E



F%

\
Yy ?

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 7S B35 SR R M1 5

30. SHARE OPTION SCHEME

On 29 June 2010, the Company passed an ordinary resolution to adopt a

share option scheme (the “Scheme”) for the purpose of providing incentives to
participants to contribute to the Group and/or to enable the Group to recruit high-
calibre employees and/or attract human resources that are valuable to the Group.
Participants of the Scheme include employee, officer, agent, consultant, business
associate or representative of the Company or any subsidiary or otherwise
contributes to the success of the Group, including any executive, non-executive
or independent non-executive director of the Company or any subsidiary, who, as
the board of directors or a committee comprising directors and members of the
senior management of the Company (the “Committee”) (as the case may be) may
determine in its absolute discretion, is regarded as valuable human resources of
the Group based on his working experience, knowledge in the industry and other
relevant factors, and subject to such conditions as the board of directors or the
Committee (as the case may be) may think fit. The Scheme will remain in force for
period of ten years commencing on 29 June 2010.

The overall limit on the number of Ordinary Shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under the
Scheme and any other share option schemes of the Company must not, in
aggregate, exceed 30% of the number of Ordinary Shares in issue from time

to time. In addition, the total number of Ordinary Shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all options granted together with all options to be granted under
the Scheme and any other share option schemes of the Company must not, in
aggregate, exceed 10% of the nominal amount of all the Ordinary Shares in issue
as at the date of adoption of the Scheme (the “Scheme Mandate Limit"). The
Company may, from time to time, refresh the Scheme Mandate Limit by obtaining
the approval of the shareholders in general meeting. Once refreshed, the total
number of Ordinary Shares which may be issued upon exercise of all options to
be granted under the Scheme and all other share option schemes of the Company
under the limit, as refreshed, must not exceed 10% of the number of Ordinary
Shares in issue as at the date of approval of the refreshment by the Shareholders.

The Scheme Mandate Limit amounted to 878,060,472 Ordinary Shares following
the approval of refreshment by the Shareholders on 16 June 2017.

As at the date of this report, the total number of Ordinary Shares available for
issue under the Scheme is 818,060,472 representing 9.24% of the existing
issued share capital of the Company. The maximum number of Ordinary Shares
issuable under share options to each eligible participant in the Scheme within any
12-month period is limited to 1% of the Ordinary Shares of the Company in issue
as at the proposed date of grant. Any further grant of share options in excess of
this limit is subject to Shareholders’ approval in a general meeting.

31 December 2018 —ZE—NF+=ZA=+—H

30. BERESTE
R-ZE—ZTEANA-+NB ALGRABY
BRER A —EERETE ([52]) -
SERAAEEELTH 22 EEIZ 420
/S AEEAREESEE R HEI
HAEBEBEBEZANER Bz 2EE
BERATSIERMMBRATIZIES KRB
BRI R ERBHIRRIBEAER
RBEFREEZEMAL  BIEAARSE
I B B A RMEAI 81T - JEBRITRB L FEHNTT
EE MESTIHARAEERSREE
ABHERzZES ([Z8g]) (BEBERM
E)VREERETERSR TEMB L E g
BESEURFAESeREE e (RBERH
E)ARRABBEIGME T2EBBR
TEBUALTEEBEAEEEEANER 5T
YN —E—TESA-+HBRHTER
B

ERIEFT 8 &R AR RER A B ERT 81 FT
FHMERARITE A M RITEERERET
A FEIT2EBIREE 2BBRY &
HEABBBTREBITETMREE 230% -
tEoh - EAR R AT 8] K AR R R AEfA] £ th B8 A% 4
FEERH RS TERN A EBREETT
FEmA FET2EBRAE aETEBB
RNtE8lE BB ERITEBRAMBZ10%
([FHEIREER]) - RRARA] TR E BRI
HARL FESAR R AT F SR L
BRoFTEIRE LR —&H 3 BRETE K&
RARITEEMEBRETESE TREZE
R EETEmA TET2EBRAEE B
BREHRERTSHEARREETNERD
BTEBREE 210% °

KEERRERR - ZE—+tF AT+ NBHREEH
1% 5t LR A878,060,4720% i@ A% o

MAFEBR Rt BT FRHITZ2LRE
f% 48 81 £818,060,4720% - HHE R A A RIRA
BEITIRAN 29.24%  FAMEARI121E A HifE AR
BERERTTHEETSAERKRHEE
ZEBBREE RETEBBARAREZ
REBHBERTEBRZ1% - ER#E—FE
M PR RE 2 AR AR IR R A& =5k
AL -
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31 December 2018 —ZE—N\&FE+=-A=+—H

30. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED) 30. BERAESTE (@)

The offer of a grant of share options under the Scheme may be accepted within BIBFTEIREERECZHTRELNH Hﬂﬁ_
28 days from the date of offer, upon payment of a nominal consideration of 28R AEERN  MAKRABRLI NS
HK$1 in total by the grantee. The exercise period of the share options granted is IBTZEBARB-EREBREZITE
determinable by the board of directors or the Committee, save that such period HhEEeXLESET HEBHRETE
shall not be more than 10 years from the date of grant. Unless the Board may BERE BB I0F -RIFEESTERTTH
otherwise determine, there is no minimum period required under the Scheme for RoFEINEREETERASEBERE
the holding of an option before it can be exercised. =G HABR ©

The exercise price of share options is determinable by the Board or the ﬁ%ﬁxﬁéZfﬂff HEEEHE E\@ - HE
Committee, but shall be at least the highest of () the Stock Exchange closing price 5 TEEE’\T@JRIEZ SERNE:S EE’\EE
of the Ordinary Shares on the date of offer of the share options; (ii) the average H%ﬁ? =] Hﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁéﬁﬁzl& miE: (|| ) B A%
Stock Exchange closing price of the Ordinary Shares for the five trading days REZRE BB AERS B ERR2F
immediately preceding the date of grant; and (iii) the nominal value of the Ordinary ~ ¥JU (& 5 K (i) E @A E (A °

Shares.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends or to vote at ﬁ%ﬂx%i’[ i T3 A AWEUR B SR AR K
shareholders’ meetings. XKZEE” A o

The following share options were outstanding under the Scheme during the year: FAFEIETHARITEBRELNT

Weighted
average Number
exercise price of options
hnE
FHITEE AR EZE
Notes (HK$ per share) '000
B 5 (BB T) T
At 1 January 2017 R—ZE—tF—H—H 0.70 332,463
Granted during the year RE AT (a) 0.80 369,300
Forfeited/expired during the year R N2 U B E (b) 0.87 (86,215)
Exercised during the year RERNTTE () 0.51 (44,372)
At 31 December 2017 and R_ZE—+tF+-_HA=+—H
1 January 2018 E=—ZF—-—NFE—H—H 0.76 571,176
Granted during the year RE AR (@) 0.94 60,000
Forfeited/expired during the year P N2 W B E (b) 0.86 (76,608)
Exercised during the year RERNITHE (©) 0.55 (39,192)
At 31 December 2018 RZE-—NE+ZA=+—8B (0 0.78 515,376
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30. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED)

Notes:

(a) The fair values of the share options granted under the Scheme during the year
ended 31 December 2018 were HK$14,976,000 in aggregate, which were estimated as
at the respective dates of grant using a binominal model, taking into account the terms
and conditions upon which the options were granted, the valuation of which was performed
by Asia Pacific Consulting and Appraisal Limited. The following table lists the inputs to the
model used:

31 December 2018 —E—N\F+=-_A=+—H

30. _Eﬁﬂi*&%‘l‘%ﬂ(ﬁi)

=2
@ REEZZTE-—N\F+-A=+—HLFE"
*Eﬁuﬁwﬁﬂxﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁém NEEA 514,976,000

BT HREBBRER S 2 R RGAER =
FABEARZ ARG BHETEE ARG ES
DANGBAERARET TRIVRFAERR
Az ARUR:

Dividend yield (%) % B 2K (%) 0
Expected volatility (%) T8 HA R 1@ (%) 37.21 - 40.13
Expected life of options (years) BREEEEH (F) 3-5
Risk-free interest rate (%) £ [ B2 1) 2= (%) 2.05-2.13

Equity-settled share option expenses of HK$13,148,000 (2017: HK$52,644,000) was
recognised in profit or loss during the year ended 31 December 2018 in respect of the
share options granted under the Scheme.

(b) 76,608,000 (2017: 86,215,000) share options granted under the Scheme were
forfeited/expired during the year ended 31 December 2018 upon the resignation of certain
grantees during the year.

(c) 39,192,000 (2017: 44,372,000) share options granted under the Scheme were
exercised during the year ended 31 December 2018.

(a) As at 31 December 2018, the Company had 515,376,000 share options
outstanding under the Scheme, which represented approximately 5.8% of the Ordinary
Shares in issue as at 31 December 2018.

(e) The exercise prices and exercise periods of the share options outstanding under the
Scheme as at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

2018
Number of options Exercise price* Exercise period
BREHAE TEE* THEHE
(’000) (HK$ per share)
(F1) (BRET)
1,200 4.15 6 Sep 2014 to 5 Sep 2019
1,200 4.15 6 Sep 2015 to 5 Sep 2020
92,380 0.5 2 Jul 2016 to 1 Jul 2019
4,804 0.8 20 Jun 2016 to 19 Jun 2019
4,804 0.8 20 Jun 2017 to 19 Jun 2020
175,138 0.8 20 Jan 2017 to 19 Jan 2019
87,925 0.8 20 Jan 2018 to 19 Jan 2020
87,925 0.8 20 Jan 2019 to 19 Jan 2021
20,000 0.94 5 Sep 2019 to 4 Sep 2021
20,000 0.94 5 Sep 2020 to 4 Sep 2022
20,000 0.94 5 Sep 2021 to 4 Sep 2023
515,376

REBEZT-\F+_A=+—HILEFE R
BT EIFR B R B R AR E 2 8
P B 3213,148,000/8 7L ( —F —+4F : 52,644,000
AIL)

b REBEEZZTE—NFF+_A=+—BLHF
B REEIRE 276,608,000 (T —+4F:
86,215,0001) ) BEREE RN F RE TEER ABEER
/XLBZ/ IHﬂ

0 RIEFFEIRE 239,192,000 (=ZF—+t
F 44,372,000 ) IEREEREE T —\F
+—A=t+—BI-FEETE-

d R-E—NE+-_A=+—0B A27AH
515,376,0000 s BT T 2 M RITE B ME - B E
R-FE—N\F+_A=+—BHEBTETRABRZH
5.8% o

6 MIMEHRFBET WARITEBREZTT
EERITEHARDT

—E-N\f

—E-NEABANBE=ZE—-NEFEHAAEH
—E-RFNAANBEZZE-ZEENAEA
—E-XRFEtAZ= E|:t:——< ijli‘t)EJ—El
—E-XFAAZTHZE —hEXB+NHE
—E—tHFXAZ +E|§ g EFEXA+TNA
—g tF—-—BA=Z+HEZ=ZZE—-NF—A+hH
EZ-N\NFE—HA=-+HRE=-ZE-_Z=F—H+hH
i hE—BA=-+RZE=ZE=-_——HF+hH
—E-NFNANBREBE=-ZE=-—FHAAMNAH
—E_EFNBRRABEZE-_-FfHAAMNA
—E_—HNBRABEZZE-_=FfHNAMNA
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31 December 2018 —E—N\F+=-_A=+—H

30. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED)

2017

Number of options Exercise price”

R A TEE
('000) (HK$ per share)
(F12) (BRET)
5,800 3.9
1,200 415
1,200 415
1,200 415
92,188 0.5
92,380 0.5
4,804 0.8
181,250 0.8
4,804 0.8
90,625 0.8
5,100 0.8
90,625 0.8
571,176

*

Exercise period

171 B3]

2 Jul 2013 to 1 Jul 2018

6 Sep 2013 to 5 Sep 2018
6 Sep 2014 to 5 Sep 2019
6 Sep 2015 to 5 Sep 2020

2 Jul 2015 to 1 Jul 2018

2 Jul 2016 to 1 Jul 2019

20 Jun 2015 to 19 Jun 2018
20 Jan 2017 to 19 Jan 2019
20 Jun 2016 to 19 Jun 2019
20 Jan 2018 to 19 Jan 2020
20 Jun 2017 to 19 Jun 2020
20 Jan 2019 to 19 Jan 2021

The exercise prices of the share options are subject to adjustment in the event of

any capitalisation issue, rights issue, consolidation, sub-division or reduction of the share

capital of the Company (other than issuance of Ordinary Shares as consideration in respect

of a transaction)

At the end of the reporting period, the exercise in full of the outstanding
share options under the Scheme would, under the present capital structure

of the Company, result in the issue of 515,376,000 additional Ordinary
Shares and additional share capital of HK$25,769,000 and share premium of

HK$375,258,000, before taking into account any transfer of share option reserve

to the share premium account.

VIVA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED J£ AL+ Bl £ IR G FR A 7]

30. BERAERT & (80
—T—+F

—E—=ZF+A-BE_FT—N\FtA—H
—E—=FAARNAE=ZE-N\FNAAAB
—E-—NFENAASNBE_ZE—NAFHLAARA
—E-HFNARNBE-_ZE_ZFTFNAAAH
—E-hAFt+tAZHE=ZFT—/\FtH—H
—E-RXFtAZHAE_Z—NLFtA—H
—E-REANA-FTHE-ZE-N\EXATAIA
T+t —A=Z+HE=Z—NF—A+hA
—E—RERNAZFTBHE-_ZE—AFENATNAE
- N\F—A=-+HE-_ZE-_ZF—A+A1A
—E—+FRNA-t+BE-_ZE-_FTFATNH
—E-NF-AZt+REZE=-—F—A+hH

’ BRETEENRARAETEMEARL
BT B RAE G Tﬁiﬁﬂ‘kﬁﬂﬁz( BT L AR
ERRHREERIN BEEHHE

RBERAR RERNAFRE 2 EARHE
AAEIETRARITEBRERZBITER
#R 9N 8 17515,376,0008% F @A SR 1FRRIMNK
725,769,000/ 7T K A% 17 4 fE375,258,00078
TC(PFFREMEREFEERERMDEE
BR) e
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 7S B35 SR R M1 5

31. PERPETUAL CONVERTIBLE BONDS

The perpetual convertible bonds issued are as follows:

31 December 2018 —ZE—NF+=ZA=+—H

3. KAMABRKRES
BB KA R TRBRESDT

2018 2017

—E-N\F —E—+tF

HK$’000 HK$'000

THET FAET

Perpetual convertible bonds KA MR R (E 5 1,139,046 1,139,046
Earn-Out Perpetual Convertible Bonds BREEDKAMATBRKES

On 30 August 2013, the Company entered into the Deed with Victory Mind Assets
Limited and Dragon City Management (PTC) Limited to advance the timetable for
the possible issuance of earn-out perpetual convertible bonds in relation to the
acquisition of approximately 25.2% equity interest of Li Ning Co in December
2012 (note 15). The execution and performance of the Deed were approved in
the extraordinary general meeting of shareholders on 4 November 2013. The
earn-out perpetual convertible bonds with a fair value of HK$1,140,000,000
were issued in advance in November 2013 and were classified as equity and
the related derivative financial liabilities were derecognised at the same time,

the financial impact of which was based on the fair value of earn-out perpetual
convertible bonds upon the Deed becoming effective. As a result, the Group

has recorded a loss of HK$156,000,000 in 2013. Upon the completion of the
advanced issuance, the holder of the perpetual convertible bonds are subject to
certain undertakings based on the operating performance of Li Ning Co for the
financial periods between 2013 and 2017, under which a portion of perpetual
convertible bonds may have to be returned to the Company in the event that
certain performance targets of LN Group are not met. The fair value of the
derivative financial liability is based on whether any and how much undertaken
perpetual convertible bonds might be cancelled. Details of this transaction were
set out in the Company's circular dated 17 October 2013. The related transaction
costs amounting to approximately HK$954,000 have been offset against the
carrying amount of earn-out perpetual convertible bonds in 2013,

On 10 April 2017, the condition for releasing the undertakings has been met
and in accordance with the terms of the Deed, the Company has released all the
undertaken perpetual convertible bonds held by the Vendors with effect from 10
April 2017,

R-ZE—=FN\A=+8" K27 &Vitory
Mind Assets Limited 52 Dragon City Management (PTC)
Limited5] \Z 8245 - AHERIFER =T ——F +=
AKBEE RARIA2%REMIIEEITR
A BE 775k A M AT #R R (& 25 B0 B R R (B 5T
15) REBEZEIRBITR-_ZE—Z=F1+—
RAOBRITHRRERIARG EEBEHE-
A 1B A1,140,000,0005% 7T 2 B F BE 11 K A
MR BREFER T —=F+— ARAT%E
T rHEEAER RN HEMTETBKE
BERILER HVBEERENZEE
s Y B BE K AR E S 2 A B
AE-AL AEER T —=FHBEIE
156,000,000/ 7T e IR AT B 1T B A 18 * K A
MAIBMBRESFEEABTE THEGAHAR
(NZERARN_E—=F2_"F—+tFY
HHREz € BEXRBREE) B WEEL
EzaETRBEBEAREERK  AEHKAM
AR ESAIREARE TARA  PTEME
BEZATENIERBEEE AR RE DB &
K AN MRRE S I Re /AT SHMEE - &
HRXGZHBHERARRBHAT—=F
TATERBZBEAN - R_T—=F " 8#
R 5 B AN #9954,00078 7T 2 K 35 & F1lgE F1 ok
AR E R 2 BREE

R_T—tFHATH BEAREZGEHE
FRK  RARBER Z G5 AR R E R
BHENFA ZEAGRKAMAIBERES
B-E—tHFMAT+HEER

Annual Report 2018 3 177



178

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements §3 S B I5 SR R MIsE

31 December 2018 —ZE—N\&FE+=-A=+—H

32. RESERVES

() The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements therein for the
current and prior year are presented in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity.

(i) The share option reserve represents the fair value of share options vested
which are yet to be exercised, as further explained in the accounting policy of
share-based payments in note 2.3 to the financial statements. The amount will
either be transferred to the share premium account when the related share options
are exercised, or transferred to retained profits/accumulated losses should the
related share options lapse or be forfeited.

(i) Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations for wholly-owned enterprise, a
portion of the profits of the Group’s wholly-owned-subsidiary which is established
in the PRC has been transferred to reserve funds which are restricted as to use.

33. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENT

(@) As lessor

As at 31 December 2018, the Group leased certain portion of its investment
properties (note 13) and leased sports park facilities to independent third parties
under operating lease arrangements, with each lease negotiated for a term of 3 to
10 years.

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had total future minimum lease receivables
under non-cancellable operating leases with its tenants falling due as follows:

32. f##E
) AFERE-—FEAKEFHEZBEN
HABHNGaESEHRANES-

(i) FEAREREECSEBERITERRE
ZRVPE E—FHBERMBRRME2.3
Pt AR D BN 2 5T ERSR - B S BEHRN
BRABRRETERERERMBER X
RB AR RO WS ERERE G
R,/ REtEE-

(i) REBEZEFRALEZMABMERLER
REBERPBEKL 2 2 EWE AR B DM
BEBAXREBRHEEES -

33. BEMHORH

(a FEREAA
R-ZFE-N\F+-_A=1t—RH A5ERE
REMOLZHMBYE =T HHEREYE
(1) WETH D REEEFRE  FBME
ERERRAN=ZET5F-

RZZE—NE+_A=1+—HB XEERE
AP 2 N BEEE ML MR THIH
MBIz ARERRERSAZENT

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E2—+tF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FExT FAET

Within one year —F R 10,840 10,859
In the second to fifth years, inclusive F_EFERF (REEREME) 38,118 43,105
Over five years FEFE 19,828 27,018
68,786 80,982
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33. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENT (CONTINUED)

(b) As lessee

The Group leases certain of its office properties and sports park under operating
lease arrangements. Leases for properties are negotiated for initial terms ranging
from one and a half year to twenty years.

At 31 December 2018, the Group had total future minimum lease payments
under non-cancellable operating leases falling due as follows:

31 December 2018 —E—N\F+=-_A=+—H

33 REMOZH (#)

(b) EREBA
AEBEREKEHOLHEEESTHRAE
MELBER NEYEAREHRENT
—E¥E_TFZME

RZE—NE+_A=1+—"H8B XxEERE
A HSEEEHAOMNR A MRz B
ENREBEENRAENT :

2018 2017

—E-N\E —E—tF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FAET

Within one year —F QR 11,474 10,000
In the secand to fifth years, inclusive F_EFERF (BREEEMS) 22,782 15,967
Over five years AFE 77,053 79,747
111,309 105,714

34. COMMITMENTS FOR PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT/
CAPITAL EXPENDITURE

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had the following commitments for property

development and capital expenditure:

3. FHEME EAXRMIAE

RZE-NFE+_A=+—B rEEHF
VAT B5 3 2 ) 3% Ko B R B SR

2018 2017
—E-N\E —E—+tF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHER FHE T
Contracted, but not provided for: BT 4B KRB

Property development/construction work B EME 1EETR 32,522 29,800

Capital contribution/acquisition of joint ventures/ FE B AREE
associates R L/NE] 584,329 616,137
616,851 645,937
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31 December 2018 —E—N\F+=-_A=+—H

35. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES
(@) In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere in these financial
statements, the Group had the following material transactions with related parties

35. BEALTHE
(@) BRUEFHBHERREMIBOAFLZR
9 AEBFRNAERBBRES L EHE

in the ordinary course of business during the year: ATETUTERRS:
2018 2017
—E-NF —B—LF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B 7 FET FAT
Marketing service income received and Fir s Ko e Wi B = A B) 2
receivable from associates 5 E R WA ) 331,633 145,826
Cost of purchases paid and payable to an m— L AR BN K
associate FERTREHEE R (i) 3,374 407
Office and car-park rental expense paid and B R EN —E#t & Q[ 2
payable to an associate WAEREESHERAT (i) 2,164 1,453

(i) Marketing service income in relation to some sports event and competition
and the endorsement of brand products of LN Group managed by the Group
received and receivable from LN Group* and Double Happiness®, which was
charged in accordance with the terms negotiated between the related parties.

(i) Cost of purchases in relation to brand products of LN Group paid and
payable to LN Group®, which was charged in accordance with the terms
negotiated between the Group and LN Group.

(i) During the twelve months ended 31 December 2018, the Group leased
an office and certain car-parking spaces from LN Group®. The lease rates were
determined after arm’s length negotiations between the Group and LN Group with
reference to current prevailing market rate.

Mr. Li Ning and Mr. Li Qilin, the nephew of Mr. Li Ning, are common directors of the
Company and LN Group while Mr. Li Ning and Mr. Chan Ling are common directors of the
Company and Double Happiness.

VIVA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED J£ AL+ Bl £ IR G FR A 7]

) THERRFWAEAANEEEE
ZETREEBREBEERREFTEEEZA
MEmmEHR 2 REKBZEERAFE
SEMAEEWBMNERZER 258
RIZE BRI 77 1 2 RUER -

iy BNrRENFEERENZTESEMRRE
EmABEREER ZRARAKEEAFE
8 5 175 7€ A0 IR SR UER o

i) REBE_FT-NF+_A=t+—HIt
ToEA AEEERAFEEE 2 —HHBA
ENETEEM - WEEE IHAEEES
EEEZ2ZRTMBKFIERAFERRE
o

FEAERFHEBALE (FERENET)
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35. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)
(b) A subsidiary of our Group and LN Group established a joint venture for
developing sports coaching activities during the year of 2018.

(c) Outstanding balances with related parties

Details of the Group’s balances with related parties as included in revenue, other
income and other gains-net, trade debtors and bills receivable, prepayments,
deposits and other receivables and payable to a non-controlling interest are
disclosed in notes 5, 19, 23 and 26 to the financial statements.

Included in interests in associates was an amount of HK$5,522,000 (2017:
HK$5,522,000) due from an associate while included in interests in joint ventures
was an amount of HK$1,692,000 due from a joint venture as at 31 December
2017 while no such amount as at 31 December 2018. The amount due from

an associate is unsecured, interest-free, has no fixed terms of repayment but are
expected to be settled more than one year from the reporting date. Amount due
from a joint venture is unsecured, interest-free and expected to be settled within
one year from the reporting date.

(d) Compensation of key management personnel of the Group
Details of directors’ emoluments and highest paid individuals are included in notes
8 and 9 to the financial statements, respectively.

Apart from payable to a non-controlling interest (note 26), which amounted to a
continuing connected transaction but was fully exempted from the requirements
under chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules, all other related party transactions
set out in this note did not fall within the definition of “connected transaction” or
“continuing connected transaction” in Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules.

31 December 2018 —E—N\F+=-_A=+—H

35. FEATHE (80

(b) AEE-—MHMBRARAR_-_ZE-NFRF
EEEARRAKRILT —REEE &
RAERERBEEIEZE-

(c) BEALZRFAEE

AEBGF Ak EMi A RHE AU EF
B RBUMERRERESE EARE - Ee R
UGN IE LA I FE S FEAE AR i s 2 RSB A
THEBZFBETERRMIES 19 23K 26

JE U — R B 2 /A B) B9 FRIEB,522,00008 7T ( —
T —+F:552200087T) T EF AR EE &
AEIMEZ MER —BEEECENKIE
1,692,000 TR —_E—+EFE+-_A=+—
H —Z— ) \E+-A=+—HIRBE MK
HoEW—HEBERNRNRIBAERT &
EBEETEIAR BT HR®RE B H
B—FREE BUR—HEELENKES
mIEE 28 UHEABAREAHE—F

WNEE-

(d FAEEXEEBEAESZHMH
BREEMERERFALTZHE  DRIH
PRA T ¥R R M 78 K9 ©

SRERFERER S 2 BN IFEREERIA
(KEE26) BE 2 mMER 2 E TEM EM AR AIE
20 TR T ARTE SN - AP & P 8L P A L Atb BA B
F RS ABRGEM ET AR R ZE20F 8 T AT
EE(BEXZ | R HEBREXS] -
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31 December 2018 —ZE—N\&FE+=-A=+—H

36. BUSINESS COMBINATION

(@) Summary of acquisition

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group entered into a capital
contribution agreement to subscribe for 50% equity interest in 3E .12 B ( %k
H)BERIEBERABR AT ([IENERE]) for a consideration of
RMB30,000,000. The Group recognised it as “interests in joint ventures” in the
consolidated financial statement of financial position. On 1 June 2018, the Group
subscribed additional 20% equity interest in 3E JL 12 B for a consideration

of HK$14,575,200, which give the Group the control of 3E FL{= %, and 3F
JL 7% B became a subsidiary of the Group. The goodwill of HK$18,433,000
arose from a number of factors including expected synergies through capitalizing
Dr. Bob Chen's experience, recognition and acceptability in the aspect of

sports rehabilitation. The Group targets to set up “Dr. Chen Sports Training &
Rehabilitation Center” in Sports Parks, sports communities and major cities in the
PRC.

The following table summarises the purchase consideration for 3 ;.12 B and

36. K&t

(@) WBEE=EHE
Eé%%%é:ﬂ?—tiJr—ﬂ_wL HIEFE -
AEBFIFEWE - ARBIELEE (K
H)BEREERBERAR ([FEALEBE]) 2
50%M% # - K (B & A K #30,000,0007T ° A &
ERERRAGAEUBERARP [REED
FEoREFZ] B EA_;_/\ﬁ/\)EJ H -
N5 B LA (B14,575,2005 7T R B8 IF AL 1= B
2 FBIN0%AR B - < AN & B I IE L IE R -
ﬁakm?%ﬂ%&%ﬁsﬁx@zwgﬁﬂoﬁ%
18,433,000 LTy E TAIKIBEEL - BIEEBR
EXRERABRELTEBABERETA L
B CNZEARIMEEZBHBRIER-
AEBHENEER BEAMERFREE
WM AR [FRIG T BEEERE R °

TR BB BEREBURAEREE

the fair value of the amounts of the assets acquired and liabilities recognised at EXMEREENKEARH 2 A ATESR:
the acquisition date:
As at
01/06/2018
R=ZTB—N\EF
~HA—H
HK$'000
FAET
Total acquisition consideration HINENRE 51,013
Less: w
Cash and cash equivalents HENREEZEEY 11,168
Property, plant and equipment ER =N 3,603
Intangible assets mEEE 13,539
Inventories FE 1
Trade and other receivables JFE LA BR R e L At W SR TR 26,042
Trade payables B BR 3R (26)
Accruals and other payables FEET & R & H M FE < 3R IB (4,189)
Tax payables e BIIE (210)
Deferred tax liabilities REFIEGEE (3,385)
Add: hn:
Non-controlling interest FE 12 iR 7 2 13,963
Goodwill mE 18,433

The goodwill is attributable to the workforce and the high profitability of the
acquired business. It will not be deductible for tax purposes.

There were no business combination in the year ended 31 December 2017,

VIVA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED J£ AL+ Bl £ IR G FR A 7]
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36. BUSINESS COMBINATION (CONTINUED)

@) Acquired receivables

The fair value of trade and other receivables is HK$26,042,000 and includes
that of trade receivables of HK$329,000. The gross contractual amount for trade
receivables due is HK$90,000, of which nil is expected to be uncollected.

(b)  Revenue and profit contribution

The revenue and net loss included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income contributed by 3E 72 B since June 2018
was HK$5,612,000 and HK$3,242,000 respectively. If the Acquisition had
occurred on 1 January 2018, consolidated revenue and consolidated profit for
the year ended 31 December 2018 would have been HK$1,138,438,000 and
HK$71,000,000 respectively.

(¢c)  Non-controlling interest
The Group has chosen to recognise the non-controlling interest at the proportion
of net assets acquired shared by the non-controlling interests.

(@) Remeasurement on business combination achieved in stages

The fair value of the 50% equity interest in 3E L 12 B held by the Group
immediately before the acquisition date is HK$36,438,000 and the
remeasurement gain to the fair value of the abovementioned 50% equity interest
in 3F FL7& B was recognised in other income and gains — net amounted to
HK$1,764,000 in the statement of comprehensive income.

(b) Purchase consideration — cash outflow

31 December 2018 —E—N\F+=-_A=+—H

36. ¥8E56f @

@ AT B EY A
EREFREREMERRBZAFES
26,042,000/ 7T + & B 1E FE U BR 7¢329,000
78 7 © Bl 2 fE W BR 3 2 BR T 42 {8 /590,000
JC B I EFEHAN A U [B] 6 &E o

) ez R FIE B
ENEBE T \FNANURFTERZK
mRERFE (RGaEakEt2EKE
x5 ER) D Bl A5,612,0005 7T K&.3,242,000
oMW EEER _E—-—N\FE—H—H
BRE - HE_FT—N\F+_A=+—H
EFEZHRAUEREEZMNED R A
1,138,438,0007% 7T & 71,000,0007% 7T °

0 HERES
7 o IR 1B 1% 3 4 PR 25 1 P MO S B
2 b )RR R IE R B 4 25 -

@ DEEBEFGTEETH S EBE G
N6 B B B2 U BE B R AT P4 IE L EE BE50%
A% ¥ 2 A F & £36,438,0005%8 JT » i £ it 3F
REBS0%REZ A FEZEFTERER
PHKRERFERSEMKA RS FE
1,764,000/ 7T °

() BERE-BLRH

2018
—B-N\%
HK$’000
FET
QOutflow of cash to acquire subsidiary, net of cash acquired WEHB AR ZESRE
MR EIR &
Cash consideration HENRE 14,575
Less: Balances acquired B PTU R 4E BR (11,168)
Net outflow of cash — investing activities ReERLFHE-—IKEETH 3,407

Acquisition-related costs

Acquisition-related costs of HK$321,300.70 that were not directly attributable to
the issue of shares are included in administrative and other operating expenses in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income and
in operating cash flows in the consolidated statement of cash flow.

R E 16 A
WIHBTHROEERE ZRERBERR
321300708 TR A EE M E M E R+
JIBTRREMEERAS  YREEHRER
EXRFISRERERE -
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31 December 2018 —E—N\F+=-_A=+—H

37. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES
The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries at 31 December 2018:

Company name

AREH

Viva China Holdings Ltd (‘VCHL")

Winner Rich Investment Limited

KHEREBRAR
Viva China Sports Holding Limited

FAREREERERAF

Viva China Community Development Holdings Limited

FAPEHEREERER LA

Viva China Community Development (Yangzhou) Holdings Limited

FAREHEFREE (BN ERERAF

Viva China Yangzhou Community Development Holdings Limited

FERREGM R ERER DA

BMNEAEHERZERAF

RYTELEE LEXERER DA

BMERABELERRA

BTELBEERERAR

BEREUBEXCAERAR

KEREENRAEEARAR

FAERBRERR (LR)BRATF

Place of
incorporation/
registration and
operations
FMARYL/
R EEE

BUI
RERZES

Hong Kong
B

Hong Kong
&t

BVI
AERAES
BVI
KBRS

Hong Kong
B

PRC
e

PRC

e
PRC

FE
PRC

FE
PRC

e
PRC

alei

PRC

Issued ordinary
shares/capital
28T
EBR/BRE

US$1
1ET

HK$1

BT
HK$520,000
520,000 7T

US$1
X7

US$20
0%

HK$10,000
10,0007 7T

RMB210,000,000
AE#210,000,0007T

RMB500,000

AE#500,0007
RMB300,000

AR #300,00070
RMB1,000,000

AR #1,000,0007T
RMB1,000,000

A& #1,000,0007T
RMB100,000,000

AR #100,000,0007T

RMB102,100,000
(note i)

ARH102,100,0007E
(FaEi)
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37. WBLARFHE

“E-\Ft_A=t—HXEMBRFF

BIRIAT

Percentage of equity
attributable to the Company

AAREEREE DL

Direct Indirect
HE B
100% -
100% -
100% -
100% -
- 70%

- 70%

- 70%

- 70%

- 70%

- 70%

- 70%

- 100%

- 100%

Principal activities

FEER

Investment holding

REBER

Investment holding

RAEER

Investment holding and sports
talent management

REZBRBEASER

Investment holding
REER

Investment holding

RAER

Investment holding

RAZKR

Property development
B B

Sports event organisation and
operation
BERIMABKEE

Sports park management and
operation
EEREERLE

Sports park management and
operation
EEREERLE

Sports park management and
operation
EEREERLE

Project investment and property
development consultancy
Services

BERAEREHERE
# AR

Sports talent management,
competition and event
production and management,
and sports-related marketing
and consultancy service

BEATER BFR
BHEEREER
BRAAEM SRR
# AR
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37. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

Company name

DEEH

EHARARREEXEER AR

ERFNEBEHERAGR

KEREEEREES AR

GKERERERESERAT

HKEEEREESERAA

HKERZHEARREE UL EXRE
REEEHL (BRAH)

KEBFNREREERERAA

BKEREFNEEREERERLA

FARE (B EAR

Notes:

() The registered capital of JE LB EE B

RMB150,000,000.

HBERERAF

Place of
incorporation/
registration and
operations
FERKL
R E X

PRC

HE
PRC

HE
PRC

HE
PRC

HE
PRC

HE

PRC
FE

PRC

HE

PRC

HE

Issued ordinary
shares/capital
BT
EER/BA

RMB100,000,000

AR 100,000,000
RMB25,000,000

AR #25,000,0007T
RMB150,000,000

AR #150,000,0007T
RMB38,000,000

AR #38,000,0007T
RMB125,000,000

AR 125,000,000

RMB12,000,000
AR 12,000,000

RMB3,500,000

(note i)

AR #3,500,0007C
(PN

RMB2,000,000

AR #2,000,0007

BZR(ER)BRAA I

(i) The registered capital of BB BEIELESREBTEFR A Al is

RMB5,000,000.

Apart from ZR /8 = I FL G2 R 52

XALEXBERETER L

(BBRA %) being registered as limited partnership, all the other principal
subsidiaries of the Company are registered as limited liability companies.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the opinion of
the Directors, principally affected the results for the year or formed a substantial
portion of the net assets of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would,
in the opinion of the Directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

31 December 2018 —E—N\F+=-_A=+—H

37. MBS (@)

Percentage of equity
attributable to the Company Principal activities
ARFEEREBD I

Direct Indirect

HiE &
= 100% Properties holding and leasing of
investment properties

RENEREERENSR

Provision of development
consultancy services

REFEDARYE

Marketing and sales of
construction materials

Bz EREE

Marketing and sales of
construction materials

Bz REREE

Investment holding

TEEK

= 100%

= 100%

= 100%

= 100%
REER

Investment holding

RA R

Investment holding

= 100%

= 100%

RA R

- 70% Provision of scientific physical
rehabilitation training and
health management services

REBIZEERENRK
BEEERE

B

() JFENEHBEEE (UR)ARAAZFM
&R & AR #150,000,0007T °

iy HEEBIEAEEREEEERARNZE
fit & & & A R #5,000,0007T °

B IRS I AR B UL E X BRIR A
BT (ARAR)EMAERABI i
EARRZEMESHERATNTEMRAER
AR

EXRFIARBZMBLAR EERR &
EMBARAREIBEHFAREERTEX
ARAEBEEFECIRHD EZRA
HIEMMEAR cENEERREER
EO

Fq:

F']
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38. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND RESERVE 38. ARBIZHMBMRARRBAEES
MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY
2018 2017
—E-N\F “E-tF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
Bk TERT FAEL
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FREBEE
Property, plant and equipment Mm% BER& 147 161
Investments in subsidiaries REB AR ZKE 3,852,126 3,895,182
Deposits Be 1,939 1,759
Total non-current assets ERBHEERE 3,854,212 3,807,102
CURRENT ASSETS TBEE
Due from subsidiaries NG 503,701 533,675
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables BARE - e REBERZE 47,035 46,900
Cash and bank balances RBeRRTER 15,888 27,636
Total current assefs REBERE 566,624 608,211
CURRENT LIABILITIES haaE
Due to subsidiaries NG 35,679 37,506
Other payables and accruals Hibfe 508 kgt B R 6,431 7,882
Total current liabilities TEAEARE 42,110 45,388
NET CURRENT ASSETS TBEEFE 524,514 562,823
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES EEABERRDAE 4,378,726 4,459,925
NON-CURRENT LIABILITY kRBEE
Convertible notes TRBRERE 26 819,602 750,605
Total non-current liabllity FrREaELa 819,602 750,605
NET ASSETS BEEE 3,559,124 3,709,320
EQUITY Bz
lssued capital BRITRA 28 442,396 440,437
Perpetual convertible bonds KA R R E S 30 1,139,046 1,139,046
Reserves E (a) 1,977,682 2,129,837
TOTAL EQUITY B 3,559,124 3,709,320

The Statement of financial position of the Company was approved by the board of ~ AR B ZHBERARER T —HLFE=A
directors on 22 March 2019. T+ HEZESZTZR

486  VIVA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED 3 R, o B 32 ik 45 PR 2 =
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38. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND RESERVE 38. ERAZHMBMRAKRBEEES
MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY (CONTINUED) (&)
Note: B 5T -
(@  Reserve movement of the Company @ ARRZHEEY
Share Share Convertible
premium option notes equity  Accumulated
account reserve reserve losses Total
ARREE
RO EER BRERE BafE i ER @
Note HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
i aE THT THT THT FAT FTHT
At 1 January 2017 R-_E—+F—H—H 4.145,239 91,849 90,392 (2,114,712) 2,212,768
Loss for the year and total comprehensive loss FREBERERFR
for the year 2EFRLEE - - - (155,918) (155,918)
Shares issued upon exercise of share option BRERTERET RN 27,287 (6,944) = = 20,343
Equity-settled share option arrangements AR E 2 BT - 52,644 = = 52,644
Transfer of share option reserve upon the PR R R 408 Wk 3 i B
forfeiture or expiry of share options ERERERE - (18,814) = 18,814 -
At 31 December 2017 and 1 January 2018 RZT—+F
+ZA=+—-HBk
RZZE—-N\E—HF—H 4,172,526 118,735 90,392 (2,251,816) 2,129,837
Loss for the year and total comprenensive loss FRNEERER
for the year 2HEHEBERE - - - (184,7117) (184,7117)
Shares Issued upon exercise of share option BREETERZETZRR 26,526 (7,112) - - 19,414
Equity-settied share option arrangements MR 5 7 B AR A 2 o - 13,599 = (451) 13,148
Transfer of share option reserve upon the PARE R B8 W ok U
forfeiture or expiry of share options BRBERERE - (22,212) - 22,212 -
At 31 December 2018 RZB-N\f
+=B=+-H 4,199,052 103,010 90,392 (2,414,772) 1,977,682
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39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES
The Group is exposed to financial risks through its use of financial instruments in
its ordinary course of operations and in its investment activities. The Group does
not have written risk management policies and guidelines. However, the board of
directors of the Company meets periodically to analyse and formulate measures
to manage the Group's exposure to market risk (including foreign currency risk,
interest risk and other price risk), liquidity risk and credit risk. Generally, the Group
employs a conservative strategy regarding its risk management. As the Group’s
exposure to market risk (including foreign currency risk, interest risk and other
price risk), liquidity risk and credit risk are kept at a minimum level, the Group has
not used any derivatives or other instruments for hedging purposes. The Group
does not hold or issue derivative financial instruments for trading purposes. The
most significant financial risks to which the Group is exposed are discussed below.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk relates to the risk that the fair value or cash flows of a financial
instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The Group
has interest-bearing assets and liabilities in relation to cash at banks and bank
loans and convertible notes, details of which are disclosed in notes 21, 25 and
27, respectively, to the financial statements. The Group’s income and operating
cash flows are substantially independent of changes in market interest rates. The
Group has not used any financial instrument to hedge potential fluctuations in
interest rates. The exposure to interest rates risk for the Group’s cash at banks,
bank and other loans and convertible notes are considered minimal.

Foreign currency risk

Currency risk refers to the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial
instrument (excluding investment in associates) will fluctuate because of changes
in foreign exchange rates. The Group operates in Hong Kong and the PRC.

Most of the sales and trading transactions are settled in RMB. Deposits invested
into various bank deposits are denominated in RMB, HK$ and US$. As at the
end of the reporting period, foreign currencies were translated into HK$ at the
closing rate. As at 31 December 2018, cash and bank balances denominated

in RMB and domiciled outside the PRC amounted to HK$71,705,000 (2017:
HK$860,000), cash and bank balances denominated in US$ amounted

to HK$17,000 (2017: HK$31,476,000) and the remaining balance of
HK$308,932,000 (2017: HK$488,676,000) was mainly denominated in HK$
and domiciled outside the PRC or denominated in RMB and domiciled in the
PRC. The Group does not expect that there will be any significant currency risk
associated with the cash and bank balances denominated in US$ given that HK$
is pegged to the US$. The policies to manage foreign currency risk have been
followed by the Group since prior years and are considered to be effective.
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ZHMBTRAAZPBER AEEYEER
HIEA“IEBZﬁ&Ta%I A ARAEFS
EHRTEH IMAHFTHEBEAEERNE
BAXzmi5ER (6 %E?\\?ﬁ%ﬂ * N =
aMEBERRR) RBEARNMEE

ﬂ|3=°°—z‘}xﬁﬁ ZIKE@%F%%EH R e

KEg-ARNAEEBAZ 2T SRR (B
BRER N EEREEEMERER) R
B R RSB R R MEKF - AR

5K 5 25 PR ] 67 2 55 2L fth T BL LA ¥ PR
o AR B A A BT 0TS T A
X5k AEEFES Y BEANBEAR
R S -

R = = b
MERBRIEMBIAZATENFRRE
SREMSMNEEHMER RS 2 ARERH -
rEBEFEREERBRE PRR|ITBEE
RITERRAIRBRER - AEFIED IR
BRMEM 2 25 RTEB-AEE Z WA
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UARBABELIGERRFREIINZEE R
RITHEH AT 7050008 T (ZEE—+4F:
860,000 ) * METLFHEMNIR S RIRITE
# £17,0007%8 7T ( = F — £ F : 31,476,000/
7T) * M EA%E308,932,0008 T (ZE—+ &
488,676,0007% 70 ) Bll = B LA JTEHE W 77 B
AR B3R S ek A A R SHE N 77 AU R B3R
e MRB THEETLHEN A AEBE B
BrgHREMEUETTENRS RIEIT
EHREENEREERR AEERNBEHK
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39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below have been determined based on the exposure to

foreign currency risk at year end date.

If RMB appreciates/depreciates against HK$ by 5%, the results, and equity of the
Group would be increased/decreased by approximately HK$3,585,000 (2017:
HK$43,000).

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that the counterparty to a financial instrument would
fail to discharge its obligations under the terms of the financial instrument and
cause a financial loss to the Group. The Group’s exposure to credit risk mainly
arises from granting credit to customers in the ordinary course of its operations.
The carrying amounts of trade debtors and bills receivable, deposits and other
receivable carried at amortised cost and cash and cash equivalents included in
the face of the statements of financial position represent the Group’s maximum
exposure to credit risk in relation to its financial assets.

The Group generally has established long-term and stable relationships with

its customers. The Group has policies in place to ensure that sales of products
are made to customers with an appropriate credit history. The Group generally
allows credit period of one month extending up to six months to its major trade
customers. The Group has no other significant concentration of credit risk in
respect of its debtors and hills receivable. The Group maintains its cash and
cash equivalents with reputable banks in Hong Kong and the PRC, therefore
the directors consider that the credit risk for such is minimal. The credit and
investment policies have been followed by the Group since prior years and are
considered to have been effective in limiting the Group’s exposure to credit risk to
a desirable level.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group applies the expected credit loss model to financial assets measured at
cost, including trade debtors and bill receivable, deposits and other receivables
and cash and cash equivalent.

Impairment on trade debtors and bill receivables, and deposit and other
receivables is measured as either 12-month expected credit losses or lifetime
expected credit losses, depending on whether there has been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition. To assess whether there is a
significant increase in credit risk, the Group compares the risk of default occurring
on the asset as at the reporting date with the risk of default as at the date of initial
recognition by considering available, reasonable and supportive forwarding-looking
information.

31 December 2018 —ZE—NF+=ZA=+—H

39 BBEREEREREE (&)

BRED
THBRBREDMERIERFLH B AZ 2INE
[\ B B TE

MARE S BEAE2E% AAEEE
4B RS S N, A #93,585,00008 T (—
T — 5 43,0008 7T) ©

FERR
EERREMBTAZRXZH T REREN
BITAZGRBETERER SAKRERIHY
BREAzZER AEEAXZEERREE
KERAEXEHEETRATERTZER-
FEURR A S R R - IR SN RT B 2 17
EhEMBURFIBEARRE MRS EEN 2
REEFAPBIRREK KRN EERER
BEEAZ ZEREERR -

AEEZTRCEEFPFERYRABE CHRER
AEEEHEBORABRRAAE RIFEELEE
LEFPHEEM - ASE—RAEFERSH
EREFRHEZEEHNTIEAZEATE-
REEWAFEBURERKEREBEATH
HEREFEERR AEEKERE KE
CEBYMHEREELTREEERT 2RIT-
WESRAEHREERRBEM AEER
BEHRF-—HETEEREBRE TRAL
BASERHE 2 EERRBREIRIEZES AW
BEHIKF o

BB EERE
AEEREKAFECHBEE (BIEE
WRR N B W R - 1R N A fth 8 Y RIR A
LR RREEFEBY) KRABEREEEHRE
= o

JE U FR TR e FE W R I A R 2 o L At B KUK
AZRERIEABREEE R HEY
EEFIRFE RTEERRB MHEERINA
KECBEEZREM - RAEEERRELRE
B AREERERASARERR R
EHEER BREBHEERL RN AR
HEEHERAERELERO AR ER-

Annual Report 2018 3 189



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements §3 S B I5 SR R MIsE

31 December 2018 —E—N\F+=-_A=+—H

39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Trade debtors and bill receivables, and deposit and other receivables are written

off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovery. Indicators that there

is no reasonable expectation of recovery include, amongst others, significant

financial difficulties of the debtor, probability that the debtor will enter bankruptcy

or financial reorganisation, default or delinquency in payments, and the failure of a

debtor to engage in a repayment plan with the Group.

While cash and cash equivalents are also subject to the impairment requirements
of HKFRS 9, no impairment loss was identified.

Trade debtors and bill receivables
To measure the expected credit losses, trade debtors and bill receivables has
been grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics and the days past due.

39. BIEAREEEEREE (&)

FE U BR R N PR MR SR 48 A [ 3 & % L At R MUK
AR A I A H A W O S T LAMSH - 532 TR
HEZWOSRIBZ R BE (AR EE)E
BABAERY BRI - B AR REE AW
EXMBEMR EHIERNARLEB AR
BE B R £R B 5T S8 SRAET &

HARE MRS EEBY NI BB B REE
AR5 RBE A E MO AR - (B30 #3851 B {E
o] Bl {EL /B9 18

FEW R R ERRE

R ERMEEER BUERFRMEKRREE
EREXBENEERRSBEIRAHRES
8 o

Less than
3 months 3 to 6 months More than
Current past due past due 6 months Total
BEHR a1
B =fiA ZEXER BEBRENER &it
31 December 2018 “Z-NF+-A=1+-A
Expected loss rate BHEBEX = 3% 15% 25%
Gross carrying amount BEHEE 349,183 17,989 936 16,656 384,764
Loss allowance BERE - (89) (136) (4,224) (4,449)
349,183 17,900 800 12,432 380,315

The movement of loss allowances for trade debtors and bill receivables during the
year is as follows:

Py MRS RN E R BREERE
R

2018 2017

=E-N\F ZE—tF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FERT FAT

As at 1 January R—H—H 4,038 =
Impairment loss recognised BRI EEE 558 4,038
Currency translation difference bE 5 =5 (147) =
As at 31 December Rt+-—A=+—H 4,449 4,038
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39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Deposits and other receivables

For deposits and other receivables relating to accounts that are long overdue with

significant amounts, known insolvencies or non-response to collection activities,

they are assessed individually for impairment allowance. The Group recognised the

provision for expected credit losses by assessing the credit risk characteristics of

debtor, discount rate and the likelihood of recovery and considering the prevailing

economic conditions.

The movement of loss allowances for deposits and other receivables during the
year is as follows:

31 December 2018 —E—N\F+=-_A=+—H

39 BBEREEREREE (&)

ReRHEMERRER
HEBRABHEAXEHNENEELTEE
WRIRSHRF AR 2 E S K E R UFRIR
S8R AR ER M - AR BB B S EK
BRRZEERRSE IR E RIKRERIA 2
AIBEME - W RIRE BN - RBAEE
EEiERE-

FR e hEMEEFRZEREGRES
LN

2018 2017

—E-N\F —E—+tF

HK$’000 HK$'000

THET FAET

As at 1 January n—H—H 7,206 7,206
Impairment loss recognised EERREEE 17,180 -
Currency translation difference M ZRR (372) =
As at 31 December R+=—A=+—H 24,014 7,206

Previous accounting policy for impairment of financial asset

In the prior year, the impairment of financial assets was assessed based on the
incurred loss model. The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial
assets is impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired and
impairment losses are incurred only if there is objective evidence of impairment
as a result of one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of

the asset (an “loss event”) and that loss event (or events) has an impact on the
estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or the group of financial assets
that can be reliably estimated.

Evidence of impairment may include indications that a debtor or a group of
debtors is experiencing significant financial difficulty, default or delinquency in
interest or principal payments, the probability that they will enter bankruptcy
or other financial reorganisation, where observable data indicate that there is
a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such as changes in
arrears or economic conditions that correlate with defaults.

MR EEREZBESHEE
RBEFE MBEEREDNRECELS
BRAETHG - AEERSREBEER
At RRARBRER TN - RMBEEESR—
MV BEELNRBE - RAEATEEERBAT
RS ERZEEREE—HXZEASEN
(TBE=M])EHHBARE MRBBESE
HF(HZEFEMH)HZAAZERBEEZ
BETRRIR IR 8 P Ak &2 B B S P S fih
FHZBERAT  RERRATEEERS WA
YERE R ELRERRE -

BMERBEATEE -2 —AEBEKALHE
BERMREE BHORBRIERAE Z
R BEEARNERETEMMEEAR
Hh AR BRBEBR TG ARREZRED
BBERLD  GIRRBBEEEHRHRER
HIMERE 2 B AR
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39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Assets carried at amortised cost
For loans and receivables category, the amount of the loss is measured as the
difference between the asset's carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have not been incurred)
discounted at the financial asset's original effective interest rate. The carrying
amount of the asset is reduced and the amount of the loss is recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss. If a loan or held-to-maturity investment
has a variable interest rate, the discount rate for measuring any impairment loss
is the current effective interest rate determined under the contract. As a practical
expedient, the Group may measure impairment on the basis of an instrument'’s fair
value using an observable market price.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the
decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment
was recognised (such as an improvement in the debtor’s credit rating), the
reversal of the previously recognised impairment loss is recognised in the
consolidated profit or loss.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk relates to the risk that the Group will not be able to meet its
obligations associated with its financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash
or another financial asset. The Group is exposed to liquidity risk in respect of
settlement of trade payables, other payables and accruals, bank and other loans,
convertible notes and payable to a non-controlling interest, also in respect of its
cash flow management.

The Group’s objective is to maintain an appropriate level of liquid assets and
committed lines of funding to meet its liquidity requirements in the short and
longer term. The Group manages its liquidity needs on a consolidated basis by
carefully monitoring scheduled debt servicing payments for long-term financial
liabilities as well as forecast cash inflows and outflows due in day to day business.
Liquidity needs are monitored in various time bands, on a day to day and week
to week basis, as well as on the basis of a rolling 3 months projection. Long-
term liquidity needs for a 180-day and 365-day lookout period are identified
monthly. Net cash requirements are compared to available funds in order to
determine headroom or any shortfalls. This analysis shows if available funds are
expected to be sufficient over the lookout period. The Group maintains cash

and short-term bank deposits to meet its liquidity requirements for 30 days at a
minimum. Funding for longer term liquidity needs is additionally secured by an
adequate amount of borrowings and the ability to sell longer term financial assets.
The Group’s liquidity is mainly dependent upon the cash received from its trade
customers.
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39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

The directors of the Company are satisfied that the Group will be able to meet

in full its financial obligations as and when they fall due in the foreseeable future.

The liquidity policies have been followed by the Group since prior years and are

considered to have been effective in managing liquidity risks.

Apart from the non-current bank loan and the non-current convertible notes
disclosed in notes 25 and 27 respectively for the financial statements, the
maturity profile of the Group’s major financial liabilities as at the end of the
reporting period, based on the contractual undiscounted payments, is within one
year or on demand and the contractual undiscounted payments approximate to
their carrying amounts.

The Group considers expected cash flows from financial assets in assessing and
managing liquidity risk, in particular, its cash resources and other liquid assets that
readily generate cash. The Group's existing cash resources and other liquid assets
significantly exceed the cash outflow requirements.

The following table shows the remaining contractual maturities at the end of the
year, which are based on contractual undiscounted cash flows (including interest
payments computed using contractual rate) and the earliest date the Group can be
required to pay:

31 December 2018 —E—N\F+=-_A=+—H

39 BBEREEREREE (&)

ARAREZERN AEERAIEBEENAE
ARz BAB - ARERNBERF
—EATRPETHR YR RLFHRA
BRERRBETRAR -

B 10 B 75 SR 2% B £ 25 K2 27 90 Bl 4% B 2 FF BN H]
RITERRIERNE AT AL R BN - N3 E B
RARBAEHARBRFIAS D 2 ANEB 2B
PHBAGIHRBERAR —FARKRERER
MmAa#ARBRFIAREREERS

AEERFHLREEREDE TR REZE R
BUMBEECARERE KHERAEE
BREAHRELRS CEMRBDEE KN &E
ERARGERREMADEEANRBLH

TRINTERENREGHRURBSRE (B
RERAGANEHEZFNENR) 2FthE
AHHARAEEAHERERC HZFER
=10

2018
—E-N\%
More than 1 year  More than 2 years
but less than but less than Garrying amount
Within 1 year 2 years 5 years Total  at 31 December
W+=A
Bb-F BAWME Er=f
-ER BLREAE BOREE @ ZREE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TER TER TER
Derivative financial assets fTERKEE
Forward share purchase contract RHREEEAR 22,780 - - 22,780 22,780
Non-derivative financial liabilities FEHBAR
Convertble notes (iability componen) TRREE (BEH) 38,900 38,900 1,125,682 1,203,482 819,602
Bank and other loans BIIREMER 40,023 - - 40,023 40,023
Derivative financial liabilities fERKEE
Options Hig - 21 - 2112 2112
2017
—E4 &
More than 1 year ~ More than 2 years
but less than but less than Carrying amount
Within 1 year 2 years 5 years Total at 31 December
BA—F BBME =+-H
—£R BARmE BOREE FoH) LEEE
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAER TAT TET TET TET
Derivative financial assets fTERKEE
Options iz = - 2,255 2,255 2,255
Non-derivative financial liabilities FTERBEE
Convertible notes (liabiity component) THREE (BEHS) 38,900 38,900 1,164,582 1,242,382 750,605
Bank and other loans BIREMER 1552 41,034 - 42,586 37,535
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31 December 2018 —E—N\F+=-_A=+—H

39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Fair value risk and disclosures
At 31 December 2018 and 2017, the Group held certain derivative financial
instruments which are carried in the financial statements at fair value, as further
detailed in notes 13, 16 and 31 to the financial statements. In respect of the
derivative financial instruments, their fair values were measured based on a
valuation technique for which any inputs which have a significant effect on the
recorded fair value are based on significant unobservable data (the “Level 3 fair
value hierarchy”). During the year ended 31 December 2018, there were no
transfers among the levels (2017: Nil).

In respect of the Group’s financial assets and liabilities as at 31 December 2018
and 2017 which are carried in the financial statements at other than fair value,

in the opinion of the directors of the Company, the carrying amounts of these
financial assets and liabilities are reasonable approximation of their respective fair
values as these financial instruments are due to be received or settled within one
year. Accordingly, no disclosure of the fair values of these financial instruments is
made.

Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management are to safeguard the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern and to maintain healthy capital
ratios in order to support its business and maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its capital structure to
ensure optimal structure and shareholder returns, taking into consideration

the future capital requirements of the Group, prevailing and projected capital
expenditure, projected strategic investment opportunities and economic conditions.

To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend
payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. The
Group is not subject to any externally imposed capital requirements. No changes
were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the
years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017.

The Group regards total equity attributable to the shareholders of the Company
presented on the face of the consolidated statement of financial position

as capital, for capital management purposes. The amount of capital (total

equity plus total debt) as at 31 December 2018 amounted to approximately
HK$4,794,087,000 (2017: HK$4,826,625,000), which the management
considers as optimal having considered the projected capital expenditures and the
forecast strategic investment opportunities.

40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

Other than derivative financial instruments being classified as financial asset/
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss as disclosed in notes 16 and 31 to
the financial statements, all financial assets and liabilities previously measured
at amortised cost which meet the conditions for classification at amortised cost
under HKFRS 9, respectively.

VIVA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED J£ AL+ Bl £ IR G FR A 7]
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EERBEMS ARREERE ZFH
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Particulars of Investment Properties

REMERZFH1F

y \
4 | 4
31 December 2018 —E—N\F+=ZA=+—H
Attributable Interest
Location Use Tenure of the Group
NE A HE rEBREGER
Land Lot No. 61, For generating rental income Medium term 100%
No. 22 Kaifa Road, and/or capital appreciation
Shenyang Economic and
Technology Development Zone,
Shenyang, Liaoning Province, the PRC
hEEELESGT FA 2R R ER AH & A 5 100%
B B R T BA 2% [= X,/ A RIEE
A 3% K 225561 55 1 1R
Building No. A-2, For generating rental income and/or ~ Medium term 100%
Phase 1 of Zhongjian capital appreciation
Zhilifang, No. 728
Lanzhou Road,
Hefei, Anhui Province, PRC
hEZHEGET FA 2R R ERAH & A 5 100%
B N B& 72857 R,/ A RIEE

BT —HA-218
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Particulars of Stock of Properties
MRGFEZHIF

‘

4

Approximate Site

Location Group’s Interest Tenure Area (sq.m.)
BEA (b b T 7S

NE rEERER FHH (FFHK)

Guangling Xincheng, Yangzhou, 70% Medium to long term 23,334

Jiangsu Province of the PRC,

northwest to the intersection of

Binshui Road and Jianmin Road

BT R A 70% PEHERH 23,334

1 M T B T 4

BKEE REERERZ X AR

VIVA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED J£ AL+ Bl £ IR G FR A 7]



w- 3 Five-Year Financial Summary
X% REREHE

r Y ' ’
A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities and total equity of the ATHIAEBBERAEVMBFEEZEER
Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from the published audited EEHBEREZAEME IR LS
financial statements of the Group, is set out below: BB EEZTIERE
RESULTS E4 |
Year ended 31 December
BE+-A=1+-HLEE
2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
ZE-N\E ZZ-t& ZZE-RE ZZ-1f Z—ZT-MOE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THER TAEL TAET FTAEL AL
REVENUE g 1,134,584 612,467 552,208 147,355 111,418
PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAX BEATRF, (B1B) 94,723 (108,863) 112,163 (182,551) (463,045)
PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR ATTRIBUTABLE AR RlBEZ A A
TO EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY EIEFEREF/ (BR) 76,982 (109,666) 103,630 (179,657)  (462,176)
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEHAE
31 December
+ZRA=+-H
2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
ZE-N\FE ZE-tf ZE-RE ZE-1F CZE-MOF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET TAEL TAET TET TET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERBEE 3,867,676 3,793,409 3,525,815 3,536,271 2,990,300
CURRENT ASSETS REEE 1,193,328 1,351,961 1,580,745 781,546 1,022,887
CURRENT LIABILITIES mEAE 290,979 296,774 635,634 320,727 140,158
NET CURRENT ASSETS MEEEFE 902,349 1,055,187 945,111 460,819 882,729
TOTAL ASSETS BERE 5,061,004 5,145,370 5,106,560 4,317,817 4,013,187
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES ~ BEAERZEBAR 4,770,025 4848596 4470926 3,997,000 3,873,029
EQUITY ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY HOLDERS KA RIHEZ A A
OF THE COMPANY e 3,891,137 4,003,132 3,718,317 3,741,854 3,873,034
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EAFHRN BXEZBEAEIN TIH
REAB NX#EI 2 HE

In this annual report, unless the context requires otherwise, the following
expressions shall have the following meanings:

198

‘Board”

[E=g]

BV’
[(RBREZEHS]

“China” or "PRC”

[FE

"

“close associate(s)

[EREE A
“Company” or “Viva China”

[ARAR] S SR AH B

"

“connected transaction(s)
[BEER 5 ]

“Directors”

2%

“Double Happiness”

4L E |

“Double Happiness Group”
[MTEE£E

“Dragon City”
[ Dragon City |

“Feyenoord”
[BH =

‘GEM”
[ GEM |

“GEM Listing Rules”
[GEM ET#% Al |

“Group”
[REE ]

the board of Directors

E=g

the British Virgin Islands
REBRELES

the People’s Republic of China which, for the purpose of this annual report, excludes Hong
Kong, the Macau Special Administrative Region of the People’s Republic of China and Taiwan
mEAREME  IAFHRM s TREES - P EARLMNEDRMF R
TR R A8

has the meaning ascribed thereto under the GEM Listing Rules

75 GEM_L i1 A8 B AT R T 69 48 TR B 3%

Viva China Holdings Limited, a company incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited
liability, the issued Shares of which are listed on the GEM (stock code: 8032)
FENFEZERERAR RASHEIMKZIZBERAR  HE&TRMH
PAGEM L7 (B2 (X 5% : 8032)

has the meaning ascribed to it in the GEM Listing Rules

H B GEM_E T A5 B A i T 0 &

the directors of the Company

RRABEF

Shanghai Double Happiness Co., Ltd
FRIEERMNBERAR]

Shanghai Double Happiness Co., Ltd and its subsidiaries
LBAEERNERARREMB AR

Dragon City Management (PTC) Limited, a company incorporated in BVI
Dragon City Management (PTC) Limited » 74 3 B jE X BE & ix X 32 2 A A

Feyenoord Rotterdam
EBH = e BT

GEM of the Stock Exchange
Bt 22 Ffr GEM

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on GEM
GEMRE 7 £ #7 Al

the Company and its subsidiaries
PN/ SR U N
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“HKS" Hong Kong dollars, the lawful currency of the Hong Kong

[ 7T] B B BRBAEEH

“HKICPA” The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants

[BEEgFMAE B BEGTAE

"HKFRSs" Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards which include all Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards and Interpretations

(BB BHREEL] 2 DBEMEHREER (BEMESEMBEREER FEEGTEKEE)

“Hong Kong" the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC

[&E] B AEBEFIITHRR

“Huarong Real Estate” Huarong Real Estate Co., Ltd.*, a limited liability company established in the PRC, the real
estate business platform of China Huarong Asset\l\/lanagement Co., Ltd

E== ¥ EREXARECQAF —HRPBEKYNERAR RTEEREEE
BROBRAFNEMERE S

“Jump 360" Jump 360 Holdings Ltd

[ Jump 360 B BEEHERERAF

“Lead Ahead” Lead Ahead Limited, a company incorporated in the BVI

[Lead Ahead ¥ Lead Ahead Limited - REEBR XS FMA L2 A A

“Li Ning Co” Li Ning Company Limited, a company incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability,
the issued LN Shares of which are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock
code: 2331) \

==/NCl B FEERAG RASHSFMKLZARAR  HEBHTFERMD N

RETEMR (AR5 557 - 2331)

)

‘LN Convertible Securities’ the convertible securities offered by Li Ning Co to the qualifying shareholders of Li Ning Co,
in lieu of all or part of LN Shares at the election of each qualifying shareholder of Li Ning Co,
in the Li Ning Open Offer and are convertible into LN Shares at the initial conversion price of

HK$2.60 per LN Shares (subject to adjustment)

[ ZF 22 AT R IR 35 57 ¥ ERNRAFERGCERRRBEEZARRIS  UMRFERAZEE
BERRAEENRZTEARBETNEBXBITERG - ZF I BRRKRE
FARIAPERESRIZERMD260ET (A THABR)BRAFTERN

‘LN Group” Li Ning Co and its subsidiaries

[FEEHE] B FERGARAMBAA
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A,

‘

‘LN Share(s)"
=M

A
[ A3 A4

‘PPP”

[PPP |

“Reporting Period”
[ ¥ & HA

“RMB’
TARE]

‘SFO”
[ % B 50

“Share(s)”
[ A% 17 ]

“Shareholder(s)”

[ A% 3R |

“Sports Cultural Industry Fund”
or “Fund”

[BESbEERES] K
[E&]

“State Council”

[ 75 e |

“Stock Exchange”
[ B 22 BT |

‘US$’
=l

“VCHL"

[VCHL |

“Victory Mind Assets”
['Victory Mind Assets |

“O/ ”
0

[%

English name for identification purpose only

the share(s) of HK$0.10 each in the share capital of Li Ning Co
E QA RAF FREE0HE T2 RD

not ipplicable
NiE A

Public-Private-Partnership, a business model in which public infrastructure projects are
financed, built and operated by way of partnership between the public sector and the private
sector

ARhaR —BEBRNA EEBEENA T AHARREAE HHAER
FIEFLERBEEN AN REES HEREE

the period of 1 January 2018 to 31 December 2018
—E-NF-A-—BEZE-N\F+A=+—HHH

Renminbi, the lawful currency of the PRC

ARE PBEEEEH

the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong)
BEAEDIENEF 75 R RA

ordinary shares of nominal value of HK$0.05 each in the share capital of the Company
RABRAHFAREEC.05H T2 E @R

holder(s) of Share(s)
LSLESTEIN

Zhuhai Viva Huazhi Sport and Culture Equity Investment Fund (Limited Partnership*), a limited
partnership enterprise to be established in the PRC
KREFNEBBELEXEREREES (ARER)  —BRPBIKL
WEREG BB

State Council of the People’s Republic of China
i A R AFBEE B

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
EEBARGMBRALQR

United States dollars, the lawful currency of the United States of America
X ENBERBEREEERE

Viva China Holdings Ltd, a company incorporated in BVI and a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company

Viva China Holdings Ltd * KRR BRE X FSEMK LI 2 AR U RA AR ZE2E
LIy

Victory Mind Assets Limited, a company incorporated in BVI
Victory Mind Assets Limited * AR B X B S MK 2 A F]

per cent
Aot
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